

### MOHINDRA FASTENERS LIMITED

MOHINDRA FASTENERS LIMITED ("Company" or "Issuer") was incorporated as a Public Limited Company on 10th January, 1995 under the Companies Act, 1956 with the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and consequently the Certificate of Commencement of business was obtained by the Company on 22nd February, 1995 and began the commercial production in the beginning of 1997. Over the years, it has successfully emerged as a name to reckon with in the Indian Fastener Industry. The Company offers a wide range of cold and hot forged fasteners and precision machined components for automotive and industrial applications.

> Registered Office: 304 Gupta Arcade, Inder Enclave Delhi-Rohtak Road, New Delhi-110087; Corporate Office: 303-304, Dimension Vardhman Plaza, Paschim Vihar, Delhi-Rohtak Road, New Delhi-110087 Telephone: +91 11 46200400, 46200401; Website: www.mohindra.asia Contact Person: Ms. Nidhi Pathak, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, E-mail id: <a href="mailto:csnidhipathak@mohindra.asia">csnidhipathak@mohindra.asia</a>

Corporate Identification Number: L74899DL1995PLC064215

OUR PROMOTERS: DEEPAK ARNEJA, RAVINDER MOHAN JUNEJA, RANBIR SINGH NARANG, SUDHIR ARNEJA, ANURAG ARNEJA.

FOR PRIVATE CIRCULATION TO THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF MOHINDRA FASTENERS LIMITED (THE "COMPANY" OR THE "ISSUER") ONLY

WE HEREBY CONFIRM THAT NONE OF OUR PROMOTERS OR DIRECTORS IS A WILFUL DEFAULTER AS ON DATE OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER

ISSUE OF 5,35,680 EQUITY SHARES WITH A FACE VALUE OF Rs. 10/- EACH ("RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES") OF OUR COMPANY FOR CASH AT A PRICE OF Rs. 90/- PER EQUITY SHARE (INCLUDING A SHARE PREMIUM OF Rs. 80/- PER EQUITY SHARE) (THE "ISSUE PRICE") FOR AN AGGREGATE AMOUNT OF Rs. 4,82,11,200/- ON A RIGHTS BASIS TO THE EXISTING EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR COMPANY IN THE RATIO OF 1 RIGHTS EQUITY SHARE(S) FOR EVERY 10 FULLY PAID-UP EQUITY SHARE(S) HELD BY THE EXISTING EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS ON THE RECORD DATE, THAT IS ON THURSDAY JANUARY 06, 2022 (THE "ISSUE"). THE ISSUE PRICE FOR THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IS 9 TIMES THE FACE VALUE OF THE EQUITY SHARES. FOR FURTHER DETAILS, SEE "TERMS OF THE ISSUE" ON PAGE 120 OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER.

### GENERAL RISKS

Investments in equity and equity related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in the Issue unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their entire investment. Investors are advised to read the risk factors carefully before taking an investment decision in the Issue. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of our Company and the Issue including the risks involved. The Rights Equity Shares in the Issue have not been recommended or approved by the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of the contents of this Letter of Offer. Specific attention of investors is invited to the section titled "Risk Factors" on page number 20 of this Letter of Offer before making an investment in the Issue.

### **OUR COMPANY'S ABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILITY**

Our Company, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this Letter of Offer contains all information with regard to our Company and this Issue, which is material in the context of this Issue, that the information contained in this Letter of Offer is true and correct in all material aspects and is not misleading in any material respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly held and that there are no other facts, the omission of which make this Letter of Offer as a whole or any of such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading in any material respect.

### LISTING

The existing Equity Shares are listed on the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited ("MSEI") (the "Stock Exchange"). Our Company has received 'inprinciple' approval from the MSEI for listing the Rights Equity Shares to be allotted pursuant to this Issue vide their letter dated October 22, 2021 respectively. For the purpose of this Issue, the Designated Stock Exchange is MSEI. For details of the material contracts and documents available for inspection from the date of this Letter of Offer up to the Issue Closing Date, see "Material Contracts and Documents for Inspection" on page number 143.

### LEAD MANAGER TO THE ISSUE



Intellicity Capital Advisers Private Limited

Plot No.-93 Pocket-2, First Floor, Jasola, Near DAV Public School, Delhi-110025 Email Id- info@intellicitycapital.com

SEBI Registered Category I Merchant Banker SEBI Registration No: INM000012777

Telephone: +011-47366600

Investor grievance E-mail: investorsrelation@intellicitycapital.com

Website: www.intellicitycapital.com Contact Person: Mr. Arpit Suri

REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE



Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.

D-153/A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area Phase-I, New Delhi- 110020

Phone No- 011- 40450193-97 Email: admin@skylinerta.com Contact Person: Ms. Rati Gupta SEBI Registration No.: INR000003241

ISSUE PROGRAMME

LAST DATE FOR ON MARKET RENUNCIATION

ISSUE CLOSES ON

FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 2022

MONDAY, JANUARY 24, 2022

ISSUE OPENS ON

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 07, 2022

dz,016

1 Thandly



THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION I - GENERAL	4
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONSNOTICE TO INVESTORS	
PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND USE OF MARKET DATA	
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS	
SUMMARY OF THE LETTER OF OFFER	16
SECTION II – RISK FACTORS	20
SECTION III – INTRODUCTION SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION	26
THE ISSUE	26
GENERAL INFORMATION	27
CAPITAL STRUCTURE	31
OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE	
STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS	38
SECTION IV – ABOUT THE COMPANY	41
HISTORY AND CORPORATE STRUCTURE	41
OUR MANAGEMENT	45
SECTION V – FINANCIAL INFORMATION	48
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	48
ACCOUNTING RATIOS AND CAPITALISATION STATEMENT	
STOCK MARKET DATA FOR EQUITY SHARES OF OUR COMPANY	111
SECTION VI - LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION	112
OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, DEFAULTS AND MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS	112
GOVERNMENT AND OTHER APPROVALS	
OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES	114
SECTION VII- ISSUE INFORMATION	120
TERMS OF THE ISSUE	120
GENERAL TERMS OF THE ISSUE	126
SECTION VIII – STATUTORY OTHER INFORMATION	143
MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION	143
DECLARATION	

#### SECTION I – GENERAL

### **DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS**

This Letter of Offer uses certain definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which you should consider when reading the information contained herein. The following list of certain capitalized terms used in this Letter of Offer is intended for the convenience of the reader/prospective investor only and is not exhaustive.

In this Letter of Offer, unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined, and abbreviations expanded below shall have the same meaning as stated in this section. The words and expressions used in this document but not defined herein shall have, to the extent applicable, the meaning ascribed to such terms under the Companies Act, SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SCRA, the Depositories Act or the rules and regulations made thereunder. References to statutes, rules, regulations, guidelines, and policies will be deemed to include all amendments, replacements and modifications notified thereto as on the date of this Letter of Offer. The following list of capitalized terms used in this document is intended for the convenience of the reader/prospective investor only and is not exhaustive.

In this Letter of Offer, unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, all references to "our Company", "the Company" and "the Issuer", are references to Mohindra Fasteners Limited. References to "you" are to the prospective investors in the Issue.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms under the sections titled "Industry Overview", "Statement of Tax Benefits", "Financial Statements" and "Outstanding Litigation and Other Defaults" shall have the meanings given to such terms in these respective sections/chapters.

### **Company Related Terms**

Term	Description	
"Company", "our Company", "the	Mohindra Fasteners Limited, a public limited company incorporated under	
Company", "the Issuer", "Mohindra		
Fasteners Limited" or "MFL"	Inder Enclave, Delhi-Rohtak Road, New Delhi-110087	
"we", "us", or "our"	Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to our Company	
"Articles" / "Articles of Association" / "AoA"	Articles of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time	
"Audit Committee"	The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as our Company's	
	audit committee in accordance with Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure	
	Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended ("SEBI Listing	
	Regulations") and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. For details, see	
	"Our Management" on page number 45 of this Letter of Offer	
"Audited Financial	The Audited Financial Statements of our Company as at and for the year	
Statements"	ended March 31, 2021 prepared in accordance with Indian AS	
"Auditors" / "Statutory	The current statutory auditors of our Company, M/s B. L. Khandelwal &	
Auditors"	Co (Practicing Chartered Accountant)	
"Board" / "Board of Directors" / "Our	The Board of Directors of our Company or any duly constituted committee	
Board"	thereof, as the context may require	
"Chief Financial Officer/CFO"	Sunil Mishra, the Chief Financial Officer of our Company	
"Company Secretary and Compliance	Nidhi Pathak, the Company Secretary and the Compliance Officer of our	
Officer"	Company	
"Director(s)"	The director(s) on the Board of our Company, unless otherwise specified	
"Equity Shareholder"	A holder of Equity Shares	
"Equity Share(s)"	The fully paid-up equity share(s) of our Company having a face value of	
	Rs.10/- each	
"Executive Directors"	Executive Directors of our Company, unless otherwise specified. For	
	further information, please read "Our Management" on page number 45 of	
	this Letter of Offer.	

"Independent Director(s)"	The Independent Director(s) of our Company, in terms of Section 2(47) and	
	Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013	
"Key Management Personnel" / "KMP"		
	Act, 2013 and the SEBI ICDR Regulations as described in the subsection	
	titled "Our Management - Key Managerial Personnel" on page number 4:	
	of this Letter of Offer.	
"Limited Reviewed Financial	The limited reviewed unaudited financial statements for the six months	
Information" or "Limited Reviewed	periods ended September 30, 2021, prepared in accordance with the	
Financial Statements" or "Limited	Companies Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. For details, see "Financial	
Reviewed Financial Statements" or	Information" on page number 48, of this Letter of Offer.	
"Limited Reviewed Financial		
Information"		
"Memorandum"/ "Memorandum of	Memorandum of Association of our Company, as amended	
Association" / "MOA"		
"Promoter(s)"	The Promoters of the Company being: Deepak Arneja, Ravinder Moha	
	Juneja, Ranbir Singh Narang, Sudhir Arneja, Anurag Arneja. For further	
	details, see "Our Promoters" on page 45 of this Letter of Offer.	
"Promoter Group"	The promoter group of our Company as determined in terms of Regulation	
	2(1) (pp) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations	
"Registered Office" and	Registered Office: 304, Gupta Arcade, Inder Enclave Delhi-Rohtak Road,	
"Corporate Office"	New Delhi-110087	
	& C O 604	
	Corporate Office: 303-304, Vardhman Plaza, Inder Enclave, Paschim	
	Vihar, Delhi-Rohtak Road, New Delhi-110087	
"Rights Issue Committee"	The committee of our Board constituted for purposes of the Issue and	
	incidental matters thereof.	
"Shareholders/Equity Shareholders"	The Equity Shareholders of our Company, from time to time.	
"Stakeholders' Relationship	The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as our Company's	
Committee"	Stakeholders' Relationship Committee in accordance with Regulation 20 of	
	the SEBI Listing Regulations. For details, see "Our Management" on page	
	number 45 of this Letter of Offer.	

### **Issue Related Terms**

Term	Description		
2009 ASBA Circular	The SEBI circular SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated December 30, 2009		
2011 ASBA Circular	The SEBI circular CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April 29, 2011		
Self-Certified Syndicate Bank or "SCSBs"	The banks which are registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Bankers to an Issue) Regulations, 1994 and offers services of ASBA, including blocking of bank account and a list of which is available at https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34		
"Abridged Letter of Offer/ ALOF"	The abridged letter of offer to be sent to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company with respect to this Issue in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013		
"Allot / Allotment / Allotted"	Unless the context otherwise requires, the allotment of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue		
"Allotment Date"	The date on which the Allotment is made pursuant to the Issue		
"Allottee(s)"	The successful applicant(s) eligible for Allotment of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue		
"Applicant(s) / Investor(s)"	Eligible Equity Shareholders and/or Renouncee(s) who are entitled to apply or have applied for Rights Equity Shares under the Issue, as the case may be		
"Application"	Application made through (i) submissions of the Application Form or plain paper Application to the Designated Branch of the SCSBs or online/electronic application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA process, or (ii) filling the online Application Form available on R-WAP, to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares at the Issue Price.		

"Application Form"	Unless the context otherwise requires, an application form (including online	
	application form available for submission of application at R-WAP facility or	
	through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs under the	
	ASBA process) used by an Applicant to make an application for the Allotment of	
"Application Money"	Rights Equity Shares in this Issue.	
Application Money	Aggregate amount payable in respect of the Rights Equity Shares applied for in the Issue for at the Issue Price	
"ASBA / Application Supported by	Application (whether physical or electronic) used by ASBA Applicants to	
Blocked Amount"	make an Application authorizing a SCSB to block the Application Money in	
Biocked Amount	the ASBA Account	
"ASBA Account"	Account maintained with a SCSB and specified in the CAF or plain paper	
	application, as the case may be, for blocking the amount mentioned in the	
	CAF, or the plain paper application, in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders,	
	as the case may be	
"ASBA Applicant(s) / ASBA	As per the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated	
Investor(s)"	January 22, 2020, all investors (including Renouncee) shall make an	
	application for a rights issue only through ASBA facility.	
"Banker to the Issue"	Collectively, the Escrow Collection Bank and the Refund Banks to the Issue.	
"CDSL"	Central Depository Services (India) Limited	
"Common Application Form / CAF"	The application form used by Investors to make an application for Allotment under the Issue	
"Controlling Branches"	The branches of the SCSBs which coordinate with the Registrar to the	
	Issue, the Manager and the Stock Exchanges and a list of which is available	
	at	
	https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes	
"Depository(ies)"	NSDL and CDSL or any other depository registered with SEBI under	
	Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)	
	Regulations, 1996 as amended from time to time, read with the Depositories	
	Act, 1996	
"Designated Branches"	Such branches of the Banker to the Issue i.e. ICICI Bank Limited which	
	shall collect Common Application Form or the plain paper application, as the	
	case may be, used by the ASBA Investors and a list of which is available at	
"Demographic Details"	Demographic details of Investors available with the Depositories, including	
	address and bank account details	
"Designated Stock Exchange"	MSEI Limited	
"DP"	Depository Participant	
"Draft Letter of Offer/DLOF"	The draft letter of offer dated 18/08/2021 filed with SEBI and the Stock	
	Exchange and which does not contain complete terms of the number of	
	Rights Equity Shares proposed to be offered in the Issue in accordance with	
	the SEBI ICDR Regulations	
"Eligible Equity Shareholder"	A holder / beneficial owner of Equity Shares as on the Record Date	
"Equity shares"	Equity shares of our Company of face value of Rs. 10 each	
"FVCI(s)"	Foreign venture capital investors, as defined in and registered under the	
	FVCI Regulations	
"Issue Agreement"	The agreement entered into on March 16, 2021 between our Company and	
	the Lead Manager, pursuant to which certain arrangements are agreed to in	
	relation to the Issue	

"Issue"	Issue of up to 5,35,680 fully paid-up equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 /-each of our Company for cash at a price of Rs. 90/- (including a premium of Rs. 80/-) per Equity Share for an amount aggregating up to Rs. 4,82,11,200/- on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company in the ratio of 01 Rights Equity Shares for every 10 Equity Shares held by such Eligible Equity Shareholders on the Record Date.
"Issue Closing Date"	FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 2022
"Issue Opening Date"	MONDAY, JANUARY 24, 2022
"Issue Price"	Rs.90/- per Equity Share (Including a Premium of Rs.80/- per Equity Share)
"Issue Proceeds"	The gross proceeds raised through the Issue
"Lead Manager"	Intellicity Capital Advisers Private Limited
"Letter of Offer / LOF"	This letter of offer dated December 31, 2021 will be filed with the Designated Stock Exchanges and SEBI for record keeping.
"Memorandum of Association"/ "MoA"	Memorandum of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time.
"MICR"	Magnetic Ink Character Recognition
"Net Proceeds"	The Issue Proceeds less the Issue related expenses
"NRE Account"	Non-Resident External Account
"NRI(s)"	An individual resident outside India who is a citizen of India or is an 'Overseas Citizen of India' cardholder within the meaning of section 7(A) of the Citizenship Act, 1955, and shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the FEMA Regulations
"Non - Institutional Investor(s)"	An Investor other than a Retail Individual Investor and a Qualified Institutional Buyer
"NRO Account"	Non-Resident Ordinary Account
"NSDL"	National Securities Depository Limited
"MSEI"	Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited
"OCB(s)"	Overseas Corporate Body(ies)
"R-WAP"	Registrar's web-based application platform accessible at <a href="https://www.skylinerta.com/rightissues/">https://www.skylinerta.com/rightissues/</a> , instituted as an optional mechanism in accordance with SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CTR/P/2020/78 dated May 6, 2020, SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136 dated July 24, 2020, SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/13 dated January 19, 2021 and SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/552 dated April 22, 2021, for accessing/submitting online Application Forms by resident Investors.
"Record Date"	Thursday, January 06, 2022
"Registered office"	The Registered Office of our Company is located at 304, Gupta Arcade, Inder Enclave, Delhi-Rohtak Road, New Delhi-110087
"Registrar of Companies"/ "Roc"	Registrar of Companies, New Delhi having its office at 4th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi–110019
"Registrar and Share Transfer Agent"	The registrar and share transfer agent of our Company, being, Skyline Financial Services Private Limited
"Registrar / Registrar to the Issue"	Skyline Financial Services Private Limited
"Renouncee(s)"	Any person(s) who have / has acquired Rights Entitlements from Eligible Equity Shareholders
"Retail Individual Investor(s)"	Individual Investors who have applied for Rights Equity Shares for an amount not more than 2,00,000 (including HUFs applying through their Karta)
"Rights Issue Committee"	The committee of our Board constituted for purposes of the Issue and incidental matters thereof.

"Rights Entitlements / REs"	The number of Rights Equity Shares that an Eligible Equity Shareholder is entitled to in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity Shareholder on the Record Date, being 01 (One) Rights Equity Shares for 10 (Ten) Equity Share held on Thursday, January 06, 2022.  The Rights Entitlements with a separate ISIN INE705H20011 will be credited to your De-mat account before the date of opening of the Issue, against the equity shares held by the Equity Shareholders as on the Record Date.
"Rights Entitlement Letter"	Letter including details of Rights Entitlements of the Eligible Equity Shareholders, The Rights Entitlements are also accessible through the R-WAP facility and link for the same will be available on the website of our Company.
"Rights Equity Shares"	The fully paid-up Equity Share(s) offered in this Issue
"SEBI"	Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the SEBI Act
"Stock Exchange"	Stock Exchange where the Equity Shares are presently listed, being MSEI
"STT"	Securities Transaction Tax
"Transfer Date"	The date of which the amount held in the escrow account(s) and the amount blocked in the ASBA Account will be transferred to the Allotment Account, upon finalization of the Basis of Allotment, in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange.
"Working Day"	All days other than second and fourth Saturday of the month, Sunday or a public holiday, on which commercial banks in Delhi are open for business Further, in respect of Issue Period, working day means all days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, on which commercial banks in Delhi are open for business. Furthermore, the time period between the Issue Closing Date and the listing of the Rights Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange, working day means all trading days of the Stock Exchange, excluding Sundays and bank holidays, as per circulars issued by SEBI

### **Conventional and General Terms or References**

Term	Description		
AGM	Annual General Meeting		
AIF Regulations	Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds)		
	Regulations, 2012, as amended		
CIN	Corporate Identification Number		
Companies Act	The Companies Act, 1956, to the extent applicable and the Companies Act,		
	2013, as applicable		
Companies Act, 2013	The Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder		
COVID/COVID-19	Coronavirus disease (2019)		
Depositories Act	The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended		
FCNR Account	Foreign Currency Non-Resident Account		
FEMA	Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, and any circulars, notifications,		
	rules and regulations issued pursuant to the provisions thereof		
FEMA Non-Debt Rules	The Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instruments) Rules, 2019		
Financial Year / Fiscal	The period of 12 (twelve) months beginning April 1 and ending March 31 of		
	that next year, unless otherwise stated		
FVCI Regulations	Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors)		
	Regulations, 2000, as amended		
IFRS	International Financial Reporting Standards		
Ind-AS	Indian Accounting Standards notified under the Companies (Indian		
	Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended		
India	Republic of India		
Indian GAAP	Generally accepted accounting principles in India, including the Accounting		
	Standards specified under Section 133 of the Indian Companies Act, 2013,		
	read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014, as amended		

ISIN	International Securities Identification Number	
IT Act	The Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended	
Listing Agreement(s)	The equity listing agreement signed between our Company and the Stock Exchange	
Mutual Fund	E	
Mutuai Fund	Mutual fund registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Fund) Regulations, 1996, as amended	
Non-Resident / NR	Persons resident outside India as defined in the FEMA	
Rupees / INR	The lawful currency of India	

Term	Description
SCRA	Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, as amended
SCRR	Securities Contracts (Regulations) Rules, 1957, as amended
SEBI Act	Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended
SEBI ICDR Regulation	Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended
SEBI Listing Regulations	Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, as amended
FPI Regulations	Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014, as amended
Takeover Regulations	Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended
VCF Regulations	Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996, as amended

### **Industry Related Terms or Abbreviations**

Term	Description		
AIF(s)	Alternative Investment Fund(s) as defined in and registered under the AIF		
	Regulations		
FDI	Foreign Direct Investment		
FMCD	Fast Moving Consumer Durables		
GST	Goods and Services Tax		
GoI / Central Government	Government of India		
HUF	Hindu Undivided Family		
MSME	Micro, small and medium enterprises		
NPA	Non-Performing Asset		
PAN	Permanent Account Number		
RBI	Reserve Bank of India		
SR	SR equity Shares means the equity shares having superior voting rights		
	compared to all other equity shares issued by the Company.		
VCF	Venture Capital Funds, as defined in and registered under the VCF		
	Regulations		
w.e.f.	with effect from		

#### NOTICE TO INVESTORS

The distribution of this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter, Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter and the issue of the Rights Entitlement and the Rights Equity Shares to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India are restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or the Application Form may come are required to inform themselves about and observe such restrictions. Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will electronically dispatch through email and physical dispatch through speed post this Letter of Offer/ the Abridged Letter of Offer and Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have a registered address in India or who have provided an Indian address to our Company. Further, this Letter of Offer will be provided, through email and speed post, by the Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and in each who make a request in this regard. Investors can also access this Letter of Offer the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form from the websites of the Registrar, the Company, the Lead Manager, SEBI, the Stock Exchanges and on R-WAP.

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that purpose, except that this Letter of Offer has been filed with SEBI for observations. Accordingly, the issue of the Rights Entitlement and the Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer or the CAF or any offering materials or advertisements in connection with the Issue may not be distributed, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of this Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer or the CAF will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer and, in those circumstances, this Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer or the CAF must be treated as sent for information only and should not be acted upon for subscription to the Rights Equity Shares. Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of, this Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer or the CAF should not, in connection with the issue of the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send this Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer or the CAF in or into any jurisdiction where to do so, would or might contravene local securities laws or regulations. If this Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer or the CAF is received by any person in any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements referred to in this Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer or the CAF. Envelopes containing the CAF should not be dispatched from any jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer and all persons subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares in this Issue must provide an Indian address.

Any person who makes an application to acquire rights and the Rights Equity Shares offered in this Issue will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that he is authorized to acquire the rights and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations prevailing in his jurisdiction. Our Company, the Registrar, the Lead Manager or any other person acting on behalf of our Company reserves the right to treat any CAF as invalid where they believe that CAF is incomplete or acceptance of such CAF may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements and we shall not be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such CAF. Neither the delivery of this Letter of Offer nor any sale hereunder, shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in our Company's affairs from the date hereof or the date of such information or that the information contained herein is correct as at any time subsequent to the date of this Letter of Offer or the date of such information.

THE CONTENTS OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER AND ABRIDGED LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS LEGAL, TAX OR INVESTMENT ADVICE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY BE SUBJECT TO ADVERSE FOREIGN, STATE OR LOCAL TAX OR LEGAL CONSEQUENCES AS A RESULT OF THE OFFER OF THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES. AS A RESULT, EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT ITS OWN COUNSEL, BUSINESS ADVISOR AND TAX ADVISOR AS TO THE LEGAL, BUSINESS, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING THE OFFER OF THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES. IN ADDITION, NEITHER OUR COMPANY NOR THE LEAD MANAGER IS MAKING ANY REPRESENTATION TO ANY OFFEREE OR PURCHASER OF THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES REGARDING THE LEGALITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES BY SUCH OFFEREE OR PURCHASER UNDER ANY APPLICABLE LAWS OR REGULATIONS.

### NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES

The Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act or the securities laws of any state of the United States and may not be offered or sold in the United States of America or the territories or possessions thereof ("United States"), except in a transaction not subject to, or exempt from, the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws. The offering to which this Letter of Offer relates is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an offering of any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement for sale in the United States or as a solicitation therein of an offer to buy any of the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement. There is no intention to register any portion of the Issue or any of the securities described herein in the United States or to conduct a public offering of securities in the United States. Accordingly, this Letter of Offer / Abridged Letter of Offer and the enclosed Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letters should not be forwarded to or transmitted in or into the United States at any time. In addition, until the expiry of 40 days after the commencement of the Issue, an offer or sale of Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares within the United States by a dealer (whether or not it is participating in the Issue) may violate the registration requirements of the Securities Act.

Neither our Company nor any person acting on our behalf will accept a subscription or renunciation from any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company or any person acting on our behalf has reason to believe is in the United States when the buy order is made. Envelopes containing an Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter should not be postmarked in the United States or otherwise dispatched from the United States or any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer, and all persons subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares Issue and wishing to hold such Equity Shares in registered form must provide an address for registration of these Equity Shares in India. Our Company is making the Issue on a rights basis to Eligible Equity Shareholders and this Letter of Offer / Abridged Letter of Offer and Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter will be dispatched only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have an Indian address. Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, in the United States, and (ii) it is authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

Our Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as invalid which: (i) does not include the certification set out in the Application Form to the effect that the subscriber is authorized to acquire the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations; (ii) appears to us or our agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the United States; (iii) where a registered Indian address is not provided; or (iv) where our Company believes that Application Form is incomplete or acceptance of such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; and our Company shall not be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form.

Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States.

The Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the US Securities and Exchange Commission (the "US SEC"), any state securities commission in the United States or any other US regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of the offering of the Rights Entitlements, the Equity Shares or the accuracy or adequacy of this Letter of Offer. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States.

The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our Company and the Lead Manager are not liable for any amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of this Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent investigations and ensure that the number of Rights Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable limits under laws or regulations.

THIS DOCUMENT IS SOLELY FOR THE USE OF THE PERSON WHO RECEIVED IT FROM OUR COMPANY OR FROM LEAD MANAGER OR FROM THE REGISTRAR. THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED OR DISTRIBUTED TO ANY OTHER PERSON.

### ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

The Company is a Public Limited (Listed) Company under the laws of India and all the Directors and all Executive Officers are residents of India. It may not be possible or may be difficult for investors to affect service of process upon the Company or these other persons outside India or to enforce against them in courts in India, judgments obtained in courts outside India. India is not a party to any international treaty in relation to the automatic recognition or enforcement of foreign judgments.

However, recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments is provided for under Sections 13, 14 and 44A of the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908, as amended (the "Civil Procedure Code"). Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code provides that where a certified copy of a decree of any superior court (within the meaning of that section) in any country or territory outside India which the Government of India has by notification declared to be a reciprocating territory, is filed before a district court in India, such decree may be executed in India as if the decree has been rendered by a district court in India. Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code is applicable only to monetary decrees or judgments not being in the nature of amounts payable in respect of taxes or other charges of a similar nature or in respect of fines or other penalties. Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code does not apply to arbitration awards even if such awards are enforceable as a decree or judgment. Among others, the United Kingdom, Singapore, Hong Kong and the United Arab Emirates have been declared by the Government of India to be reciprocating territories within the meaning of Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code.

The United States has not been declared by the Government of India to be a reciprocating territory for the purposes of Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code. Under Section 14 of the Civil Procedure Code, an Indian court shall, on production of any document purporting to be a certified copy of a foreign judgment, presume that the judgment was pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction unless the contrary appears on the record; but such presumption may be displaced by proving want of jurisdiction.

A judgment of a court in any non-reciprocating territory, such as the United States, may be enforced in India only by a suit upon the judgment subject to Section 13 of the Civil Procedure Code, and not by proceedings in execution. Section 13 of the Civil Procedure Code, which is the statutory basis for the recognition of foreign judgments (other than arbitration awards), states that a foreign judgment shall be conclusive as to any matter directly adjudicated upon between the same parties or between parties under whom they or any of them claim litigating under the same title except where:

- The judgment has not been pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction;
- The judgment has not been given on the merits of the case;
- The judgment appears on the face of the proceedings to be founded on an incorrect view of international law or a refusal to recognize the law of India in cases where such law is applicable;
- The proceedings in which the judgment was obtained are opposed to natural justice;
- The judgment has been obtained by fraud; and/or
- The judgment sustains a claim founded on a breach of any law in force in India.

A suit to enforce a foreign judgment must be brought in India within three years from the date of the judgment in the same manner as any other suit filed to enforce a civil liability in India. It is unlikely that a court in India would award damages on the same basis as a foreign court if an action is brought in India. In addition, it is unlikely that an Indian court would enforce foreign judgments if it considered the amount of damages awarded as excessive or inconsistent with public policy or if the judgments are in breach of or contrary to Indian law. A party seeking to enforce a foreign judgment in India is required to obtain prior approval from the Reserve Bank of India to repatriate any amount recovered pursuant to execution of such judgment. Any judgment in a foreign currency would be converted into Rupees on the date of such judgment and not on the date of payment and any such amount may be subject to income tax in accordance with applicable laws. The Company cannot predict whether a suit brought in an Indian court will be disposed of in a timely manner or be subject to considerable delays.

### PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND USE OF MARKET DATA

#### **Certain Conventions**

All references herein to 'India' are to the Republic of India and its territories and possessions and the 'Government' or 'GoI' or the 'Central Government' or the 'State Government' are to the Government of India, Central or State, as applicable. Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all references in this Letter of Offer to the 'US' or 'U.S.' or the 'United States' are to the United States of America and its territories and possessions.

In this Letter of Offer, references to the singular also refer to the plural and one gender also refers to any other gender, wherever applicable.

Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Letter of Offer are to the page numbers of this Letter of Offer.

### **Financial Data**

Our fiscal year commences on April 01 of each calendar year and ends on March 31 of the following calendar year. Accordingly, all references to a particular "fiscal year" or "Fiscal", unless stated otherwise, are to the twelve (12) month period ended on March 31 of that year.

Unless the context otherwise requires, our financial data in this Letter of Offer is derived from the Audited Financial Statements and Limited Reviewed Financial Information. Our audited financial statements as of and for financial year ended March 31, 2021 and Limited Reviewed Financial Information as on September 30, 2021, have been prepared by our Company in accordance with Ind AS, Companies Act, and other applicable statutory and/or regulatory requirements ("Financial Statements"). Our Company publishes its financial statements in Indian Rupees. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian accounting practices on the financial disclosures presented in this Letter of Offer should accordingly be limited. We have not attempted to explain those differences or quantify their impact on the financial data included herein, and we urge you to consult your own advisors regarding such differences and their impact on our financial data. For details of financial statements, see "Financial Statements" on page number 48 of this Letter of Offer.

In this Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to rounding-off, and unless otherwise specified, all financial numbers in parenthesis represent negative figures. Our Company has presented all numerical information in this Letter of Offer in "lakh" units or in whole numbers where the numbers have been too small to represent in lakh. One lakh represents 1,00,000 and one million represents 1,000,000.

There are significant differences between Ind AS, US GAAP and IFRS. We have not provided a reconciliation of the financial information to IFRS or US GAAP. Our Company has not attempted to also explain those differences or quantify their impact on the financial data included in this Letter of Offer, and you are urged to consult your own advisors regarding such differences and their impact on our financial data. Accordingly, the degree to which the financial information included in this Letter of Offer will provide meaningful information is entirely dependent on the reader's level of familiarity with Indian accounting policies and practices, Ind AS, the Companies Act and the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar with these accounting principles and regulations on our financial disclosures presented in this Letter of Offer should accordingly be limited. For further information, see "Financial Information" on page number 48 of this Letter of Offer.

Certain figures contained in this Letter of Offer, including financial information, have been subject to rounded off adjustments. All figures in decimals (including percentages) have been rounded off to one or two decimals. However, where any figures that may have been sourced from third-party industry sources are rounded off to other than two decimal points in their respective sources, such figures appear in this Letter of Offer rounded-off to such number of decimal points as provided in such respective sources. In this Letter of Offer, (i) the sum or percentage change of certain numbers may not conform exactly to the total figure given; and (ii) the sum of the numbers in a column or row in certain tables may not conform exactly to the total figure given for that column or row. Any such discrepancies are due to rounding off.

### **Currency and Units of Presentation**

All references to the "Rupees" or Rs." are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India.

Unless stated otherwise, throughout this Letter of Offer, all figures have been expressed in lakhs.

### **Exchange Rates**

This Letter of Offer contains conversions of certain other currency amounts into Indian Rupees that have been presented solely to comply with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. These conversions should not be construed as a representation that these currency amounts could have been, or can be converted into Indian Rupees, at any particular rate or at all.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, information with respect to the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and other foreign currencies:

Currency		Exchange rate as on		
	September 30, 2021	March 31, 2021	March 31, 2020	March 31, 2019*
1 USD	74.25	73.53	75.38	69.17
I Euro	86.14	86.10	83.04	77.70

(Source: RBI reference rate)

 $(Source: \underline{www.rbi.org.in} \ and \ www.fbil.org.in$ 

<sup>\*</sup>Exchange rate as on March 29, 2019, as RBI reference rate is not available for March 31, 2019 and March 30, 2019 being a Saturday and Sunday respectively.

#### FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Letter of Offer contains certain "forward-looking statements". Forward looking statements appear throughout this Letter of Offer, including, without limitation, under the chapters titled "Risk Factors", "Objects of the Issue" and "History and Corporate Structure". Forward-looking statements include statements concerning our Company's plans, objectives, goals, strategies, future events, future revenues or financial performance, capital expenditures, financing needs, political & legal environment, and geographical locations in which our Company operates, and other information that is not historical information.

These forward- looking statements generally can be identified by words or phrases such as "aim", "anticipate", "believe", "continue", "can", "could", "expect", "estimate", "intend", "likely", "may", "objective", "plan", "potential", "project", "pursue", "shall", "seek to", "will", "will continue", "will pursue", "forecast", "target", or other words or phrases of similar import. Similarly, statements that describe the objectives, plans or goals of our Company are also forward-looking statements. However, these are not the exclusive means of identifying forward-looking statements.

All statements regarding our Company's expected financial conditions, results of operations, business plans and prospects are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include statements as to our Company's business strategy, planned projects, revenue and profitability (including, without limitation, any financial or operating projections or forecasts), new business and other matters discussed in this Letter of Offer that are not historical facts. These forward-looking statements contained in this Letter of Offer (whether made by our Company or any third party), are predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions, and other factors that may cause the actual results, performance, or achievements of our Company to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements or other projections.

Actual results may differ materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements due to risks or uncertainties associated with our expectations with respect to, but not limited to, regulatory changes pertaining to the industry in which our Company operates and our ability to respond to them, our ability to successfully implement our strategy, our growth and expansion, the competition in our industry and markets, technological changes, our exposure to market risks, general economic and political conditions in India and globally which have an impact on our business activities or investments, the monetary and fiscal policies of India, inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices or other rates or prices, the performance of the financial markets in India and globally, changes in laws, regulations and taxes, incidence of natural calamities, pandemics and/or acts of violence. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our Company's expectations include, but are not limited to, the following:

- our ability to anticipate and respond to changes in the industry and changing customer preferences in a timely and effective manner:
- seasonal nature of our business;
- our ability to obtain certain approvals and licenses;
- our ability to maintain relationships with third parties;
- compliance of environmental laws and change in environment regulations;
- our reliance on third party suppliers for our products;
- our ability to manage our operations at our current size or to manage any future growth effectively; and
- our ability to handle our new businesses of handling and disposal of fly ash and coal trading.

For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from the expectations, see the section "*Risk Factors*". By their nature, certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the future. As a result, actual gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated.

#### SUMMARY OF THE LETTER OF OFFER

The following is a general summary of the terms of this Issue, and should be read in conjunction with and is qualified by the more detailed information appearing in this Letter of Offer, including the sections titled "Risk Factors", "The Issue", "Capital Structure", "Objects of the Issue", "Our Business", "Summary of Industry", "Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments" and "Terms of the Issue" on page numbers 20, 26, 31, 35,41, 16, 112 and 120 respectively.

### 1. Summary of Industry

Over the years, the global fasteners industry has transformed into a competitive sector. Several small and large-scale manufacturing companies are operating across various countries, including India.

The industrial demand is expected to increase at around 5.5 percent annually. Equally, the Indian fastener industry is also estimated to maintain the growth trajectory in the coming years.

The major reason for this progress of the Fastener industry can be attributed to the increased focus of making India as a manufacturing hub under the "Make in India" project of the Government of India, increasing number of construction activities and growing automobile manufacturing in India and other South Asian countries and expansion/modernization of the infrastructure including Railways. The automobile industry is one of the largest consumers of fasteners, accounting for over 50% percent market share. Emergence of India as a global hub for manufacturing automotive components and fasteners with high export commitments have also made this industry move north.

Made from steel, stainless steel, brass, aluminum, etc., Fasteners are used to join two or more objects together by using nuts, bolts, washers, screws and other products. The Indian fasteners market is classified on the basis of application, product type and the organization of the market. The Indian Fastener market is fragmented and with all round Industrial development, the segment is witnessing great opportunities, challenges, scope and offers promising growth.

The fastener industry's largest market is accounted by Asia-Pacific with a major share of fasteners manufactured globally. The market growth is attributable to the growing construction activities and manufacturing of automobiles in India and China. A wide range of fasteners are manufactured in the Indian market, which include exhaust bolts, balance wheel bolts, standard hexagon screws/bolts, socket head cap screws, socket shoulder screws, weld nuts, square nuts, hexagon nuts, self-tapping screws, and others. High-tensile fasteners are mainly used in the construction and engineering sector, whereas mild steel fasteners are used in manufacturing automobiles.

With help from Government of India's 'Make in India' initiative, the Indian manufacturing sector is expected to generate huge demand for industrial fasteners. The Indian industrial fasteners market is divided into three sections: application, product type, and market organization. The Indian automobile industry is anticipated to be the largest consumer of industrial fasteners, accounting for a significant portion of the market.

The major reason for this progress can be attributed to the increasing number of construction activities and growing automobile manufacturing in South Asian countries. The auto industry is the largest consumer of fasteners, accounting for around 75 percent market share.

\*Source: <u>https://fastenereurasia.com/</u>

### 2. Summary of Business

Our Company was incorporated in 1995, and has successfully emerged as a name to reckon with in the Indian Fastener industry. The Company offers a wide range of cold and hot forged fasteners and precision machined components for automotive and industrial applications.

For further details, please refer to the chapter titled "Our Business" beginning on page number 41 of this Letter of Offer.

### 3. Our Promoters

The promoters of our Company are Deepak Arneja, Ravinder Mohan Juneja, Ranbir Singh Narang, Sudhir Arneja, Anurag Arneja. For further details please see chapter titled "Our Promoters" beginning on page number 45 of this Letter of Offer.

### 4. Objects of the Issue

- > The Net Proceeds are proposed to be used in accordance with the details provided below:
- > To meet the funding needs of expansion plan i.e. Green Field Project coming up at IMT Rohtak, Haryana.
- > The proposed project: For the initializing, developing and starting up of the project `Green Field Project/Construction' which involves the factory building situated at Plant-III as well as the `Purchasing & installation of plant & machinery' at the premises located on the address Plant-III situated at Plot no. 42, 43 & 44, Sector-31B, IMT Rohtak, Haryana, which has a total project cost amounting to Rs. 3000.00 Lakhs (Rupees Thirty Crores only) excluding the cost of land of Rs. 800.00 Lakhs (self-acquired). The area for the said premises is admeasuring Three (3) acres of the land purchased from the HSIIDC Panchkula, Haryana in the year 2014, for which the payment cycle was finalized on a half yearly instalments basis. The Conveyance Deed has been executed between the Company and HSIIDC in June, 2017.

The details of the Proposed Capital Expenditure: Rs. 3000.00 Lakhs comprises and includes of:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Capital Expenditure	Cost	Position as on present date	
Building premises	800.00	Proposed	
**P&M	2100.00	Proposed	
Other F/A	100.00	Proposed	
Total	3000.00	Proposed	

Tenure of the proposed project: The construction activities are likely to be completed in the new Plant III by January/February, 2022. The Commercial production and the business operations & activities in the new Plant III would tentatively start from March/April, 2022.

Sources being arranged by the Company for the initializing of funding:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

<u>f</u>	
Source(s)	Amount
	Involved
Proposed Right Issue	482.11
*Borrowings from Bank	2100.00
Internal Accruals	417.89
Total	3000.00

<sup>\*</sup>The term loan of Rs. 21.00 Crores have been sanctioned to the Company by the Karnataka Bank Limited vide their sanction letter ref. no. MDS[CSD]120/2021-2022 dated 04.11.2021 for the funding of the above said project.

### 5. Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter(s) and Promoter Group in the Issue:

Our Promoter(s) and entities forming part of our Promoter Group have, *vide* their letters dated Wednesday, August 18, 2021 (the "Subscription Letters") undertaken to: (a) subscribe, jointly and/ or severally to the full extent of their Rights Entitlement and subscribe to the full extent of any Rights Entitlement that may be renounced in their favour by any other Promoter or member(s) of the Promoter Group of our Company; and (b) subscribe to, either individually or jointly and/ or severally with any other Promoter or member of the Promoter Group, for additional Rights Equity Shares, including subscribing to unsubscribed portion (if any) in the Issue.

Such subscription for Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlement, if allotted, may result in an increase in their percentage shareholding. Any such acquisition of additional Rights Equity Shares (including any unsubscribed portion of the Issue) is exempt in terms of Regulation 10(4)(b) of the Takeover Regulations as conditions mentioned therein have been fulfilled and shall not result in a change of control of the management of our Company in accordance with provisions of the Takeover Regulations. The additional subscription by the promoters shall be made subject to such additional subscription not resulting in the minimum public shareholding of the issuer falling below the level prescribed in LODR/SCRR. Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements pursuant to the Issue.

<sup>\*\*</sup>Additionally, the process for ordering of machines for the Plant III have already been started and bookings have been done after making payment of advances for the machines and the delivery of the machines is expected from January/February, 2022.

### 6. Summary of Financial Information

The following table sets forth summary of the financial information derived from the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial year ended March 31, 2021, March, 2020 & March, 2019 and prepared in accordance with recognition and measurement principles of IND AS 34 and Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, which are subjected to Limited Review by Statutory Auditors of the Company.

(in lakhs other than share data)

Particulars	For the Fiscal Year			
	2021	2020	2019	
Equity Share Capital	535.68	535.68	535.68	
Net Worth	6621.18	5890.21	5200.67	
Revenue (total income)	10838.54	10417.39	13552.25	
Profit after tax	1038.06	936.77	910.39	
Earnings per share (basic and diluted)	19.38	17.49	17.00	
Net asset value per equity share	123.60	109.96	97.09	
Total Borrowings (as per the balance sheet)	1510.57	1289.28	1780.45	

### 7. Auditor Qualifications:

There are no qualifications by the Statutory Auditors in their report to the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021 and the unaudited Financial Statements for the six months' period ended September 30, 2021.

### 8. Summary of Outstanding Litigations:

A summary of outstanding litigation proceedings pertaining to our Company as on the date of this Letter of Offer is provided below. For details of the material outstanding litigation proceedings including criminal proceedings and civil proceedings, please see "Outstanding Litigations and Defaults".

Nature of proceedings	Number of outstanding cases	Amount involved (in Lakhs)	
Cases filed against our Company			
Civil	Nil	Nil	
Cases filed by our Company			
Civil	Nil	Nil	
Criminal (under section 138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act)	Nil	Nil	

### 9. Risk Factors

For details of potential risks associated with our ongoing business activities and industry, investment in Equity Shares of the Company, material litigations which impact the business of the Company and other economic factors please see "Risk Factors" on page number 20 of this Letter of Offer.

### 10. Summary of Contingent Liabilities of our Company

As of March 31, 2021, we have certain contingent liabilities that had not been provided for, details of the same is as under:

The Company received Show Cause Notice (SCN) dated 03rd June, 2016 from the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, for the violation of Sections 211(3A) and 211(3(C) with regard to Accounting Standards 1,2,9,12,18 & 26 and Section217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956. The company filed detailed replies to the SCN *vide* dated 20th June, 2016 and also filed the compounding applications under section 621A of the companies Act, 1956 vide dated 26th July, 2016 and further correspondences made on 16th November, 2016. The adjudication thereof is pending from Honorable ROC and hence the possible consequences arising out of the same on the company are not presently ascertainable.

### 11. Summary of Related Party Transactions

For details of the related party transactions, please refer to the corresponding header as reported in the Financial Statements for FY ending March 31, 2021 and six months ended September 30, 2021.

### 12. Financing Arrangements

There have been no financing arrangements whereby our Promoters, members of the Promoter Group, our Directors and their relatives, Directors of the company which is a Promoter of our Company have financed the purchase by any other person of securities of our Company other than in the normal course of the business of the financing entity during a period of six months immediately preceding the date of this Letter of Offer.

### 13. Issue of Equity Shares for consideration other than cash in the last one year

Our Company has not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash in the one year preceding the date of this Letter of Offer.

### SECTION II – RISK FACTORS

An investment in Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. Investors should carefully consider all the information in this Letter of Offer, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an investment in our Rights Equity Shares. The risks described below are not the only risks relevant to our Company's business, operations, or our Rights Equity Shares, but also to the industry and segments in which we operate or propose to operate. Additional risks and uncertainties, not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also impair our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. If any of the following risks, or other risks that are not currently known or are currently deemed immaterial, actually occur, our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition could be adversely affected, the trading price of our equity shares could decline, and investors may lose all or part of their investment.

To obtain a complete understanding of our Company, prospective investors should read this section in conjunction with "Financial Information and other information contained in this Letter of Offer. In making an investment decision, investors and purchasers of the Rights Equity Shares must rely on their own examination of us and our business and the terms of the Issue including the merits and risks involved. Potential investors and purchasers of our Rights Equity Shares should consult their tax, financial and legal advisors about the consequences of investing in the Issue. Prospective investors and purchasers of the Rights Equity Shares should pay attention to the fact that our Company is incorporated under the laws of India and are subject to a legal and regulatory environment, which may differ in certain respects from that of other countries.

The following risk factors have been determined by our Board of Directors on the basis of their materiality. In accordance with Clause (VI) in Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the following factors have been considered for determining the materiality: (i) Some events may not be material individually, but may be found material collectively, (ii) some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively; and (iii) some events may not be material at present but may have material impact in the future.

### Materiality:

The Risk Factors have been determined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been considered for determining the materiality of Risk Factors:

- Some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively;
- Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively; and
- Some events may not be material at present but may have a material impact in future.

The financial and other related implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable, have been disclosed in the risk factors mentioned below. However, there are risk factors where the impact may not be quantifiable and hence, the same has not been disclosed in such risk factors. The numbering of the risk factors has been done to facilitate ease of reading and reference and does not in any manner indicate the importance of one risk over another.

In this Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between total and sums of the amount listed are due to rounding off.

In this section, unless the context requires otherwise, any reference to "we", "us" or "our" refers to Mohindra Fasteners Limited.

The risk factors are classified as under for the sake of better clarity and increased understanding.

### **INTERNAL RISK FACTORS:**

1. MFL's success depends on its ability to identify and respond to constantly changing customer demands and preferences and changing technologies.

In order to stay competitive, MFL must respond to changing trends in customer demands and preferences either in India or overseas. MFL's success is dependent on its ability to anticipate accurately, identify and quickly respond to these trends. MFL should ensure that their sales team generate enthusiasm and respond with extra efforts in addressing our customers' needs in a timely fashion. If any of these risks pertaining to changes in demands/preference/technology materialize, it may have a material adverse effect on MFL's business, cash flows, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

### 2. MFL operations are subject to risks arising from foreign exchange rate fluctuations, which could adversely affect the financial results of our Company.

Most of our revenue and some costs are either linked to or denominated in Foreign Currencies. We maintain our accounts and report our financial results in Indian Rupees (INR). As such, we are exposed to risks relating to foreign exchange rate fluctuations. Uncertainties in the global financial markets and other geo political reasons may have an adverse impact on the exchange rate between INR and other currencies. The exchange rate between INR and other currencies are variable and may continue to remain volatile in the future depending upon the foreign exchange reserve position of India. Fluctuations in the exchange rates may have a serious impact on the revenues from our export business as a significant portion of our revenue comes from exports. Any appreciation of the INR against other currencies may lead to reduction in the realization of our revenues. Accordingly, volatility in the exchange rate would adversely affect the financial results of our Company.

### 3. Europe is our significant business market, and our current business and future growth could be materially and adversely affected by poor economic conditions in Europe.

Europe is a significant market for our Exports, accounting for about 45% of our total revenue in each of the fiscal year 2020 and 2021. Exports have always remained the back bone of the Company and have constituted over two-thirds of the sales revenues in the last few years. Accordingly, we are particularly prone to the overall health of the economy as well as any geopolitical factors and other factors in the European Union countries. The market in this region may be affected by a number of factors outside our control, including local, regional, political and general economic conditions, changes in demand and supply for products comparable to those that we develop, any pandemic like conditions which might force restrictions and lockdowns and changes in Government regulations. A slowdown in the business ecosystem could adversely affect our business and results of operations and future growth of the Company.

## 4. MFL is dependent on our senior management including our Promoters and a number of key personnel and the loss of, or our inability to attract or retain such persons could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our performance depends significantly on our senior management, including our Promoters, who are educated and have several years of experience in the industry in which we operate and whose contribution has been crucial to the growth of our business. We believe that the inputs and experience of our senior management and key managerial personnel are valuable for the development of business and operations and the strategic directions adopted by our Company. We cannot assure you that we will be able to retain such persons or find adequate suitable replacements in a timely manner, or at all. A limited number of persons exist with the requisite experience and skills to serve in our senior management positions. In addition, we may require a long period of time to hire and train replacement personnel when qualified personnel terminate their employment with our Company. Moreover, along with our steady growth and business expansion, we need to employ, train and retain additional suitable skilled and qualified management and employees from a wider geographical area. If we cannot attract and retain suitable personnel, our business and future growth may be materially and adversely affected.

# 5. MFL's ability to pay dividends in the future will depend on our future earnings, cash flows, working capital requirements, capital expenditures and financial condition. Investors of Rights Equity Shares are only entitled to dividend in proportion to the amount paid up and the voting rights shall also be proportional to such investor's share of the paid-up equity capital of our Company.

Our Company has declared and has paid dividend uninterruptedly for last 17 years. The amount of future dividend payments, if any, will depend upon our Company's future earnings, financial condition, cash flows, working capital requirements, the terms and conditions of our Company's indebtedness and capital expenditures. There can be no assurance that our Company will be able to pay dividends in the future.

### 6. The unexpected loss, shutdown or slowdown of operations at any of our facilities could have a material adverse effect on MFL's results of operations and financial condition.

Our facilities are subject to operating risks, such as breakdown or failure of equipment, power supply interruptions, facility obsolescence or disrepair, technological changes, labour disputes, natural disasters and industrial accidents, to name some of them. The occurrence of any of these risks could adversely affect our operations by causing production at one or more facilities to shut down or slowdown. No assurance can be given that one or more of the factors mentioned above will not occur, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

### 7. Availability of skilled and specialized labour can affect performance of MFL.

Due to advancement of technology and competitive environment, skilled and specialized labour are necessary to have in any

organization. The shortages of relevant sufficiently skilled people available in the Country can affect the performance of the Company.

### 8. Resistance to change and fixed mind sets of the Management and employees can lead to ineffective adaptation of new technologies, processes and lean manufacturing.

The fastener industry as well as Engineering and other allied industries is characterized by frequent advancements in technology. To meet our clients' needs and also to keep pace with our competitors, we regularly update existing technology and acquire or develop new technology for our manufacturing activities. For this, we need skilled labour and skilled executives and other senior management members for the same. In addition to the above, rapid and frequent advancements in technology and market demand changes can often render existing technologies and equipment redundant and obsolete which would require substantial new capital expenditures and/or write-downs of assets. The existing manpower is regularly assessed on their skill matrix and training is imparted to them after identifying the gaps. Our failure to anticipate or to respond adequately to advancements in technology, changes in market demand or client requirements could adversely affect our business and financial condition.

### 9. The threat perception arising out of 3D printing/additive manufacturing cannot be ignored in the years to come.

Additive manufacturing (AM), also known as 3D printing, is a transformative approach to industrial production that enables the creation of lighter, stronger parts and systems. If we stay oblivious to the same and do not adapt such new approach(es), our business, future growth & competitive abilities may be adversely affected.

### **EXTERNAL RISKS:**

### 10. The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic worldwide and on MFL's business and operations is uncertain and cannot be predicted.

In late 2019, the COVID-19 disease, commonly known as "novel coronavirus", was first reported in Wuhan, China. On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the COVID-19 outbreak a "Public Health Emergency of International Concern" and on March 11, 2020 it was declared a pandemic.

Several countries' governments including India and numerous companies have imposed increasingly stringent restrictions to help avoid, or slow down, the spreading of COVID-19, including, for example, restrictions on international and local travel, public gatherings and participation in meetings, as well as closures of non-essential services, universities, schools, stores, restaurants and other key service providers, with some countries imposing strict curfews. These measures have led to a significant decline in economic activities in India and abroad.

COVID - 19 pandemic has caused serious disruption on the global economic and business environment. COVID 19 has significant impact on business operations of our Company. There is a huge uncertainty with regard to its impact which cannot be reasonably determined at this stage. Based on the current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company estimates to recover the carrying amount of its assets. The Company has adequate liquidity to discharge its obligations. These estimates are subject to uncertainty and may be affected by the severity and duration of the pandemic. The Company is continuously monitoring any material changes in future economic conditions.

### 11. MFL's business is substantially affected by prevailing economic, political and other prevailing conditions in India.

Our Company is incorporated in India and we derive a reasonable portion of our revenues in India. In addition, our assets and employees are also located in India. As a result, we are highly dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and our results of operations are significantly affected by factors influencing the Indian economy. Consequently, our performance and liquidity of our Equity Shares may be affected by changes in foreign exchange rates and controls, interest rates, Government policies, taxation, social and ethnic instability and other political and economic developments affecting India.

In recent years, the successive Indian governments have generally pursued a course of economic liberalization and deregulation aimed at accelerating the pace of economic growth and development. This includes liberalizing rules and limits for foreign direct investment in a number of important sectors of the Indian economy including infrastructure, railways, services, pharmaceuticals and insurance. In addition, the current Indian government has pursued a number of other economic reforms, including the introduction of a goods and services tax, increased infrastructure spending and a new Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code.

A significant change in India's economic liberalization and deregulation policies, in particular, those relating to the businesses in which we operate, could disrupt business and economic conditions in India generally and our business in particular.

A change in the Government's policy on tariffs, direct and indirect taxation and fiscal or other incentives could adversely affect

#### MFL's business.

Our profitability is also significantly dependent on the policies of the central and state governments in India relating to various direct and indirect taxes (including sales tax, goods and service tax and income tax), duties and levies (including excise duties and import duties) and fiscal or other incentives or schemes. Any adverse change in policies relating to such taxes, duties or incentives could affect our profitability.

### 12. MFL operations are susceptible to volatility of prices of our products and the loss of customers can have a bearing on the operations of the Company.

Prices of our products are subject to fluctuation, primarily depending upon prices of Steel, Oils & Lubricants, Inward and outward freight &, packing material as Direct costs, over and above many other factors like the number of producers in the region/country, their production volumes and changes in demand in the markets that we serve and many more. Volatility in price realization and loss of customers may adversely affect our profitability. Further, there is no assurance that we will be able to maintain our low cost of operations or to further reduce costs or develop new cost effective processes in the future.

### 13. Any terrorist attacks or social unrest and natural disasters occur in India; could adversely affect MFL's business, operations and financial condition.

Increased political instability, evidenced by the threat or occurrence of terrorist attacks, enhanced national security measures, conflicts in several regions in which we operate, strained relations arising from these conflicts and the related decline in customer confidence may hinder our ability to do business.

Natural disasters such as floods, earthquakes, famines and pandemics have in the past had a negative impact on the Indian economy, with the most recent example being the global outbreak of COVID-19. If any such event were to occur, our business could be affected due to the event itself or due to the inability to effectively manage the effects of the particular event. Potential effects include the damage to infrastructure, damage to our telecom and refinery assets and the loss of business continuity or business information. In the event that our facilities are affected by any of these factors, our operations may be significantly interrupted, which may materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

### 14. MFL foresees competition from existing and future indigenous manufacturers of Industrial High Tensile Fasteners which may have adverse effect on our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

We operate in a competitive business environment. The fastener segment in which our company is currently operating and further expanding into is constantly evolving with capacity additions and addition of new suppliers. Growing competition may subject us to pricing pressures and require us to reduce the prices of our products and services in order to retain or attract customers, which may have a material adverse effect on our revenues and margins. Further, several of our competitors whether in India or overseas are larger international and national companies and have access to greater resources, wider geographical reach, broader product ranges or may be able to develop or acquire technology or partner with innovators or customers at terms which are not presently feasible for us, due to our current scale of operations. Further, they may succeed in developing products that are far more effective, more technologically advanced, more popular or cheaper than our products. Any of these factors may have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

### RISKS RELATING TO THE ISSUE AND THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES

1. Our Company will not distribute the Letter of Offer and Application Form to certain overseas Shareholders who have not provided an address in India for service of documents.

Our Company will dispatch the Abridged Letter of Offer, Rights Entitlement Letter and Application Form (the "Issue Materials") to the shareholders who have provided an address in India for service of documents. The Issue Materials will not be distributed to addresses outside India on account of restrictions that apply to circulation of such materials in overseas jurisdictions. However, the Companies Act, 2013 requires companies to serve documents at any address which may be provided by the members as well as through e-mail. Presently, there is lack of clarity under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder with respect to distribution of Issue Materials in overseas jurisdictions where such distribution may be prohibited under the applicable laws of such jurisdictions. While we have requested all the shareholders to provide an address in India for the purposes of distribution of Issue Materials, we cannot assure you that the regulator or authorities would not adopt a different view with respect to compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and may subject us to fines or penalties.

2. Investors may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares.

Under current Indian tax laws, unless specifically exempted, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares of an Indian company are generally taxable in India. Any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares on a stock exchange held for more than 12 months will not be subject to long-term capital gains tax in India if Securities Transaction Tax ("STT") is paid on the sale transaction and additionally, as stipulated by the Finance Act, 2017, STT had been paid at the time of acquisition of such equity shares, except in the case of such acquisitions where STT could not have been paid, as notified by the Government of India under notification no. 43/2017/F. No. 370142/09/2017-TPL on June 5, 2017. However, Finance Act, 2018, taxes such long term capital gains exceeding ₹ 1.00 Lakh arising from sale of equity shares on or after April 1, 2018. Accordingly, you may be subject to payment of long-term capital gains tax in India, in addition to payment of STT, on the sale of any Equity Shares held for more than 12 months. STT will be levied on and collected by a domestic stock exchange on which the Equity Shares are sold. Further, any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares held for a period of 12 months or less will be subject to short-term capital gains tax in India. Capital gains arising from the sale of the Equity Shares may be partially or completely exempt from taxation in India in cases where such exemption is provided under a treaty between India and the country of which the seller is a resident. Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit India's ability to impose tax on capital gains.

As a result, residents of other countries may be liable for tax in India as well as in their own jurisdiction on gains made upon the sale of the Equity Shares:

3. Any future issuance of the Rights Equity Shares, or convertible securities or other equity linked securities by our Company may dilute your future shareholding and sales of the Rights Equity Shares by the Promoter or Promoter Group or other major shareholders of our Company may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, or convertible securities or other equity linked securities by our Company, may lead to dilution of your shareholding in our Company, adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares and our ability to raise capital through an issue of our securities. Any future sales of Equity Shares by the Promoter or other major shareholders of our Company may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. In addition, any perception by investors that such issuances or sales might occur could also affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

4. The entitlement of Rights Equity Shares to be allotted to investors applying for Allotment in physical form, may be kept in abeyance.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the option to receive the Rights Equity Shares in physical form will not be available after a period of six months from the date of coming into force of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, i.e., May 10, 2019. Since, the Rights Equity Shares offered pursuant to this Issue will be Allotted only after May 10, 2019, the entitlement of Rights Equity Shares to be Allotted to the Applicants who have applied for Allotment of the Rights Equity Shares in physical form will be kept in abeyance in electronic mode by our Company until the Applicants provide details of their demat account particulars to the Registrar. Pursuant to a press release dated December 3, 2018 issued by the SEBI, with effect from April 1, 2019, a transfer of listed Equity Shares cannot be processed unless the Equity Shares are held in dematerialized form (except in case of transmission or transposition of Equity Shares). For further details, see the section on "Issue information" on page 120 of this Letter of Offer.

5. The Issue Price of our Rights Equity Shares may not be indicative of the market price of our Equity Shares after the Issue.

The Issue Price of Equity Shares may not be indicative of the market price for our Equity Shares after the Issue. The market price of the Equity Shares could be subject to significant fluctuations after the issue and may decline below the Issue Price. There can

be no assurance that the Investors will be able to sell their Equity Shares at or above the Issue Price. The factors that could affect our share price are:

- Quarterly variations in the rate of growth of our financial indicators such as earnings per share;
- Changes in revenue or earnings estimates or publications of research reports by analysts;
- Speculation in the press or investment community;
- General market conditions.

### 6. SEBI has recently, by way of circulars dated January 22, 2020, May 6, 2020 and January 19, 2021, streamlined the process of rights issues.

The concept of crediting Rights Entitlements into the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders has recently been introduced by the SEBI. Accordingly, the process for such Rights Entitlements has been recently devised by capital market intermediaries. Eligible Equity Shareholders are encouraged to exercise caution, carefully follow the requirements as stated in the SEBI circulars dated January 22, 2020, May 6, 2020 and January 19, 2021, and ensure completion of all necessary steps in relation to providing/updating their demat account details in a timely manner. For details, see "*Terms of the Issue*" on page 120 of this Letter of Offer.

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in dematerialised form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow account opened by our Company, for the Eligible Equity Shareholders which would comprise Rights Entitlements relating to (a) Equity Shares held in a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; or (b) Equity Shares held in the account of IEPF authority; or (c) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder which are frozen or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar on the Record Date; or (d) credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or (e) the ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including any court proceedings.

### 7. The R-WAP payment mechanism facility proposed to be used for this Issue may be exposed to risks, including risks associated with payment gateways.

In accordance with SEBI circulars dated May 6, 2020, July 24, 2020, January 19, 2021, April 22, 2021 and October 01, 2021, a separate web-based application platform, i.e., the R-WAP facility (accessible at <a href="https://www.skylinerta.com/rightissues/">https://www.skylinerta.com/rightissues/</a>), has been instituted for making an Application in this Issue by resident Investors. Further, R-WAP is only an additional option and not a replacement of the ASBA process. On R-WAP, the Eligible Shareholders can access and fill the Application Form in electronic mode and make online payment using the internet banking or UPI facility from their own bank account thereat. For details, see "Terms of the Issue" on page number 120 of this Letter of Offer. Such payment gateways and mechanisms are faced with risks such as:

- keeping information technology systems aligned and up to date with the rapidly evolving technology;
- in the payment services industries;
- scaling up technology infrastructure to meet requirements of growing volumes;
- applying risk management policy effectively to such payment mechanisms;
- keeping users' data safe and free from security breaches; and
- effectively managing payment solutions logistics and technology infrastructure.

Further, R-WAP is a new facility which has been instituted due to challenges arising out of COVID-19 pandemic. We cannot assure you that R-WAP facility will not suffer from any unanticipated system failure or breakdown or delay, including failure on part of the payment gateway, and therefore, your application may not be completed or rejected. These risks are indicative and any failure to manage them effectively can impair the efficacy and functioning of the payment mechanism for this Issue. Since Application process through R-WAP is different from the ASBA process, there can be no assurance that investors will not find difficulties in accessing and using the R-WAP facility.

### SECTION III - INTRODUCTION

### THE ISSUE

This Issue has been authorized through a resolution passed by our Board at its meeting held on February 10, 2021 pursuant to Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013. The following is a summary of the Issue. This summary should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the information detailed in the chapter titled as "*Terms of the Issue*" on page number 120 this Letter of Offer.

Particulars	Details of Equity Shares
Rights Equity Shares offered in the Issue	Upto 5,35,680 Rights Equity Shares
Rights Entitlement	1(ONE) Rights Equity Shares for every 10 (TEN) fully paid-up Equity Shares held on the Record Date
Record Date	Thursday, January 06, 2022
Face Value per Rights Equity Share	Rs. 10/- each
Issue Price	Rs. 90/- including a premium of Rs. 80/- per Rights Equity Share
Issue size	Upto 5,35,680 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each for cash at a price of Rs. 90/- (including a premium of Rs. 80/- per Rights Equity Share not exceeding an amount of Rs. 4,82,11,200/-)
Equity Shares issued and outstanding prior to the Issue	54,71,300 Equity Shares
Equity Shares subscribed and paid up outstanding prior to the Issue	53,56,800 Equity Shares
Equity Shares outstanding after the Issue (assuming full subscription for and Allotment of the Rights Entitlement)	58,92,480 Equity Shares
Terms of the Issue	Please refer to "Terms of the Issue" on page number 120 of this Letter of Offer
Use of Issue Proceeds	For further information, see "Objects of the Issue" on page number 35 of this Letter of Offer
Security Codes	Symbol: MFL Face Value: Rs. 10.00 ISIN: INE705H01011 Industry: INDUSTRIAL METAL N MINING
Use of Issue Proceeds	For details, please refer to the chapter titled "Objects of the Issue" on page number 35 of this Letter of Offer.
Terms of the Issue	For details, please refer to the chapter titled "Terms of the Issue" on page number 120 of this Letter of Offer

### **Issue Schedule**

The subscription will open upon the commencement of the banking hours and will close upon the close of banking hours on the dates mentioned below:

Event	Indicative Date
Issue Opening Date	Monday, January 24, 2022
Last date for On Market Renunciation of Rights	Monday, February 07, 2022
Issue Closing Date*	Friday, February 11, 2022

<sup>\*</sup> The Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee (if any) thereof will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may determine from time to time, provided that the Issue will not remain open in excess of 30 (thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date

#### **GENERAL INFORMATION**

MOHINDRA FASTENERS LIMITED (MFL) was incorporated as a Public Limited Company on 10th January, 1995 under the Companies Act, 1956 with the Registrar of Companies, New Delhi. The Certificate of Commencement of business was obtained by the Company on 22nd February, 1995 and began the commercial production in the beginning of year 1997. Over the years, it has successfully emerged as a name to reckon with in the Indian Fastener industry. The company offers a wide range of cold and hot forged fasteners and precision machined components for automotive and industrial applications. The CIN of the Company is L74899DL1995PLC064215

### **Registered Office of our Company:**

Mohindra Fasteners Limited 304 Gupta Arcade, Inder Enclave Delhi-Rohtak Road, New Delhi, 110087 CIN: L74899DL1995PLC064215 Registration Number: 064215

### **Corporate Office of our Company:**

303-304, Dimension Vardhman Plaza, Paschim Vihar, Delhi-Rohtak Road, New Delhi-110087

### Company's Factory(work) Plants:

Plant I: 60th K.M. Stone, Delhi – Rohtak Road, Kharawar, Rohtak – 124 001, Haryana, India;

Plant II: 60th K. M. Stone, Delhi - Rohtak Road N. H. No. 10, V & P.O. Gandhra, District Rohtak, Haryana, 124001

Plant III: Plot no. 42, 43, & 44, Sector – 31B, IMT Rohtak, Haryana, 124001 (under construction)

Plant IV: 70th K.M. Stone, Delhi - Rohtak Road N. H. No. 10, V & P.O. Kharawar, District Rohtak, Haryana, 124001

### **Registrar of Companies**

Our Company is registered with the ROC situated at the following address:

Registrar of Companies 4th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019

### **Board of Directors of our Company**

The Board of our Company as on the date of filing this Letter of Offer comprises of the following:

DIN	Name	Begin date	Address
00006112	Deepak Arneja	10/01/1995	C-1/21, Model Town III, North West, Delhi- 110009
00006496	Ravinder Mohan Juneja	10/01/1995	1189/23, D.L.F Colony, Rohtak, Haryana-124001
00179636	Gagandeep Singh Narang	15/02/2016	A-135, New Friends Colony, Delhi-110025
02303504	Vinod Kumar	21/12/2013	11096, 2 Karol Bagh, Dori Wallan, Karol Bagh, S.O, Central Delhi-110005
07572208	Ved Prakash Chaudhry	30/07/2016	House No B - 3, Main Rohtak Road, Shiv Vihar, Paschim Vihar, Delhi- 110087
08189763	Shamoli Thakur	03/08/2018	H. No 62, Sector 17A, Gurgaon, Haryana- 122001

For further details of our Board of Directors, see "Our Management" on page number 45 of this Letter of Offer.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSSONEL OF THE COMPANY	DETAILS OF KEY INTERMEDIARIES PERTAINING TO THIS ISSUE OF OUR COMPANY	
Chief Financial Officer	Lead Manager to the Issue	
Mr. Sunil Mishra 304 Gupta Arcade, Inder Enclave Delhi-Rohtak Road, New Delhi -110087 Telephone: 011-46200404 Email: sunil.mishra@mohindra.asia	Intellicity Capital Advisers Private Limited Plot No93 Pocket-2, First Floor, Jasola, Near DAV School, Delhi-110025 Email Id- info@intellicitycapital.com SEBI Registered Category I Merchant Banker SEBI Registration No: INM000012777 Telephone: +011-47366600 Investor grievance E-mail: investorsrelation@intellicitycapital.com Website: www.intellicitycapital.com Contact Person: Mr. Arpit Suri	
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer	Registrar to the Issue	
Nidhi Pathak 304 Gupta Arcade, Inder Enclave Delhi-Rohtak Road, New Delhi -110087 Telephone: 011-46200406 Email: csnidhipathak@mohindra.asia	Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. D-153/A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area Phase-I, New Delhi- 110020 Phone No- 011- 40450193-97 Email: admin@skylinerta.com Contact Person: Ms. Rati Gupta SEBI Registration No.: INR000003241	

### **Bankers to the Issue:**

The Banker to the Issue and the Refund Bank shall be ICICI Bank Limited bearing the below mentioned details:

### **ICICI Bank Limited**

Registered Office: ICICI Bank Towers,

Neat Chakli Circle

Old Padra Road, Vadodra, Gujarat 390007

Website: <a href="www.icicibank.com">www.icicibank.com</a>
CIN: L65190GJ1994PLC021012

For the purpose of being the Banker to the Issue and Refund Bank to the Rights Issue of our Company, ICICI Bank Limited shall be

acting through their branch situated at:

### ICICI Bank Limited Branch Capital Markets Division,

**Branch Address:** 1<sup>st</sup> Floor, 122 Mistry Bhavan

Dinshaw Vachha Road,

Backbay Reclamation, Churchgate Mumbai 400020, Maharashtra **Contact Person:** Namrata Jadhav

E-mail ID: namrata.jadhav@ext.icicibank.com

**Telephone:** 022-66818926 **Website:** www.icicibank.com **CIN:** L65190GJ1994PLC021012

### Refund bank account details:

### **ICICI Bank Limited**

Branch Address: Sagar Avenue, opposite Shoppers Stop

SV Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai 400058, Maharashtra IFSC Code: ICIC0000011 NEFT Code: ICIC0SF0002 Contact Person: Namrata Jadhav

E-mail ID: namrata.jadhav@ext.icicibank.com

Telephone: 022-66818926 Website: www.icicibank.com CIN: L65190GJ1994PLC021012

### **Designated Intermediaries to the Issue**

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as Bankers to the Issue under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Bankers to an Issue) Regulations, 1994, for the ASBA process in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations is provided on the website of SEBI at <a href="https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=35">https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=35</a> and updated from time to time. Further, details relating to designated branches of Bankers to the Issue collecting the ASBA application forms are available at the above-mentioned link.

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-Issue/post-Issue related matters such as non-receipt of letter of Allotment, credit of Rights Equity Shares or Refund Orders and such other matters. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, with a copy to the Bankers to the Issue, giving full details such as name, address of the applicant, number of Rights Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked, ASBA Account number and the Designated Branch of the Bankers to the Issue where the Application was submitted by the ASBA Investors.

### **Experts**

Our Company has received a written consent from the Statutory Auditors namely, M/s B. L. Khandelwal & Co (Practicing Chartered Accountant) 1, Doctor Lane, Gole Market, New Delhi –110001, to include their name as required under Section 26(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, and as "experts", as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act 2013, to the extent and in their capacity as an auditor and in respect of their (a) audit report dated May 30, 2019 on our financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019, their (b) audit report dated 29<sup>th</sup> June, 2020 (c) audit report dated 26<sup>th</sup> June, 2021 on our financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 and unaudited financial results for the three months period ended June 30, 2021 (d) their report dated Wednesday, August 18, 2021 on the Statement of Possible Special Tax Benefits included in this Letter of Offer, and such consent has not been withdrawn as on the date of this Letter of Offer. However, the term "expert" shall not be construed to mean an "expert" as defined under U.S. Securities Act, 1933.

### **Filing**

This Letter of Offer is being filed with Stock Exchange and SEBI, as per the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Further, in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company will file this Letter of Offer with the Designated Stock Exchange and further the LOF shall be submitted with SEBI on this e-mail address: sebinro@sebi.gov.in and sebi@sebi.gov.in Simultaneously our Company will send a hard copy of the LOF to the Securities Exchange Board of India, Northern Regional Office situated at NBCC Complex, Office Tower-1, 8th Floor, Plate B, East Kidwai Nagar, New Delhi – 110023.

### **Monitoring Agency**

Since the issue size is less than Rs. 10,000 Lakhs, there is no requirement to appoint the monitoring agency to monitor the utilization of the Net Proceeds in terms of Regulation 82(1) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations by our Company.

### **Appraising Entity**

The objects of this issue have not been appraised by any bank or any other independent financial institution or any other independent agency.

### **Credit Rating**

As this is an issue of Rights Equity Shares, there is no credit rating required for the Issue.

### **Debenture Trustee**

As this is an Issue of the Rights Equity Shares, the appointment of debenture trustee is not required.

### Underwriting

The Issue of Rights Equity Shares is not being underwritten and/or no standby support is being sought for the said Issue.

### Statement of Responsibility of the Lead Manager

Intellicity Capital Advisers Private Limited is the sole Lead Manager to the Issue. The details of responsibilities of the Lead Manager, is as follows:

No.	Activities
1.	Capital structuring with relative components and formalities such as type of instruments, etc.
2.	Drafting and design of the offer document and of advertisement / publicity material including newspaper
	advertisements and brochure / memorandum containing salient features of the Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, CAF, etc. To ensure compliance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and
	other stipulated requirements and completion of prescribed formalities with Stock Exchange and SEBI.
3.	Marketing of the Issue will cover, inter alia, preparation of publicity budget, arrangements for selection of
	(i) ad-media, (ii) bankers to the issue, (iii) collection centers (iv) distribution of publicity and issue material
	including CAF, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Letter of Offer to the extent applicable.
4.	Selection of various agencies connected with the issue, namely Registrar to the Issue, Bankers to the Issue, printers, advertisement agencies, etc.
5.	Follow-up with Bankers to the Issue to get estimates of collection and advising our Company about closure of the Issue, based on the correct figures.
6.	Post-Issue activities will involve essential follow-up steps, which must include finalization of basis of
	allotment / weeding out of multiple applications, listing of instruments with the various agencies connected
	with the work such as Registrars to the Issue and Bankers to the Issue. Even if many of these Post-Issue
	activities would be handled by other intermediaries, the Lead Manager shall be responsible for ensuring that
	such agencies fulfill their functions and enable it to discharge this responsibility through suitable
	agreements with our Company.

### **Issue Schedule:**

Issue Opening Date:	MONDAY, JANUARY 24, 2022
Last date for on market renunciation of rights	MONDAY, FEBRUARY 07, 2022
Issue Closing Date:	FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 2022

The Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee (if any) thereof will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may determine from time to time, provided the Issue will not be kept open in excess of 30 days from the Issue Opening Date. No withdrawal of application by eligible shareholders shall be allowed after issue closing date.

#### CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Equity Share capital of our Company as on the date of this Letter of Offer is as set forth below:

(Amount in Rs.)

S. No.		Aggregate Value at Face Value	Aggregate value at Issue Price
A	Authorised Share Capital		
	1,75,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each	17,50,00,000	
В	Issued Capital before the Issue		
В	54,71,300 Equity Shares of 10/- each	5,47,13,000	
	54,71,500 Equity Shares of 10/- each	3,47,13,000	
С	Subscribed and Paid-Up Capital before the Issue		
	53,56,800 Equity Shares of 10/- each	5,35,68,000	
D	Present Issue being offered to the Equity Shareholders through the Letter of Offer aggregating upto 5,35,680 Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10/- each.		
	5,35,680 Rights Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. Rs. 80/- i.e. at an Issue Price of Rs. 90/- per Equity Share.	53,56,800	4,82,11,200
E	Issue Capital after the Offer		
	60,06,980 Equity Shares of 10/- each (2)	6,00,69,800	
F	Subscribed and Paid-up Capital after the Offer		
	58,92,480 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each	5,89,24,800	
G	Securities Premium Account	4,28,5	<u> </u> 4,400
	Before the Issue	-	
	After the Issue <sup>(2)</sup>	4,28,5	4,400

<sup>1.</sup> The Issue has been authorised by a resolution of our Board passed at its meeting held on February 10, 2021, pursuant to Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013.

### NOTES TO THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

### 1. Intention and extent of participation by our Promoters and Promoter Group in the Issue:

Our Promoters and Promoter Group have, *vide* their letters (the "Subscription Letters") undertaken to: (a) subscribe, jointly and/ or severally to the full extent of their Rights Entitlement and subscribe to the full extent of any Rights Entitlement that may be renounced in their favour by any other Promoters or member(s) of the Promoter Group of our Company; and (b) subscribe to, either individually or jointly and/ or severally with any other Promoters or member of the Promoter Group, for additional Rights Equity Shares, including subscribing to unsubscribed portion (if any) in the Issue.

Such subscription for Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlement, if allotted, may result in an increase in their percentage shareholding. Any such acquisition of additional Rights Equity Shares (including any unsubscribed portion of the Issue) is exempt in terms of Regulation 10(4)(b) of the Takeover Regulations as conditions mentioned therein have been fulfilled and shall not result in a change of control of the management of our Company in accordance with provisions of the Takeover Regulations.

The additional subscription by the promoters shall be made subject to such additional subscription not resulting in the minimum public shareholding of the issuer falling below the level prescribed in LODR/ SCRR. Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements pursuant to the Issue.

<sup>2.</sup> Assuming full subscription for and allotment of the Rights Entitlement.

2. The ex-rights price of the Rights Equity Shares as per Regulation 10(4)(b) of the Takeover Regulations cannot be determined since the shares of the Company have not been traded on MSEI during the Financial Year 2020-21, market price of the MSEI is not available, so the Company is unable to determine the ex-rights price of the Rights Equity Shares as per Regulation 10(4)(b) of the Takeover Regulation. Hence the Issue Price of Rs.90/- (including premium of Rs.80/-) has been decided by the Board in consultation with the Lead Manager.

### 3. Shareholding Pattern of our Company as per the last filing with the Stock Exchanges

(i) The shareholding pattern of our Company as on September 30, 2021, is as follows:

Category of shareholder	Nos. of shareholders	No. of fully paid up Equity Shares held	Total no of Equity Shares held	Shareholding as a % of total no. of Equity Shares (calculated as per SCRR, 1957) As a% of (A+B+C2)	Equity Shares held in
(A) Promoter & Promoter Group	21	3754700	3754700	70.09	3752100
(B) Public	489	1602100	1602100	29.91	1313900
<b>Grand Total</b>	510	5356800	5356800	100.00	5066000

(ii) Statement showing holding securities of persons belonging to the category "Promoter and Promoter Group" as on September 30, 2021:

Category of shareholder	Nos. of shareholders	No. of fully paid up Equity Shares held	Total no of Equity Shares held	Shareholding as a % of total no. of Equity Shares (calculated as per SCRR, 1957) As a % of (A+B+C2)	Number of Equity Shares held in dematerialized form
1. INDIAN					
a. Individuals/ Hindu undivided family	20	3542700	3542700	66.13	3540100
b. Any other (i + ii)	1	212000	212000	3.96	212000
i. Bodies corporate	1	212000	212000	3.96	212000
ii. Directors and their relatives	0	0	0	0	0
2. FOREIGN	0	0	0	0	0
Total (1+2)	21	3754700	3754700	70.09	3752100

(iii) Statement showing holding of securities of persons belonging to the "Public" category as on September 30, 2021:

Category of shareholder		paid-up Equity		as a % of total no. of Equity Shares	
1.INSTITUTIONS					
Mutual Funds	1	19600	19600	0.37	0
Financial	0	0	0	0	0
Institutions/ Banks					
2.CENTRAL GOVERNMENT/ STATE GOVERNMENT( S)/ PRESIDENT OF INDIA	0	0	0	0	0
3. NON-					
INSTITUTIONS					
(i) Individual share capital up to 2 Lakhs	472	550050	550050	10.27	303450
(ii) Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital in excess of 2 Lakhs.	3	917800	917800	17.13	917800
*Kanta Devi	1	859400	859400	16.04	859400
(iii) Body Corporates	8	84700	84700	1.58	62700
*SUMU Financial Services Private Limited	1	62000	62000	1.16	57000
(iv) Resident Indian HUF	4	3550	3550	0.066	3550
(v) IEPF	1	26400	26400	0.49	26400
TOTAL	488	1582500	1582500	29.54	1313900
(i+ii+iii+iv+v)					
Total Public Shareholding 1+2+3	489	1602100	1602100	29.91	1313900

<sup>\*</sup>Public Shareholder holding more than 1% of the total shares outstanding of the Company

- **4.** As on the date of this Letter of Offer, Our Company does not have any outstanding warrants, options, convertible loans, debentures or any other securities which are convertible at a later date into Equity Shares.
- **5.** The Equity Shares of our Company are fully paid up and there are no partly paid up Equity Shares as on the date of this Letter of Offer.
- **6.** Our Company does not have any stock option scheme.

- 7. None of the Equity Shares held by our Promoters or the members of our Promoter Group are locked-in, pledged or otherwise encumbered.
- 8. The Issue being a Rights Issue, as per the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the requirements of Promoter's contribution and the lockin are not applicable. Our Promoters or members of the Promoter Group have not acquired Equity Shares of our Company during the last one year immediately preceding the date of filing of this Letter of Offer with SEBI.

Except as disclosed below, no Equity Shares have been acquired by our Promoter or Promoter Group in the last one year immediately preceding the date of this Letter of Offer:

Name of the Promoter/Promoter Group	Date of the Transaction	Number of Equity Shares acquired/sold	Price per Equity Shares (in Rs.)	Nature of Transaction
Promoter Group:		<b>'</b>		
Livleen Singh Narang	30.03.2021	118300(sold)	Without consideration	Inter-se transfer by way of gift
Gagandeep Singh Narang	30.03.2021	46500	Without consideration	Inter-se transfer by way of gift
Gobindpreet Singh Narang	30.03.2021	71800	Without consideration	Inter-se transfer by way of gift
Promoter Group:	I	1	I	1
Kawaljeet Kaur Narang	25.06.2021	210700	Nil	Transmission of shares held by Late Mr. J P Singh Narang (Promoter)

9. Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter and Promoter Group in the Issue:

Our Promoter(s) and entities forming part of our Promoter Group have, *vide* their letters dated 18/08/2021 (the "Subscription Letters") undertaken to: (a) subscribe, jointly and/ or severally to the full extent of their Rights Entitlement and subscribe to the full extent of any Rights Entitlement that may be renounced in their favour by any other Promoter or member(s) of the Promoter Group of our Company; and (b) subscribe to, either individually or jointly and/ or severally with any other Promoter or member of the Promoter Group, for additional Rights Equity Shares, including subscribing to unsubscribed portion (if any) in the Issue.

- 10. Such subscription for Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlement, if allotted, may result in an increase in their percentage shareholding. Any such acquisition of additional Rights Equity Shares (including any unsubscribed portion of the Issue) is exempt in terms of Regulation 10(4)(b) of the Takeover Regulations as conditions mentioned therein have been fulfilled and shall not result in a change of control of the management of our Company in accordance with provisions of the Takeover Regulations. The additional subscription by the promoters shall be made subject to such additional subscription not resulting in the minimum public shareholding of the issuer falling below the level prescribed in LODR/SCRR.
- 11. Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements pursuant to the Issue.

#### **OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE**

The main object clause of MOA of our Company enables us to undertake the existing activities and the activities for which the funds are being raised through the Issue. Further, we confirm that the activities which we have been carrying out till date are in accordance with the object clause of our MOA.

1. Object of the issue: - To meet the funding needs of expansion plan i.e. Green Field Project coming up at IMT Rohtak, Haryana.

The proposed project: For the initializing, developing and starting up of the project `Green Field Project/Construction' which involves the factory building situated at Plant-III as well as the `Purchasing & installation of plant & machinery' at the premises located on the address Plant-III situated at Plot no. 42, 43 & 44, Sector-31B, IMT Rohtak, Haryana, which has a total project cost amounting to Rs. 3000.00 Lakhs (Rupees Thirty Crores only) excluding the cost of land of Rs. 800.00 Lakhs(self-acquired). The area for the said premises is admeasuring Three (3) acres of the land purchased from the HSIIDC Panchkula, Haryana in the year 2014, for which the payment cycle was finalized on a half yearly installments basis and the Conveyance Deed has been executed between the Company and HSIIDC on June, 2017.

The details of the Proposed Capital Expenditure: Rs. 3000.00 Lakhs comprises and includes of:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Capital Expenditure	Cost	Position as on present date
Building premises	800.00	Proposed
		_
**P&M	2100.00	Proposed
Other F/A	100.00	Proposed
Total	3000.00	Proposed

Tenure of the proposed project: The construction activities are likely to be completed in the new Plant III by January/February, 2022. The Commercial production and the business operations & activities in the new Plant III would tentatively start from March/April, 2022.

Sources being arranged by the Company for the initializing of funding:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Source(s)	Amount Involved
Proposed Right Issue	482.11
*Borrowings from Bank	2100.00
Internal Accruals	417.89
Total	3000.00

<sup>\*</sup>The term loan of Rs. 21.00 Crores have been sanctioned to the Company by the Karnataka Bank Limited vide their sanction letter ref. no. MDS[CSD]120/2021-2022 dated 04.11.2021 for funding of the above project.

### 2. Expenses for the issue

The Issue related expenses consist of fees payable to the Lead Manager, processing fee to the SCSBs, Registrars to the Issue, printing and stationery expenses, advertising expenses and all other incidental and miscellaneous expenses for listing the Rights Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. Our Company will need approximately Rs. 20.00/- lakhs towards these expenses; a break-up of the same is as follows:

(in lakhs)

Activity	<b>Estimated Expense</b>	% of Total Expense	As a % of Issue size
Fees payable to the intermediaries (including Lead Manager fees, Banker to the Issue, Registrar to the	6.5	32.50	1.35
Issue, Auditor's fees, including out of			

<sup>\*\*</sup>Additionally, the process for ordering of machines for the Plant III have already been started and bookings have been done after making payment of advances for the machines and the delivery of the machines is expected from January/February, 2022.

pocket expenses and other expense(s))			
Advertising, Printing, stationery and distribution Expenses	3.5	17.50	0.73
Regulatory fees, filing fees, Statutory fees, listing fees and other Miscellaneous Expense	10.00	50	2.07
Total	20.00	100	4.15

### 3. General Corporate Purposes

We intend to deploy no fund from proceeds of the Rights Issue towards General Corporate Purposes including but not restricted to, future growth requirements, capital expenditure, and otherwise meeting the exigencies faced in the ordinary course of business, or any other purposes as approved by our Board. The company will deploy rights issue proceeds judiciously to meet the requirements of the business. However, not more than 25% of the proceeds of the issue would be deployed for the General Corporate purposes.

### **Schedule of Utilization and Deployment of Funds**

Our Company proposes to deploy the entire Issue proceeds towards the Objects as described during Fiscal 2022. In the event of the estimated utilization of the Issue proceeds in the scheduled Fiscal is not undertaken in its entirety, the remaining Issue proceeds shall be utilized in subsequent Fiscals, as may be decided by our Company, in accordance with applicable laws. Further, if the Issue proceeds are not completely utilized for the Objects during the respective period stated above due to factors such as:

- (i) economic and business conditions;
- (ii) timely completion of the Issue;
- (iii) market conditions outside the control of our Company; and
- (iv) any other commercial considerations, the remaining Issue proceeds shall be utilized (in part or full) in subsequent periods as may be determined by our Company in accordance with applicable laws.

Similarly, subject to our business considerations, our Company may also use the Issue proceeds in the preceding Fiscal, if it is in the best interests of our Company.

The requirement and deployment of funds indicated above is based on internal management estimates, current circumstances of our business and prevailing market conditions.

For details, see "Risk Factors – The Objects for which we propose to utilize Issue proceeds are not appraised by any Bank or Financial Institution and our Management will have flexibility in applying the issue proceeds." on page number 20 of this Letter of Offer.

### Sources of financing of funds already deployed

Our Company has deployed **Rs. 20.00 Lakhs as** towards issue expense as certified by M/s B. L. Khandelwal & Co., (Chartered Accountants) bearing Firm Registration Number: 000998N *vide* certificate dated 31<sup>st</sup> December, 2021. The same have been funded through internal accruals.

### Strategic and/ or Financial Partners

There are no Strategic and Financial partners.

### **Appraisal**

None of the Objects of the Issue have been appraised by any bank or financial institution.

### **Bridge Financing Facilities**

We have not availed any bridge financing facilities for the meeting the expense as stated under the Objects of the Issue.

### **Interim use of Funds**

The Issue proceeds pending utilization for the objects described above shall be deposited with scheduled commercial banks included in second schedule of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

### **Monitoring of Utilization of Funds**

Since the proceeds from the Issue are less than 10,000 lakhs, in terms of Regulation 82(4) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, our Company is not required to appoint a monitoring agency for this Issue. Our Board of Directors will monitor the utilization of the Issue proceeds. The Company will disclose the utilization of the Issue proceeds under a separate head in our balance sheet along with the relevant details, for all such amounts that have not been utilized. The Company will indicate investments, if any, of unutilized Issue Proceeds in the Balance Sheet of the Company for the relevant Financial Years subsequent to receipt of listing and trading approvals from the Stock Exchanges.

Pursuant to Clause 32 of the SEBI Listing Regulation, the Company shall, on a quarterly basis, disclose to the Audit Committee the uses and applications of the Issue Proceeds. In accordance with Clause 32 of the SEBI Listing Regulation, the Company shall furnish to the Stock Exchanges, on a quarterly basis, a statement on material deviations, if any, in the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue from the objects of the Issue as stated above. This information will also be published in newspapers simultaneously with the interim or annual financial results after placing the same before the Audit Committee.

### Variation in Objects

In accordance with Section 13(8) and Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules, our Company shall not vary the Objects of the Issue without our Company being authorized to do so by the Shareholders by way of a special resolution through postal ballot. In addition, the notice issued to the Shareholders in relation to the passing of such special resolution (the "*Postal Ballot Notice*") shall specify the prescribed details as required under the Companies Act and applicable rules. The Postal Ballot Notice shall simultaneously be published in the newspapers, one in English and one in Hindi, the vernacular language of the jurisdiction where the Registered Office is situated. Our Promoters or controlling Shareholders will be required to provide an exit opportunity to such Shareholders who do not agree to the proposal to vary the Objects, at such price, and in such manner, as may be prescribed by SEBI, in this regard.

### **Other Confirmations**

Our promoters, promoter group, directors and key managerial personnel have no interest in any of the objects as stated above and other related matters thereof.



### B. L. KHANDELWAL & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

1, Occtor's Lane, Gole Market, New Delhi - 110001 Phones: Off.: 23742151, 23744372 Resi.: 27561073 (M): - 98103 - 54277

E-mail., blkhandelwal@yahop.com

### STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE APPLICABLE LAWS IN INDIA

To, The Hourd of Directors Mobinity Pasteners Limited 304 Gupta greade, InderEnclave, Delbi-Robtak road, Delhi- 110087

Dear Sirs/Madam

Subject: Statement of Possible Special Tax Benefits available to Mahindra Pasteners Limited ("the Company") and shareholders of the Company under the direct and indirect tax laws of India

- I. We hereby confirm that the enclosed Annexone 'A', prepared by Mohindre Pasteners Limited (the Company), provides the possible special tax benefits available to the Company and to the shareholders of the Company under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (the Act) as amended from time to time presently in force in ladio. Several of these benefits are appeadent on the Company or its share holders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant provisions of the Act. Hence, the ability of the Company and / or its shareholders to derive the tax benefits is dependent upon their fulfilling such conditions which posed on business imperatives the Company faces in the future, the Company or its shareholders may or may not choose to fulfill.
- 2. The benefits discussed in the enclosed statement are not exhaustive and the preparation of the contents stated is the responsibility of the Company's management. We are informed that this statement is only intended to provide general information to the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice in view of the individual nature of the tax consequences and the changing tax laws, each investor is edvised to consult his or her own tax consultant with respect to the specific upon implications arising out of their participation in the rights issue of the shares of the Company.
- A We do not express any opinion of provide any assurance as to whether:

if the Company or its abareholders will continue to obtain these benefits infuture;



- il) the conditions prescribed for availing the benefits have been / would be not with and
  - If the revenue authorities feouris will contur with the views expressed herein.
- 4. The contents of the enclosed statement are based on information, explanations and representations obtained from the Campany and on the basis of their anderstanding of the business activities and operations of the Company.
- 5 We shall not be liable to any claims, liabilities or expenses relating to this statement except to the extent fees relating to this assignment, as finally judicially determined to have resulted primarily from and faith or intentional misconduct. We will not be liable to any other person in respect of this Steremont.

For M/s B. L. Khandelwal & Co. [Practicing Chartered Accountant] (CAI Firm Registration Number: IKE)9988

Place: New Deini

Date: 17-8-2-62-1 UDIN: 2:501180AAAAAD2031

CA Ashish Modi

Partner Membership Number: F501180

### ANYEXURE 'A' TO THE STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE APPLICABLE TAX LAWS IN INDIA

Dutlined below are the possible special tax benefits available to the Company and its shareholders under the Income-tan Act, 1961 ("theAct") as amended from time to time, presently in ferce in India.

### I Special tax benefits available to the Company

There are no special tax benefits appliable to the Company.

### I Special tax benefits available toShareholders

There are no special rax benefits available to the shareholders for savesting in the rights issue of shares of the Company.

### NOTES:

- 1. This statement does not discuss any tax consequences in the country notated india of an investment in the Equity Shares. The subscribers of the Equity Shares in the country other than India are arged to consult their own professional advisers regarding possible income-tax consequences that apply tothers.
- In respect of non-residents, the tax rates and the consequent taxation mentioned above shall be further subject to any benefits available under the applicable Double Taxation Avaidance Agreement, it any, between India and the country in which the pon-resident has fiscaldemicide.
- The above statement covers only above mentioned tax laws benefits and does not cover any indirect tax law benefits or benefit under any otherlaw.



### SECTION IV – ABOUT THE COMPANY

### HISTORY AND CORPORATE STRUCTURE

### **History and Background**

**MOHINDRA FASTENERS LIMITED** (MFL) was incorporated as a Public Limited Company on 10th January, 1995 under the Companies Act, 1956. The Certificate of Commencement of business was obtained by the Company on 22nd February, 1995 and it began the commercial production in the beginning of 1997. Over the years, it has successfully emerged as a name to reckon with in the Indian Fastener industry. The company offers a wide range of cold and hot forged fasteners and precision machined components for automotive and industrial applications.

In the year 1996, our Company through an Initial Public Offering issue/allot of 29,88,100 Equity Shares at a face value of Rs. 10/- each & listed its total issued capital 5,47,13,000 (Rupees Five Crores Forty-Seven Lakhs Thirteen Thousand only) (consisting of 54,71,300 Equity Shares) on BSE Limited and Delhi Stock Exchange Limited. Subsequently, in the year 2016, the Equity Shares of our Company were listed on Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited wherein the Company is currently listed.

### Changes in our Registered Office:

Date	Particulars of Registered Office	Reason of change in Registered Office
At the time of incorporation	3497-99, Chawri Bazar Delhi 110006	Not Applicable
20.06.1995	304 Sasco Bhawan, Azadpur Commercial Complex Delhi-110033	Due to expiration of tenanted period
22.08.1998	UG 3A SASCO Bhawan Commercial Complex Azadpur Delhi-110033	Due to expiration of tenanted period
25.08.2001	304, Gupta Arcade, Inder Enclave,	Due to requirement of more
	Delhi-Rohtak Road, Delhi, New Delhi 110087	space.

### **Our Business:**

The Company has categorized its wide range of products under two industry verticals comprising of:

Standard / Norm Parts as per various standards

Drawing / Print / Customized Parts

A wide assortment of standard products as per relevant National/International standards are produced and made available to customers worldwide, meeting customers' requirements of cost, quality and time effectively. Additionally, special/customized parts are made as per customer's request(s) which find their application in various industrial/automotive/railway and other light engineering requirements.

With the help of the state of art machinery, CNC Machines along with other related infrastructure and qualified & experienced and dedicated personnel, MFL offers a single window package providing fastening solutions for all kinds of Fasteners and machined components' requirements of the customer.

MFL manufactures fasteners in various materials such as Steel, Stainless steel, Brass and Ball bearing Steel.

The Company owes its success to its lean manufacturing operations and dedication to quality at every step. System and Quality based Certifications like ISO 9001(2015), ISO 14001(2015), ISO 45001(2018), IATF 16949(2016), NABL as per ISO/IEC 17025(2017), CQI 9 etc. are testimony to our commitment to adhere and ensure Quality at every step. The passion to serve its customers with the best has successfully translated into significant market share both in domestic and overseas market(s).

	Our	Manufacturing Process	
Wire Processing	Thread Rolling	Heat Treatment	Packing & Logistics
Forging	Machining	Surface Treatment	

MFL has in-house facilities for Spherodised Annealing and Wire-Drawing to be able to provide desired mechanical properties for forging and machining facilities. Annealing of the wire rod helps to recrystallize the grain structure of steel by allowing new bonds to be formed at the high temperature.

Using the state of art machinery for cold forging processes, MFL can manufacture a wide range of industrial fasteners like Bolts, Studs, Screws, Special fasteners etc. Additionally, with the help of in-house hot forging Unit, MFL caters to the bigger and odd size requirements of the customers. Thread rolling process produces fasteners with increased strength than machined threads due to the cold working, as well as better material yield.

Apart from other conventional operations like drilling, grinding and machining, the company has latest CNC machines and vertical milling machines for producing precision components with uncompromising quality. The PLC controlled Continuous Heat treatment lines ensure consistent quality in different material and property grades. The system ensures the required tempered Martensitic structure with right hardness traverse & devoid of any temper brittleness. With PLC controlled Surface treatment facility, MFL delivers quality aesthetics and corrosion resistant Zinc and Zinc Alloy finish conforming to EHV / ROHS norms.

Final quality checks for packing are conducted to ensure that no defect is carried out with the final products. Customized packaging options are offered and with a dedicated logistics department, timely deliveries are ensured to all the customers.

### **End-users of our Products-**

### **Domestic:**

Using efficient and reliable supply chain models, MFL delivers to automotive OEMs, their Tier I suppliers and heavy engineering & infrastructure manufacturers all across India. Proven track record in the industry has made MFL preferred choice for fastener requirements.

### **International:**

We have satisfied customers in all leading countries; with customers ranging from wholesalers, distributors, importers, C part management suppliers, VMI (Vendor Managed Inventory) based industrial companies, specialized automotive resellers & Tier - 1 suppliers. MFL boasts of supplying its quality products to over 50 active customers in more than 20 industrially developed countries all over the world.

### **Corporate structure of our Company**

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, there are no Subsidiary and Associate Company(s) of the Company.

On Wednesday 24<sup>th</sup> November, 2021 our Company incorporated a Joint Venture by the name of "KK MOHINDRA FASTENINGS PRIVATE LIMITED ("JOINT VENTURE")" with the Registrar of Companies NCT of Delhi & Haryana at New Delhi.

### Details of Joint Venture

Name of the Parties	1. Keller & Kalmbach Holding GmbH & Co. KG (KK)
	2. Mohindra Fasteners Limited (MFL)
Date of JV agreement	Monday, 11 October, 2021
Cost of acquisition or the price at which the	Initial subscription amount:
shares are acquired	KK : Rs. 5,10,000 (51,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each)
	MFL: Rs. 4,90,000 (49,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each)
Percentage of shareholding/control acquired and /	KK: 51% of the paid-up share capital
or number of shares acquired;	MFL: 49% of the paid-up share capital

### Main objects of our Company

The main objects of our Company as contained in its Memorandum of Association are:

- 1. To carry on the business of manufactures, importers, exporters, buyers, sellers, distributors, agents and otherwise dealers in all kinds of nuts, bolts, U bolts, J bolts, stud bolts, allen wrenches screws, machine screws, self-tapping screws, special fasteners, turned components nails, bushes, spares, forged components parts, tools, dies, machine parts of any kind motor, parts and spares, all type of hardware items made of steel, metal malleable grey casting including ferrous, nonferrous, special and alloy steel, spring steel, forging steel and any other alloys and metal.
- 2. To manufacture or deal in job work of all kinds of forging, special fasteners, special turned components, drilling, milling, grinding, turning, threading, knitting, facing, under cutting, tools and dies for cold and hot forged components, diesel engine parts, auto parts, and all other special fasteners components.
- 3. To manufacture and/or cold drawing of all type of wires and wires product(s) in all sizes and in all grades of steel, ferrous and Nonferrous metals.
- 4. To carry on the business as manufactures and dealers in wire nails, wire drawing and galvanizing, electroplating, packing and phosphating stranded wires, hardened wires, wood screws and all other kinds of wires whether made of steel or otherwise and wire products.

### DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration and payment of final dividends will be recommended by the Board of Directors and approved by the Shareholders, at their discretion, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association and applicable law, including the Companies Act. The dividend, if any, will depend on a number of factors, including but not limited to net operating profit after tax, working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements, cash flow required to meet contingencies, outstanding borrowings, and applicable taxes payable by our Company. In addition, our ability to pay dividends may be impacted by a number of factors, including restrictive covenants under loan or financing arrangements our Company is currently availing of or may enter into to finance our fund requirements for our business activities.

### **Dividends paid on Equity Shares:**

The dividends declared by the Company on the Equity Shares in each of the Financial Years ending 2021, 2020 and 2019, as per our Audited Financial Statements is given below:

Particulars		Financial 1	Performance	
	Annual General Meeting	For the year ended	For the year ended	For the year ended
	*September 23, 2021	March 31, 2021	March 31, 2020	March 31, 2019
Face Value per share (in Rs.)	10	10	10	10
Amount of Dividend (Rs. In Lakhs)	160.70	107.14	187.49	160.70
Dividend per share (in Rs.)	3.00	2.00 (interim)	3.50	3.00
Rate of Dividend (%)	30	20	35	30

<sup>\*</sup>The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended a final dividend of Rs. 3.00 per shares (30%) on the equity shares of the company for the FY ended 31<sup>st</sup> March, 2021, as per the approval of the Shareholders of the Company at the AGM held on September 23, 2021.

The amount paid as dividends in the past is not necessarily indicative of our dividend policy or dividend amount, if any, in the future and there is no guarantee that any dividends will be declared or paid or that the amount thereof will not be decreased in future. For details in relation to the risk involved, see "Internal Risk Factor. Our ability to pay dividends in the future may be affected by any material adverse effect on our future earnings, financial condition or cash flows" on page number 20 of this Letter of Offer.

### **OUR MANAGEMENT**

Our Articles of Association provide that our Board shall consist of minimum 3 (three) Directors and not more than 12 (twelve) Directors, unless otherwise determined by our Company in a general meeting.

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, our Company has 6 (six) Directors, comprising of 2 (two) Executive Directors, 1 (one) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director and 3 (three) Independent Directors. The present composition of our Board of Directors and its committees are in accordance with the corporate governance requirements provided under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations.

### **Our Board of Directors**

The following table sets forth details regarding our Board of Directors as on the date of this Letter of Offer:

No.	Name, Designation, Address, Occupation, Term and DIN	Age (Years)	Other Directorships
1.	Deepak Arneja	51	KK MOHINDRA FASTENINGS PRIVATE
	Designation: Chairman cum Managing Director & CEO		LIMITED
	Address: C-1/21, Model Town III, North West Delhi Delhi, India, 110009		
	Occupation: Business		
	Period of Directorship: Since 10/01/1995		
	Term: 5 years		
	Date of birth: 14/07/1970		
	DIN: 00006112		
2.	Ravinder Mohan Juneja	71	NIL
	<b>Designation: Managing Director</b>		
	Address: 1189/23, D.L.F Colony, Rohtak Haryana, India, 124001		
	Occupation: Business		
	Period of Directorship: Since 10/01/1995		
	Term: 5 years (Liable to retire by rotation)		
	Date of birth: 30/03/1950		
	DIN: 00006496		
3.	Gagandeep Singh Narang	40	Kanpur Delhi Goods Carriers Limited
	Designation: Non-executive Director		V D.II.! T
	Address: A-135, New Friends Colony,		Kanpur Delhi Transport Private Limited
	New Delhi, Delhi, India, 110025		Nilman : Nickarah Caladia
	Occupation: Business		Nikunj Netweb Solutions Private Limited
	Period of Directorship: 30/09/2016		Nipman Impex Private Limited
	Term: Liable to retire by rotation		Datar Reality and Hospitality Private Limited

	Date of birth: 26/11/1981		
	DIN: 00179636		Sabsur Packaging Private Limited
4.	Vinod Kumar	57	Soni Publications Private Limited
	Designation: Independent Director  Address: 11096, 2 Karol Bagh, Dori Wallan, Karol Bagh S.O, Delhi, India, 110005		Sumu Financial Services Private Limited
	Occupation: Business		Mohindra Advisory Limited
	Period of Directorship: 21/12/2013		
	Term: 5 years		
	Date of birth: 04/11/1964		
5.	DIN: 02303504 Ved Prakash Chaudhry	73	NIL
٥.	Designation: Independent Director		NIE
	Address: House No B - 3, Main Rohtak Road, Shiv Vihar, Paschim Vihar, Delhi, India, 110087		
	Occupation: Retired Senior Bank Manager		
	Period of Directorship: 30/07/2016		
	Term: 5 years		
	Date of birth: 01/06/1948		
	DIN: 07572208		
6	Shamoli Thakur	53	NIL
	<b>Designation: Independent Director</b>		
	Address: H. No 62 Sector 17A, Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122001		
	Occupation: Service		
	Period of Directorship: 03/08/2018		
	Term: 5 years		
	Date of birth: 23/06/1968		
	DIN: 08189763		

### Past Directorships in listed companies

None of our Directors is, or was a director of any listed companies, whose shares have been, or were suspended from being traded on the MSE during the term of their directorships in such companies during the last five years preceding the date of filing of this Letter of Offer.

None of our Directors is or was a director of any listed company, which has been, or was delisted from any stock exchange during the term of their directorship in such company during the last ten years preceding the date of filing of this Letter of Offer.

### **Relationship between the Directors**

None of our Directors are related to each other.

### Arrangement or understanding with major Shareholders, customers, suppliers or others

There is no arrangement or understanding with the major Shareholders, customers, suppliers or others, pursuant to which any of our Directors were appointed on the Board of Directors.

### **Details of service contracts entered with Directors**

There are no service contracts entered between our Company and our Directors which provide for benefits upon termination of employment

# SECTION V – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

### FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### **INDEX**

Sl. No	. Particulars	Page No.
1.	Audited financial statement and Independent Auditor's report for the year ended March 31, 2021	49
2.	Unaudited Financial Results for six months period ended September 30, 2021, prepared in accordance with recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS 34 and Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, which are subjected to Limited Review by Statutory Auditors of the Company	106

(The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank)

304, Gupta Arcade, Inder Enclave, Delhi - Rohtak Road New Delhi-110087 CIN: L74899DL1995PLC064215, Tel. No.: +91-11-46200400, Fax No.: 011-46200444 E-mail id: cs@mohindra.asia, Website: www.mohindra.asia

### BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st March, 2021

		C40 500 40000 (A2 5000)	(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars	Note	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
I. ASSETS			
(1) Non-Current Assets		100000	
(i) Property, Plant & Equipment.	5 (2)	2664.95	2927.5
(ii) Capital Work in Progress (iii) Intangible Assets	5 (a) 5 (a)	4B.05 7.00	1.3 B.7
(iv) Right-of-use Assets	5 (b)	21.75	0.0
(v) Financial Assets (a) Investments	5 (t)	9.24	
(b)Trade Receivables	6 (5)	20.89	5.1 20.8
(c) Other Non Current Financial Assets	7	417.24	101.9
(vii) Other Non Current Assets	8	95.10	106.1
(2) Current Assets	9	1795.79	2080.8
a)Financial Assets		Page Nint	10000
(a)Trade Receivables (b)Cash and Cash Equivalents	10 11(a)	2353.32 2183.73	1362.3
(c)Bank Balance other than above	11/45	2165.73	2030.2
memboned cash & cash equivalents	11(0)	17.41	14.9
(d)Other Current financial assets (iii) Current Tax Assets (Not)	12 (b)	94.56 0.77	71.8
(iv) Other Current Assets	13-	879.19	752.5
Total Assets		10608.62	9510.9
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			
(1)Equity			
(i) Equity Share Capital	19 (a)	535,68	335.6
(ii) Other Equity	14 (b)	6085.50	5154.5
(2) Non-Current Liabilities			
() Financial Liabilities	68.50	0.00	6.0
(a) Borrowings (b) Other Financial Liabilities	15 (a) 55(b)	0.0D 11.73	0.0 24.8
(iif) Provisions	16	25.70	39.9
(ii) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)	17	115.91	357.4
(3) Current Liabilities			
(i) Financial Liabilities (a) Borrowings	15 (a)	1510.57	1289.2
(b) Trade Payables:-	18	+310.17	14479-6
00Total outstanding dues of Horo electronies and mail felterprises		85.47	20.9
1/0/Total substancing Huns of Creditors other than More			1000
(c) Other Enancial Sabilities	19	1865.81 37.92	1662.4
(ii) Other Current Liabilities	20	187.44	114.4
(iii) Provisions	21	146.89	134.9
(iv) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)	22	0.00	0.0
otal Equity & Liabilities		10508.62	9510.9

Notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these

financial statements

As per our Report of even date:

For B.L. Khandelwal & Co. Chartered Accountants Firm Reg. No.: 000998N

BAJRANG LAL Digitally signed by KHANDELWA KHANDELWA

B.L. Khandelwal (Partner)

Date: 2021,06.26 16:41:18 +05'30'

Hembership No.: F-12331

Place : New Delhi Date : 26.06.2021

For & on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Deepak Ameja (Managing Director & CEO)

DIN: 00006112

Ravinder Mohan Juneja (Managing Director) DIN: 00006496

SUMI MISHITA

(Chief Financial Officer)

Nidhi Pathak (Company Secretary)

304, Gupta Arcade, Inder Enclave, Delhi - Rohtak Road New Delhi-110087 CIN: L74899DL1995PLC064215, Tel. No.: +91-11-46200400, Fax No.: 011-46200444 E-mail id: cs@mohindra.asia, Website: www.mohindra.asia

### STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS OF THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

		1	(Rs. (n Lacs)
Particulars	Note	Year ended 31st March, 2021	Year ended 31st March, 2020
Continuing Operations			
Revenue from operations Other Income	13 24	10,601.63 236.91	10,147.79 269.60
Total Revenue		10,838.54	10,417.39
Expensest	26.1	202000	1500000
Cost of Materials Consumed Changes in inventories of Finished Goods.	25	3,748.08	3,683.34
Work-In-Progress & Stock in Trade	26	203.43	(98,60
Employee Benefits Expense	27	1,951,57	2,048.52
Finance Costs Depreciation and Amortization Expense	28	64.37 319.28	55.46 354.07
Other Expenses	30	3,161.28	3,163.43
Total Expenses		9,458.01	9,208.22
Profit before exceptional items and tax		1,380.53	1,209.17
Exceptional items		7,515.15	2,207.127
DOWN PRESENCES			
Profit before tax		1,380.53	1,209.17
Tax expense: Current Tax Deferred Tax Liabitty/(Assets)	31.	378.43 (35.96)	350,47 (76.07
Profit for the year		1,038.06	936.77
Other comprehensive income  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss [a)Re-incomment gains/(losses) or defined benefit plans (b)Income (ax effect on (a) above (c)Fair value gains/(losses) on Equity Instruments	32	(22.15) 5.57 4.12	(61.93 15.39 (7.43
Total Other comprehensive income		(12.46)	(53.77
Total comprehensive income for the year (Comprising Profit and Other Comprehensive Income for		1,025.60	883,00
the year)			
Earnings per equity share	33		
Basic (in 1)		19.38	17.49
Diluted (in *)		19.38	17,49
Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing earnings per equity share			
Basic (in Nos.)		53,56,800	53,56,800
Diluted(in Nos.)		53,56,810	53,56,900

Notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements As per our Report of even date

For B.L. Khandelwal & Co. Chartered Accountants Firm Reg. No.: 000998N

BAJRANG LAL BAJRANG LAL

B.L. Khandelwal KHANDELWAL Date: 2021.06.26

(Partner) Membership No.: F-12331

Digitally signed by KHANDELWAL

Dennak Arneja 16:41:59 +05'30' (Managing Director & CEO)

DIN: 00005112

Ravinder Mohan Juneja (Managing Director)

DIN: 00006496

For & on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sunii Mishra

Nidhi Pathak (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)

Place: New Delhi Date: 26.06.2021

304, Gupta Arcade, Inder Enclave, Delhi - Rohtak Road New Delhi-110087 CIN: L74899DL1995PLC064215 Tel. No.: +91-11-46200400, Fax No.: 011-46200444 E-mail id: cs@mohindra.asia, Website: www.mohindra.asia

### Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

		(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars	Year ended 31st March, 2021	Year ended 31st March, 2020
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities		
Profit/(Loss) before tax	1380.53	1209.17
Adjustment for:-		
Depreciation and/ amortisation	319.28	354.07
(Profit)/ Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment (Net)	1.95	-0.34
Finance Costs	64.37	55.46
Interest Income Dividend Income	-154.59	
Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes	0.01	-0.09
	1607.61	1508.37
Adjustments for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets:		
- Inventories - Other Current assets	255.43	
	-1139.92	
- Non current assets	-304.30	-75.78
A delication control design to accompany it indicates and a final control of the		
Adjustments for increase/ (decrease) in operating Liabilities: - Trade payables	202.00	1000.00
- Other Current liabilities	217.91	-370.81
Non current labilities	-7.70	(9.09.6)
- NOO COPPER MEDITALES	-36.43	-21:94
Cash generated from Operations	622.61	2631.59
Taxes Pard (Net)	-379.20	-366.78
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities (A)	243.40	2264.91
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities Capital Expenditure on Property, Plant & Equipment	-124.12	-103.90
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment	2.83	
Interest Income	154.59	
Dividend Income	0.01	0.09
Net Cash generated from Investing Activities (B)	33.31	8.15
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities		
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Long Term Barrowings (Net) Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short term Borrowings (Net) Finance Cost Paid other than interest on lease liabilities Dividends Paid Dividend Distribution Tax Paid Principal payment of Lease Liabilities Interest paid on Lease Liabilities	0.00 221.29 -60.38 -294.63 0.00 -11.41 -3.99	-491 17 -50 33 -160 70 -33 04 +10 34
Net Cash generated from Financing Activities (C)	-149.12	-750.71
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents	127.60	1522.34
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year	2056.14	
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year*	2183.73	
Notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statement		

Notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements

Notes:

(i) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under Indirect Nethod as set out in Ind As -7.

Digitally signed by

KHANDELWAL

+05'30'

- (ii) The Cash Flow Statement reflects the combined cash flows pertaining to continuing operations.
- (iii) All figures in prackets are outflows/ decrease in cash is cash equivalent.
- (iv) Previous years figures have been regrouped/restated wherever necessary.
   (v) \*Cash and Cash Equivalents are Cash and Bank balances as mentioned in Note No. 11(a)

As per our Report of even date For B.L. Khandelwal & Co. Chartered Accountants Firm Reg. No.: 000998N

BAJRANG LAL BAJRANG LAL

B.L. Khandelwal KHANDELWAL Date: 2621.06.26 16:42:26 (Partner)

Membership No.: F-12331

Place : New Delhi Date: 26.06.2021 For & on Schalf of the Board of Directors

Deepak Arrieta (Managing Director & CEO)

DIN: 00006112

Nu

Ravinder Mohan Juneja (Managing Director) DIN:00006496 Nigh (alla)

Sunii Mishra

(Chief Financial Officer)

Nidhi Pathak (Company Secretary)

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JIST MARCH 2021

### 1. Corporate Information

Mahindra Fasteners Limited ("MFL" or "'the Company") is incorporated in India and its shares are listed but not publicly traded in the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited ('MSEI'), in India.

The registered office of the Company is situated at 304, Gupta Arcade, Inder Enclave, Delhi-Rohtak. Road, Delhi-110087, INDIA.

### 2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind. AS) as prescribed by Ministry of Corporate Affairs under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent notified and pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Disclosures under Ind AS are made only in respect of material items and in respect of the items that will be useful to the users of financial statements in making economic decisions.

The financial statements for the year ended 31st Murch 2021 (including comparatives) are duly approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors at their board meeting held on 26° June, 2021.

### 3(a). Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are included in the following notes:

- (a) Measurement of defined benefit obligations Note 27
- (b) Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of provisions and contingencies Notes 34
- (c) Recognition of deferred tax assets liabilities Note 17
- (d) Measurement of Lease liabilities and Right of Use Asset (ROUA) Notes 5(b), 15(b), 19 & 41



### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021.

3(b). Significant management judgment in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty

While preparing the financial statements, management has made a number of judgments, estimates and assumptions about the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

### (i) Significant management judgment

The following are significant management judgments in applying the accounting policies of the Company that have significant effect on the financial statements.

### Recognition of deferred tax assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of the probability that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry-forwards can be utilized. In addition, careful judgment is exercised in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits or uncertainties in various tax issues.

### [ii] Estimation of uncertainty

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is mentioned below. Actual results may be different.

### Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technological obsolescence that may change the utility of assets including Intangible Assets.

### b. Inventories

Management has carefully estimated the net realizable values of inventories, taking into account the most reliable evidence available at each reporting date. The future realization of these inventories may be affected by market-driven changes.

### Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle astwelve months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.



### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021

### 4. Summary of accounting policies

### 1) Overall considerations

The financial statements have been prepared applying the significant accounting policies and measurement bases summarized below.

### 2) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and net of returns, trude allowances and rebates and discount. The revenue excludes GST.

### i. Sale of Products:

Revenue from sale of products is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership pass to the customers, as per the terms of the contract and when the economic benefits associated with the transactions will flow to the Company.

### ii. Interest and Dividend Income:

Interest incomes are recognized using the effective interest method. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is established and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of dividend can be reliably measured.

### 3) Property, plant and equipment

- Free hold land is stated at historical cost. All other items of Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition/construction less accumulated depreciation/amortization and impairment, if any, Cost includes:
  - Purchase Price
  - Taxes and Duties
  - Labour cost and
  - Directly attributable overheads incurred upto the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

However, cost excludes GST, excise duty, value added tax and service tax, to the extent credit of the duty or tax is availed of.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

### Component Accounting:

The component of assets are capitalized only if the life of the components vary significantly and whose cost is significant in relation to the cost of the respective asset, the life of the component in assets are determined based on technical assessment and past history of replacement of such components in the assets. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as separate asset is derecognized when replaced.

### iii. Other cost

All other repairs and maintenance cost are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.





### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 51ST MARCH 2921

Profit or Losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other income (less).

### iv. Depreciation and amortization:

- Depreciation is recognized on a straight line basis, over the useful life of the Property, Plant and other equipment's as prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013
- Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is charged over the estimated useful life of the asset or part of the asset (after considering double triple shifts) as evaluated on technical assessment on straight line method, in accordance with Part-A of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.
- c. The residual value for all the above assets are retained at 5% of the cost. Residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, for each reporting period.
- d. On tangible fixed assets added disposed off during the year, depreciation is charged on pro-rata basis for the period for which the asset was purchased and used.

### 4) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates less accumulated amortization/depletion and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for the intended use. Net changes on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arise from exchange rate variations attributable to intangible assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

Gain or losses arising from derecongnition of an intangible asset are measured as the differences between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the assets is derecognized.

Computer software are amortized over a maximum period of 5 years.

### 5) Impairment

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

In respect of assets whose impairment are to be assessed with reference to other related assets and such group of assets have independent cash flows (Cash Generating Units), such assets are grouped and tested for impairment.

Non-financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period,



### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021.

### 6) Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgment in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease.

The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio leases with similar characteristics.

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land and Buildings and Plant & Machinery. The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

- (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
- (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and
- (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

### Transition to Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees.



### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JIST MARCH 2021.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 on "Leases" with effect from April 1, 2019 using modified retrospective approach along with a transition option to recognize Right of use (ROU) asset at an amount equal to the lease liability. Accordingly, there is no impact of Ind AS 116 adoption to the retained earnings as at April 1, 2019 or the results reported for the year ended March 31, 2019.

For transition, the Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases which are expiring within 12 months from the date of transition by class of asset and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value on a lease-by-lease basis.

On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed from lease rent in previous periods to depreciation cost for the right-of-use asset, and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability.

### Financial Assets, Financial Liabilities and Financial instruments Recognition, initial measurement and derecongnition;

Financial assets (other than trade receivables) and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value. Trade receivables are recognized at their transaction value as the same do not contain significant financing component.

The 'trade payable' is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased in the normal course of business. They are recognized at their transaction and services availed value as the same do not contain significant financing component.

### Financial Assets Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets:

 For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified and measured based on the entity's business model for managing the financial asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset at those to be measured subsequently at fair value either through other comprehensive income (Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income-FVTOCI)

### Financial assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

Includes assets that are held within a business model where the objective is both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets along with the contractual terms giving rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income the changes in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading. This election is made on an instrument-by instrument (i.e.,, share-by-share) basis.

The fair values of financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists.



### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021

### ii. Impairment of financial assets:

All financial assets are reviewed for impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether there is any evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each category of financial assets.

### iii. Trade receivables

An impairment loss should be regarded as incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after initial recognition (a "loss event")

### iv. Derecongnition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when:

- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
- The Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but expects a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company examines and assesses whether it has transferred substantially all risk and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risk and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized, if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the company retains control of the financial asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of community involvement in the financial asset.

### Financial Liabilities

### Classification, subsequent measurement and derecongnition of financial liabilities

### a. Classification

Financial liabilities are classified, at inhial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or at amortized cost. The Company's financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method

### b. Derecongnition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.





### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JIST MARCH 2021

### 8) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost is ascertained on FIFO basis in accordance with the method of valuation prescribed by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

### i. Raw materials

Raw materials are valued at cost of purchase net of duties (credit availed w.r.t taxes and duties) and includes all expenses incurred in bringing the materials to location of use.

### ii. Work-in-process and Finished Goods

Work-in-process and finished goods include conversion costs in addition to the landed cost of raw materials and are valued at Cost or Net Realizable Value, whichever is less.

### iii. Stores and spares

Stores, spares and tools cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

### 9) Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in the statement of profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates in accordance with tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred income taxes are calculated using the Balance Sheet Approach on temporary differences between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at reporting date. Deferred taxes pertaining to items recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI) are disclosed under OCI.

Pursuant to the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 issued on September 20, 2019, which is effective from April 1, 2019, domestic companies have the option to apply a special income tax rate under section 115BAA with effect from April 1, 2019 subject to certain conditions specified there in. The Company has exercised the above option and accordingly, it has recognized provision for income tax and remeasured its deferred tax liability for the year ended March 31, 2021 based on the lower unnual effective income tax rate.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss or deductible temporary difference will be utilized against future tax liability. This is assessed based on the Company's forecast of future earnings, excluding non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss or credit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized in full, although Ind AS 12 'Income Taxes' specifies some exemptions.





### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021

### 10) Post-employment benefits and short-term employee benefits

### i. Short term obligations:

Short term obligations are those that are expected to be settled fully within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. They are recognized up to the end of the reporting period at the amounts expected to be paid at the time of settlement.

Bonus Payable: The Company recognizes a liability and an expense for bonus. The Company recognizes a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

### Other long term employee benefit obligations:

The liabilities for compensated absences /earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are, therefore, recognized and provided for at the present value of the expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employee upto the end of reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurement as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

### iii. Post-employment obligation:

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

- a) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity for its eligible employees
- Defined contribution plan such as provident fund.

### Gratuity obligation:

The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by Actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. The cost is included in employee benefit expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income (net of deferred tax). They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.





### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021

Changes in present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit or Loss or service cost.

### Provident Fund:

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees salary. The provident fund contributions are made to EPFO. The Company is liable for annual contributions and any shortfall in the fund assets based on the Government specified minimum rates of return and recognizes such contributions and shortfall, if any, as an expense in the year in which it is incurred.

During the year, however, there was no short fall in the fund asset or in the specified minimum rate of return.

### 11) Provisions and contingent liabilities

### i. Provisions:

A Provision is recorded when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Provisions are evaluated at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. No discounting of provision amount has been made as time value of money is not material.

### Contingent liabilities:

Whenever there is possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because (a) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or (b) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability are considered as contingent liability. Show cause notices are not considered as Contingent Liabilities unless converted into demand.

### ii. Contingent Assets:

The Company does not recognize contingent assets. If it is virtually certain then they will be recognized as asset. These are assessed continually to ensure that the developments are appropriately disclosed in the financial statements.

### 12) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares ourstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares ourstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares). For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are considered for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. There





### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JIST MARCH 2821

is no diluted earnings per share as there are no dilutive potential equity share.

### 13] Cash and Cash equivalents and Cash Flow Statement

Cash and cash equivalents comprise eash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-term, highly liquid investments maturing within three months from the date of acquisition and which are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to only an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit(loss) before tax is appropriately classified for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future receipts or payments. In the cash flow statement, cash and each equivalents include cash in hand, cheques on hand, balances with banks in current accounts and other short- term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

### 14) Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in manufacture and sale of cold and bot forged fusteners, precision machined components and other parts which by and large have applications in Automobile Industry and thus the company has only one reportable segment.

### 15) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred under finance costs. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Mohindra Fasteners Ltd. Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note: S Property, Plant & Equipment

erty, Plant & Equipment	Tangible Assets As on 31.03.2021	Intangible Assets as on 31.03.2021	Capital Work in Progress as on 31.03.2021	Tangible Assets As on 31.03.2020	Intengible Assets as on 31,03,2020	Capital Work in Progress as on 31.03.2020
Assets (refer Note 5 (a)	2664,95	7.00	48.08	2892.71	8.77	_
	2664.95	7.00	48.08	2892.71	8.77	0.00

									KS. T	Rs. In lacs
		Gross Bloc	Hock		Dep	Depreciation &	/ Amortization	tion	Net	Net Block
5 (a) Owned Assets	As at 01-04- 2020	Adj./ Add.	Adj./ Ded.	As at 31-03-	As at 01-04-	Adj./ Add.	Adj./ Ded.	As at 31-03 As at 31-03	As at 31-03- 2021	As nt 31-03-
Tangible Assets: Industrial Freehold Land	873.21	0.00	0.00	873.21	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	873.21	873,21
Buildings	754.18	00.00		754.18	344.01	22.01	0.00	366.02	388.16	410.17
Plant & Machinery	5537.61	69.09	00:00	5598.30	3982,46	268,16	00'3	4	1347.67	1555,15
Furniture & Fittings	88.26	69.0				2.78	00.00		13.48	15.57
Motor Vehicles	54.44	4.88				4,23	14,45		23.77	23,98
Office Equipment	77.83	3.92	00.00		67,94	3,89	11.00		16.6	9.89
Computers and Data		-			1	4				
Processing Units	111.10	5.72		116.83	100.35	1.72	00'0	108.07	8.75	4.75
Sub Total (A)	7496.63	75.90	17.31	7555.21	4603.92	302.79	16.45	4890.26	2664.95	2892.71
Intangible Assets		417		-			1000	The state of the s	- 100mm	The second second
Computer Software	49,90	1,50	00.00	51,40	41.13	3.28	0.00	44.40	7.00	8.77
Sub Total (B)	2.1	1.50	00.00		41.13	3.28	9.00	44.40	2.00	8.77
	7546.53	77,40	17.31	7606.62	4645.05	306.06	16.45	4934.66	2671.95	2901.49
Capital Work-in-progress	1,36	47.05	0.33	0.00	00'00	0.00	0.00	00:00	48.08	0.00
Sub Total (C)	1.36	47.05	0.33	00'0	00'0	00'0	00'0	00'0	48.08	0.00
(Previous Year Figures)	7449.95	103.90	5.95	7546.53	4306.87	342.42	4.24	4645.05	2902.85	3143.07
Total (A + B + C)	7547.89	124.44	17.64	7606.62	4645.05	306.06	76,45	4934.66	2720.03	2901.49

Mohindra Fasteners Limited Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021 Rs. in lacs

Note : 5(b)- Addition of Leased Assets on account of Transition to Ind AS 116-1st April, 2019

34.97 34.97 As at 31-03- As at 31-03-2020 Net Block 21.76 2021 24.87 As at 31-03-24.87 2021 Depreciation on Right-of-use Assets 0.00 00.0 Disposal 13.21 13.21 Addition As at 31-03- As at 01-04-11.66 11.66 2020 46.63 46.63 2021 00.0 Disposals Grass Block 0.00 00.0 Addition As at 01-04-2020 46.63 46.63 Leased Assets / Right-of Total use Assets Tangible Assets: and & Building

Notes:-

a) The Company incurred Rs. 17.65 lacs for the year ended 31st March, 2021 towards expenses relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The total cash outflow for leases is Rs. 33.05 lacs for the year ended 31st March, 2021, including cash outflow of short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. Interest on lease liabilities is Rs. 3.99 lacs for the year.

(b) The Company's leases mainly comprise of land and building used for manufacturing facilities. The Company also has leases for equipment.

5

64

Notes to Financial Statement for the Year ended 31 March, 2021

Note: 6 (a) Non-Current Investments

(Rs. in Lacs)

As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
1,16	0.57
5/36	3.42
2.70	2.13
0.01	0.00
9.24	5.12
9.24	5.12
	5,36 2.70 6.01 9.24

Note: 6 (b)Trade Receivables

Particulars	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st Hurch, 2020
(Unsecured, considered good ) Trade Receivables	20.88	Zn 498
	20.88	20.68

Note: 7 Other Financial Assets

Particulars	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
(Unsecured, considered good) Security Deposits Bank Deposit with more than 12 months maturity	102.71	101.91
on account of Bank Depost as Margin Money Deposited *	314.52	0.00
Total in f	417.24	101.91

<sup>\*</sup> Margin Ploney held with banks against opening of Letter of Credit (LC) including interest

Note: 8 Other Non Current Assets

Particulars	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
(Unsecured and Considered good)		The second second
Deposit with statutory authority under protest	35.63	35.63
Balance with Revenue Authorities	32.23	0.00
Compensated Absences	26.09	0.00
Others#	1.16	70.50
Total in ₹	95.10	1.06.17

#Other current assets includes advance paid Rs. 1.15 Jacs(P.Y. Rs.16.31 Lacs) towards Defined Benefit Plan- Gratuity/ Conpensated absences

Note: 9 Inventories

Particulars	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
Raw Material Work-in-Progress Pinisheut Goods Concumables, Stores, Tools, Spares & Packing Material Scrap Goods-in-Transt	589.46 228.65 516.58 398.03 12.70 0.00	509 8/ 293, 2/ 7/15/7/ 551 4/ 2 3/ 8.15
Total in ₹	1795.39	2080.82





Notes to Financial Statement for the Year ended 31 March, 2021

Note 9.1. :- Goods in Transit includes the fislowings :-

(Rs. in Lars)

Raw Material		7.41
Consumables, Stores, Tools, Spares & Packing Material	8 1	2.54
Total in ₹	-	8.15

Note: 10 Trade Receivables

Particulars	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
( Unsecured . Considered good) Outstanding for more than six months Others	160.83 2252.49	34.31 1328.02
Total in ₹	2353.32	1362.33

Note: 11(a) Cash & Cash Equivalents

Part	ticulars	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
Balances with Banks (Current Account)	COMPANY.	50.23	40.03
Cash on Hand		3.84	2.37
* Fixed Deposit with maturity within 12 mon	ths	2139.66	2013.23
Total in ₹	(A)	2183.73	2056,14

<sup>\*</sup>Fixed Deposit maturity within 3 months Rs.660.52 Lacs & Maturity within 3-12 months Rs.1469.14 Lacs

Note: 11(b) Bank balance other than above mentioned Cash & Cash Equivalents

Particulars.		As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
Earmarked Balances with B	Banks (Unpaid Dividend Account)	17,41	14.95
Total in *	(B)	17.41	14.96
Total in ₹	(A)+(B)	2201.14	2071.10

Note: 12 (a) Other Financial Assets

Particulars	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
( Unsecured , Considered good) Security Deposits Interest Account But Not Due	1.58 92.97	1.25 70.61
Total in ₹	94.56	71.89

Note: 12 (b) Current Tax Assets

Particulars	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
Advance Payment of Taxes/TDS (Net of provision of Rs. 379.20 Lacs -(P.Y.Rs. 350.78 Lacs))	0.77	0,31
Total in ₹	0.77	0.31

Note:13 Other Current Assets

Particulars	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
( Unsecured , Considered good) Advance to Suppliers Balance With Revenue Authorities Advance to Others Prepaid Expenses Receivable from employees	12.52 841.21 7.20 12.92 5.34	11.07 710.05 7.66 13.18 3.75
Total in ?	879.19	752.61





Notes to Financial Statement for the Year ended 31st March, 2021

(Ma. in Lacs)

Note : 14 (a)Share Capital

Particulars	As at 31st Harch, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL		
*12000000 Equity Shares of Hs. 10/- each. (P.V. 12000000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each)	1200.00	1200.00
5500000 Non Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each. (P.Y. 5500000 Non Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each.)	550.00	550,00
ISSUED CAPITAL	1750,00	1750.00
5471300 Equity Shares of Ms. 10/- each, July part up (M.Y. 5471300 Equity Shares of Ms. 10/- each fully paid up)	567.13	547.13
SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL 3356600 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up (A.Y. 1356800 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)	535.66	335.68
Totalin t	\$25,68	535.68

a) The Reconciliation of the Number of Equity Shares	No of Shares	No of Shures
Ballence at the bugning of the year Add - Issued Shares During the Year	5376000	\$356600
Balance at the end of the Year	5359800	5,358800

- b) The company has only one class of shares referred to an equity shares having a par value of Rc. 10/-. Each neither of equity shares is critified to one vote per share.
- c) in the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity stores will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferences amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

March, 2020 are as follows:	olding more than 5% Shares as a	t 31st March, 2021 and 31st	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
Name Of Shareholders				
Deepak Amejo	and the state of the state of		.5.00000015	
	No of Shares (% of Shares held)		570900 10.65	57090() 10.66
Ravinder Mohan Tuneja			. 10077	******
	No of Shares (wid)		505350 9.42	9.43
Агыгец Агнеја	***************************************		2.00	2.42
	No of Shares (% of Shares held)		580100 10:83	500100 16.83
Rantir Seigh Narang				
	No of Shares (% of Shares held)		428500 8.00	428500 8.00
Sudhir Armeja				1000
	No of Sheres (% of Shares held)		392400 7:33	392400 7.33
Kenta Devi				
octores and a second	No of Shares (% of Shares held)		659.430 10.04	859400 16.84

As per records of the Company, its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from the shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding resresents both lessel and beneficial ownership of shares.

- Borus Shares/Buy Back/Shares for consideration other than cash issued during the period of five years intractiately preceding the financial year ended 21st March, 2021.
- i) Aggregate number of equity shores elliotted as fully paid pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash. NIL.
- Aggregate number of equity shares, as fully peed up by way of bonus shares ND, All Aggregate number of equity shares, hought back ND.

# Mohindra Fasteners Limited Notes to Financial Statement for the Year ended 31st March, 2021

Note: 14(b)-Statement of Changes in Equity for the year onded 31st March, 2021. A. Equity Share Capital

The second second second second second	As at 31st March, 2021	535.68
	Changes in A oquity share 2 capital during the year	000
the second secon	As at 31st March 2021	535.68
The state of the s	Changes in equity share capital during the year	0.00
Contract of the Contract of th	As at 31st March, 2020	2557.650
Equity share Capital	Particulars	mity Starte Canital

Rs. In Lacs

A. Equity arise Colores							And in contrast of the last last last last last last last last
Particulars	As at 31st March, 2020		Changes in equity share capital during the year	equity uring the	As at 31st March 2021	Changes in oquity share capital during the year	As at 31st March, 2021
Equity Stare Candal	535,68		00'0		535.68	00:0	535.68
B. Other Equity						IS, In Lacs	
		Rese	Reserves and Surplus		Items of Other Comprehensive	amprehensive	
	General reserve	Capital	Other Reserves	Retained Earnings	Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and loss	e reclassified to	
Particulars		Reserve			Equity instruments	Other Items	Total
Balance as at 1 April, 2019	230.00	5.74	83.09	4,342,26	11.16	-7.27	4,664.99
Profit for the year	00'0	00.00	00'0	936.77	0.00	00'0	936,77
Re-measurement of gain (loss) on defined henelit Plan (Net of Tax)	0000	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	45.34	146,34
Fair value gain/loss) of equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Insome (Net of tue)	0.00	0.00	00'0	00.0	-7.43		-2,43
Less: Dividend of FY 18-19 paid in FY 19-20	0.00	00'0	00'0	-160.70	000	00.0	07.091
Less; CDT of FY 18-19	000	0.00	0.00	33,04	000	0000	-33.04
Less: Excess/(Short) Provision of Previous Year	00.0	00.0	0.00	0.29	0000	0.00	62'0
Balance as at 31st March, 2020	230.00	5.74	83.09	5,085,57	3.73	-53.62	5,354.53
Profit for the year	00:0	0.00	0,00	1,038,05	00:0	00'0	1,038.06
Re-measurement of gain/(Joss) on defined benefit Plans (Net of Tist) (Refer Note 32)	00'0	00'0	0.00	00'0	000	-15.58	25/01-
Fair value gain/Goss) of egaity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income (Net of tax)	0.00	0.00	00.00	0.00	4.12	000	4.12
Less: Divident (Rs. 3.50 per share.) of FY 19-20 paid in FY 20-21	0.00	0.00	0000	-187.49	0.00	0.00	-187.49
Lesse Intrim Dividend (Rs. 2 per sture) of FV 20s.	0.00	00'0	00'0	-107.14	0.00	00'0	-107.14
Balance as at 31st March, 2021	230.00	5.74	63.09	5,829.01	7.85	-70.20	6,085,50
Potes I to 43 form on integral part of these financial statements		0					

14

Notes to Financial Statement, for the Year ended 31st March, 2021.

(Rs. in Lacs)

(f) Final dividends on shares are recorded as a habitity on the data of approval by the sharehoods.
The arcount of per share dividend recognized as distribution to county shareholders in as follows.

200	)
3.50	
	3.0

The Board of Directors, at its metting field on 10th February, 7021 recommended and paid interim dividead Rs. 7.00 per equity shares for the financial year ended March 31, 7021, amounting to Rs. 107.14 Lacs.

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 26th Tune, 2021, recommended a final director of its. 3.007- per equity share for the treatile year ended March 31, 2021. This payment is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual Centeral Meeting of the Company and if approved, would result in a net cash outlow of approximately by 160.78 Lacs. The final directed of Rs. 1.007- per equity share and the resultant expected cash outflow is beast on the cettatending number of others after considering shares bought tack if any by the Company subscription for year ended March 31, 2021.

### g) Capital Management

The Company's capital management abjectives is to snowle the edequate return to the sherefulder by maintaining the optimal capital structure.

For the surpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to maximise the sheetholder value.

Management assesses the Company's capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessival leverage. The Company manages the capital structure and makes edjustments to it in the right of changes in economic conditions and the right characteristics of the underlying assets.

Particulars		As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
Borrowings Ceeh and zaish equivalents		0.02 -2183.73	1289.28
Net Borrowings	(A)	-3183.72	-766.86
Total Equity		0.07	5890.22
Equity	(6)	0.07	5890.22
Net Debt to equity	C=(A/B)*100	-3298080.73	-13.02

Note: 15 (a) Borrowings (Current/Non-Current)

Particulars	Current	Current Partion		t Portion
	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st Harch, 2020	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st Harch, 2020
Secured  Repayable on Comang  Working Capital Loans  - Overdraft (Indian Rupees Loan) #  - Pereign Currency Loan (PCFC) # #	424.50 1086.07	219,37 969,91	90,0 0.00	0.50
Total in Rs.	1510.57	1259,28	0.00	0.00

#Note: Working Capital Facilities in Indian Currency and foreign currency from Karnataka Bank tad. are primarily secured to hypothecation of Stocks, Advances paid to Suppliers, Socia Debts/Esport Receivables of the Company and collegerally secured by the Factory Land & fluiding situated at 50th KM Stone and 20th KM Stone, Debt-Rahtsin Raid, Vill Kharawar and Vill Candhra Diett. Bathsk, harvane and personal quarantee by the directory/Promotors/Sharahtsiders Mr. Deepak Arneja, Mr. Ravindra Mohan Juneja, Mr. Sudhir Ameja, Mr. Gagan Deep Singh Narang, Mr. Asurag Arneja and Mrs. Kanta Devi.

#Note: The outstanding balance is repayable on demand and carries interest © 10.30% ##Note: The outstanding balance is repayable on demand and carries interest © Liber (200 6PS



MOHINDRA FASTENERS LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the Year ended 31st March, 2021

(Rs. in Lacs)

Note: 15 (b) Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
Lease Labilities	31,23	24.99
Total in €	11.73	24.89

Note : 16 Provisions

Particulars	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
Proxision for Defined Benefit Obligations (Griduity & / Compensated Absences)*	25.70	39.98
Total in C	25.70	39.98

Note: 17 Deferred Tax Liability (Not)

Particulars	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
Deferred Tax Liability	115.51	157,44
Total in t	115.91	157.44

Note: 17.1

Particulars	Dist April 2019	Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income(OCI)	Recognised of Statement of Profit & Loss	31st Merch 2020
Deferred tax Hability ensing an account of Timing difference between depreciation/emortization as per financials and depreciation as per tax. Software Expenditure Gals / (Loxic) on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation	259.07 1.26 8.44	0.00		1.42
Deferred Tax Liability (A)	254.77	0.00	-64.90	199.87
Less: Deferred tax asset arrang on account of : Provision for employee benefits Leans Lastelices (Impact of Transition to lind AS 116)	13.68			0.66 42.10 0.33
Deferred Tax Asset (B) Net (DTA)/DTL	13.68 251.09	15.59	13.17	

Particulars	01st April 2020	Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)	Recognised of Statement of Profit & Loss	31st Merch 2021
Defenset tax liability erosine an account of from a difference between depreciation/amortigation as per financials and disprediation as one tax Software Expenditure Gala / Closio on Fereign Exchange Fluctuation	194.17 1.42 4.20	0.00	-33 52 -2.04 6.50	-0.62
Deferred Tax Liability (A)	199.87	0.00	-35.56	164.31
Loss: Deferred tax asset arising on account of : Provision for amployee benefits Lease Liabilities (Impact of Trensition to Ind AS 116)	0.00 42.10 0.33	5.57	0.00 -0.05	0.00 47.61
Deferred Tax Asset (B) Net (DTA)/DTL	42,43 157,44	5,57	0.40 -35.97	48.40 115.91





Notes to Financial Statement for the Year ended 31st March, 2021

(Rs. in Lacs)

Note: 18 Trade Payables

Particulars	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
Total pulstanding dues of Micro eneserprises and Small Enterprises* Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro emeterprises and Small Enterprises	85.47 1865.81	70,96 3662.41
Total in ₹	1951.27	1733.36

(a) Information as required to be finalized as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 for the year ended 31st March, 2021 is given below.

Particulars	As at 31st Merch, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
this principal amount and the interest due thereon, remaining unpend to any supplier at the end of each accounting year. (3) Principal Amount		
Principal Amount	85.47	70.96
_Invest Anount		
the amount of interest god by the company in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting years.		
the amount of interest due and payable for the period of dalar in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium bitatorises Development Acc. 2006		
the amount of interest accrued and remaining unped of the end of each accounting year		
the amount of further interest remaining due and payeble even in the succeeding years, writt such date when the interest does abone are actually gold to the amout enterprise, for the purpose of sixulowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.		

(b) This information has been compiled in respect of the parties to the extent they could be identified as Micro and Small Enterprises on the basis of the information evaluable with the management as at 31st March, 2021.

Note: 19 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
*Unclaimed Divideral Sundry Creditors for Cepital Goods Lease Lightities	17.41 7.36 13.15	14.96 0.00 11.41
Total in t	37.92	26.37

\*These figures do not include any amount due & outstanding, to be credited to Investion Education & Protection Fund

Note: 20 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars	As at 31st Marsh, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
Statutory Dues Salary, Wages, Bonus & Allowantes Dishar Payables Customer Advances	19.20 167.42 9.00 0.81	21.42 174.43 0.04 18.53
Total in €	187.44	214.41

Note : 21 Provisions

Particulars	As at 31st Haron, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
(a) Provision for employees benefits Provision for Deficed Benefit Obligations (Gratuity & Compensated Absences)* (0) Provisions - Others  (0) Provisions - Others	85,80	58,44
- Others	61.09	76.54
Total in t	146.89	134.98

Note: 22 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars	As at 31st As at 31st March, 2020 March, 2020		
- Provision for Income Tax	0,00	0.00	
Total in t	0.06	0.00	





### Mohindra Fasteners Limited

Notes to Financial Statement for the Year ended 31st March, 2021

(Rs. in Luca)

Note: 23 Re	evenue from	Operations:
-------------	-------------	-------------

Particulary	Year ended 31st March, 2021	Year ended 31st March, 2020
a) Sale of Products Prished Product #	10.181.61	0,716.57
	10,181.61	9,718.57
b) Other Operating Revenue Steel & Scrap Sale # Outy Drawback & Other Report Incentives	146.70 271.32	323.91 305.33
	411.02	429.21
Total in ₹	10,601.63	10,147.79

Porticular	Year ended 31st March, 2021	Year ended 31st March, 2020
(e) Details of Product sold High Tenalis Faderiers #	(0183.63)	6210.57
(h) Earning in (oreign exchange Export of goods (FOB) #	7250.07	6403.46

Particulars	Year ended 31st Harch, 2031	Year ended 31st Harch, 2020
Taterest on -Fixed Deposits -Other	147.51 7.00	95.63 10.26
Dividend Statute on Long Term Investments Exchange Rate Difference (Net) Other Nan Operating Income	0.01 45,45, 36,86	0.05 174.35 38.26
Total in f	235.91	269,60

Note: 25 Cost of Material Consumed

Perticulars	Year ended 31st Harch, 2021	Year ended 31st Harch, 2020
Executory at the Beginning of the Year Porchases	509.85 3827.65	543.50 3649.73
	4337,54	4193.21
Inventory at the End of the Year	589.46	509.89
Total in f	3748.08	3683.34

Material Consumed Comprises:

- Wee Rock

3/48.0E 3623.34

# Note: 26 Change in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress & Stock in Trade

Particulars	Year ended 31st March, 2021	Year ended 31st March, 2020
Inventory at the Beginning of the Year Work in progress Frished Goods	293.75 718.09	280.54 632.20
Inventory at the End of the Year Work in progress Finished Goods	1031.34	917.74
	278.65 529.25 807.91	293-25 718,09 1011,34
Goornise V Decrease in Inventory.	203.42	(98.60)

Particulars	Year ended 31st March, 2021	Year ended 31st March, 2020
Salaries, Wages, Borus & Allowerces Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds Staff Workers Expanses	1851.44 70.54 77.50	1944,07 68,49 35,96
fotal in f	1961.57	2048.52

Note:-27.1
a (implayers benefit expenses incurring manageral remuseration 9s.83.86 (acs)P.V.Rs. 73.60 (acs). The Manageral Remuneration has been paid in accordance with the provisions of Sections 195, 197, 198. Schedule V and other applicable provisions of the Company Act. 2013. Also refer New 27.1 (b) for details about Employee Senerics.

#### Mohindra Fasteners Limited

Notes to Financial Statement for the Year ended 31st March, 2021

#### Note 27.1 (b) Employer henchi obligations

the Inches

Particulors	Al March 2021		At March 2020	
	Cantent	Non-current	Corretts	Non-current
Geomity	37.66	25.70	20.21	20.12
Compensated Absences	48.15	(26.09)	38.23	19.86
Total	35.81	(0.39)	58.44	39.98

#### 27.1 (b)(i) Defined benefits plant - Grating

The grantosy liability arrives on retirement, withdrawal, resignation and death of an employer. The interested liability is calculated on the laste of fifteen that within (i.e. last drawn have salary) for each completed year of service subject to vesting period of 5 years of service as per processes of Papaneon of Grantoy Act 1972 so amended."

#### Policy for recognizing actuarial gains and losses:

Actuarid gens and looks of defind benefit plan arising from experience indiasterious and effects of changes in actuarial assumptions are immediately recognised in other comprehensive income. Birks associated with the plan provisions are actuarial risks. These risks are invostment risk, mortality risks and salary risks.

#### Investment risk

Plan assen, comprise funds managed by the insurer i.e. Life Insurance Corporation of India (9.10%).

#### Mortality risk

The present value of the defined honefer plan liability is releasanted by reference to the best extensit, of the mortality of plan paracipants. A change in mortality rate will have a beging on the plan's liability.

#### Salary riek

The present value of the defined benefit plan fiability is calculated with the assumption of valuey increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary to future for plan participants from the rite of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a beening on the plan's liability.

#### (i) Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under

(i)	Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under		
	Description	Year ended 3t March 2021	Venrended 31 March 2020
	Current service cost	23.46	20.68
	Totalest contined	271	(0.97)
	Expense recognized in the Jaconse Statement as Employee Benefit Expense	26.19	19.71
	Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)	22.15	61.93
	Amount recognized in total Comprehensive Income	48.34	81.64
$\langle 0 \rangle$	Change in the present value of obligation:		
	Description	Yew ended	Year ended
	FEW WATER	53 Merch 2021	31 Marufi 2020
	Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year	234.99	149.11
	Cuttout service out	23/46	20.05
	Interest nost	15.69	10.08
	Part service and		
	Herufits paid	(18.27)	(7.17).
	Actuarial loss	22.51	62.29
(iii)	Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year.  Movement in the plan assets recognized in the balance sheet is as under:	278.58	234.99
	Discription	Year unded 31 March 2021	Year ended 31 March 2020
	Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year	194.66	163.49
	Atmsil Keturu (not)	13.52	11.42
	Contributions	25.31	26.92
	Henefits paid	(18.27)	(7.17)
	Actuarial gains / (lunses)	11000	0.40
	Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year	215.22	194.66
(iv)	Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of assets:		
	Description	Av at	As at
	A STATE OF THE STA	31 March 2021	31 March 2029
	Present value of funded obligation as at the end of the year	378.58	23490
	Fare value of plan assets as at the end of the period funded status	215.22	19466
	Unfunded/funded net liability/(Asset) recognized in halance sheet	65.36	40.33

101

Av.m	A= 3)
31 March 2021	31 Mach 2021
22.51	62.20
22.51	62.29
	22.51

#### (vi) Amount recognised in other comprehensive income (nemeasurements)

Description	As iii 3) Marich 2021	As at 31 March 2020
Actuarial (gains), losses arising from experience adjustments	2251	62.29
Actuartal gain / (lone) for the year on Amer	(0.36)	(0.360)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income	22.15	61.93

#### (vii) Actuarial assumptions

Description	As in 34 March 2022	As at 31 Norch 2920
Discount rate	5.69%	6765
strate Salary Energies:	600%	6,00%
Retirement ago:	90 /75 укан	III /75 years

#### Notes

- The discount rate is generally bessel upon the warket yields available on Government bonds at the accounting data soleroot to enouncy of benefit payments for a term that matches the liabilities.
- 2. The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seriority, promonon, HR Policy and other necessity factors.
- Plan assets comprise funds managed by the assurer i.e. Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).
- -t) The best estimated expense for the next year is INR 31.56 lacs.

#### (viii) The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of soul plan assets are as follows:

(Ro. In Laure)

The Company's highlity on account of gravity is assertained by actuarid values and planned asserts of the Company are managed by Life Issuerance Corporation of India in terms of managed by Life Issuerance of India obligations of the Company with respect to its gravity plan. The difference between the highlity ascertained on account of gravity by Life Insurance corporation of India and account a provided for in the financial statements of the Company.

Description	As at 31 March 2021	As at 31 March 2020
Panuls Managed by LIC	100%	100%

#### (ix) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

Description	As at 34 March 2021
Impact of change in discount rate	
Present value of obligation at the end of the year	
- Impact that to increase of 0.50 %	(13.03)
- Impust due to decrease of 0.50%	1414
Impact of change in salary increase	
Present value of obligation at the end of the year	
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 %	1266
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 %	0.178

Sensitivities due to murtality & withdrawals are not material & honce impact of change due to those not calculated. Sensitivities as rise of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before remember & life expectancy are not applicable.

#### (x) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Description		As at 31 March 2021
Within next 12 months	120	37.06
Between 1-5 years	1	42.66
Beyond 5 years	//	195127
William A Committee of the Committee of		1/

(ki) Weighted average duration of defined bourfit obligation is 15.22 years 431 March 3021 (Previous Year 15.41 Years)

#### 27.3(b)(ii) Compensated Alternois

He to Lance

Compensated absence (being administered by Tafe Inservece, Corporation of India) is a defined henefit violigation and is privaled for on the hairs of an accustial valuation made at the end of each financial year.

Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

Description	As at 51 March 2021	As at 3f March 2020
Commit service cost	1448	13.06
Interest cost	3.93	(0.26)
Actuarial loss/(goin) recognised during the year	1277	55.16
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss	31.18	67.96

#### ii) Change in the present value of obligation:

Description	Year coded 31 March 2021	Veir ended 51 March 2020
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year	145.61	77.34
Current service oner	14.46	13/96
Intraper neer	0.84	5.32
Past service anse		
Hersefits pand	(7.87)	(4.57)
Actuarid hos	13.35	34.36
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year	175.91	145.41

#### iii) Movement in the plan assets recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

Description	Year coded 30 March 2021	Veur ended 31 March 2020
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning, of the year	87.52	81,17
Acoual Return (net)	6.49	4.68
Contributions	67.21	6.04
Henrifits paid	(7.37)	(437)
Actuarial grans/(losses)		
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year	153.85	87.32

#### (v) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of assets:

Description	As ut 31 March 2021	As as 34 March 2020
Present value of funded obligation as at the end of the year	175.91	145,61
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period funded status	153.85	87.52
Unfunded/funded net liability/(Asset) recognized in balance sheet	22,96	58.09

#### Breakup of actuarial (gain)/loss:

Description	As at 34 March 2021	As set At March 2020
Networld gram//less from change in demographic assumption		
Accuarial (gain) /loss- from change in financial assumption	(1.05)	
Actuacial (gain)/less from experience adjustment	13.35	54.56
Total actuarial (gain)/loss	12.30	54.36

#### vi) Actuarial assumptions

Descripton	Au at 51 March 2021	As at 31 March 2020
Оносния тари	6.60° c	6.70%
Future Salary Incurase	6.00%	6.00%
Retirement age	60 /75 years	60 /75 years

- The discount rate is generally haved upon the market yields a radiable on Government bonds at the accounting date relevant to currency of bestefit payments for a term that matches the habilities.
- 2) The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, IIR Policy and other relevant factors.
- 3) The beg estimated expense for the next year is INR 17.36 kes.

#### (vii) Sensitivity analysis for Compensated Absences

Description	As at 51 March 2021
Impact of change in discount rate	
Present value of obligation at the end of the year	
- Impair the to increase of -0.50 %	(5.32)
- Import that to discrease of 0.50%	9.82
Impact of change in salary increase	
Present value of obligation at the end at the year	
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 %	9.85
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50%	(5.40)

Sensitivities due to mortality de withdrawals are not material de house impact of change due to these not calculated. Sensitivities as eye of increase of pensions in population, rate of increase of pensions before represent & life expectancy any rost applicable.

#### (viii) Manurity profile of defined benefit obligation

Description	As at 51 March 2021
Within next 12 strenths	48.15
Herwegn 1-5 years	17.51
Beyond 5 years	110.25

(ix) Weighted everage duration of defined benefit obligation is 15.22 years as it 31 March 2021 (Previous Year 15.41 Years)

#### 27.1.(b)(iii) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company makes countilution rowards provident fund to a defined contribution retirement hencfit plan for qualifying employees.

The provident fund is operated by the regional providend final Commissioner and the Company is required to contribute

a specific percentage of popull cost to the retirement schemes to fund the benefits.

The obligations of the Company is limited to the amount coordinated and it has no further contractival not any constructive obligations.

The expense neognized during the year rowards defined contribution plan is INR 44.36 lars (31 March 2020 -INR 48.79 Iaco).



## Mohindra Fasteners Limited Notes to Financial Statement for the Year ended 31st Harch, 2021

(Rs. in Lace)

Particulars	Year ended 31st March, 2021	Year ended 31st March, 2020
Triverest Enjoyeness on Barrowings Triperest on Lease Liabilities Other Barrowing Costs	27.25 1.99 31.13	32.91 5.13 17,43
Total in ₹	64.37	55.46

Note: 29 Depreciation & Amortisation Expense

Particulars	Year ended 31st March, 2921	Year ended 31st Harch, 2020
Deprecation on Property, Plant & Bautement tangible assets (Owned Assets) Deprecation on Right-of-use-Assets Amortisation on Intergible assets	303.70 13.21 1.28	12-65 3.41
Total in F	319-28	354.07

Note: 30 Other Expenses

Particulars	Year ender 31st March, 2021	Year ended 31st March, 2010
Consumption of Stores & Spore Parya.  Power & Fuel Consumed  Factory Building Mandenance  Require & Handenance to Power & Hactimery  Intervance Expenses  Avies, Toxes & Duties  for Work Expenses  Facking Material Consumed  Facking Material Consumed  Facking Material Consumed  Faceatr & Discount  Fayment to Auctions*  Copprise Scoal Responsibility Expenditure (Hotor Note AZ)  Miscelaneous Expenses	1986.33 818.35 55.92 105.01 19.66 10.39 304.46 308.61 31.52 4.86 72.13	1098 St 737, 74 8, 23 96 GU 19 39 18 U9 453.08 272.78 252.50 52.01 5.51 19.39 212.73
Fotal in ₹	3161.28	3165.42

\*Note :- Peyment to Auditors

Particular	Year ended 31st March, 2021	Year ended 31st March, 2020
As Auditor:  - 400t Fees - Certification Fees for other assistant - Edinburgentent of Expenses	4,35 8,50 8,04	4.35 9.51 0.66
fotal in t	4.89	5.51

Note: 31 Tax Expense

Particulars	Year ended 31st March, 2021	Year ended 31st Harch, 2020
Income tax recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss Current Tax Deferred Tax	376.43	350.47 (78.07
otal income tax expenses recognised in the current year	342.47	272.39



#### Mohindra Fasteners Limited

Notes to Financial Statement for the Year ended 31st March, 2021

(Re. in Luce)

Particulars	Year ended 31st March, 2021	Year ended 31st March, 2020
Profit before tax Applicable The rate* Computed Tax Expense Tax effect of: Difference in book depreciation & amortisation and depreciation & americation as per	1 360.53 25 168% 347.45	1209.17 25.169% 304.32
Income Tax Act, 1961 Charity, donation and CSR Expenses Deduction under chapter VI A Others	26.10 5.62 -2.76 0.05	31.12 5.17 -2.45 13.33
Current Tax Provision (A)	378.43	350.47
Deferred tax expense reported in the Materials of profit, and loss	-35.92	-78.07 -78.07
Deferred Tax Provision (B)	-35.96	-78.07
Tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (A+B)	342.47	272.39
Effective Yax rate	24 B07%	22.521%

\*Purposent to the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 issued on September 20, 2019, which is effective from April 1, 2019, domestic companies have the option to apply a Special locame tax rare U/s 1158AA with effect from April 1, 2019 subject to certain conditions specified there in. The Company has accordingly, it has recognised provision for income tax and remeasured its deferred tax liability for the year ended March 31, 2021 based on the lower annual effective income tax rate.

Note: 32 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Particulars	Year ended 31st March, 2021	Year ended 31st March, 2020
Rems that will not be recessified to profe or ites Re-measurement gams/(bases) on defined benefit Income Tax effect on above Nat (loss/gam or oquity instrument/Securities Income Tax effect on above	(22.15) 5.57 4.13 0.00	(65,93) 15.59 17.43) 0.00
Total in T	(12.46)	(\$3.77)

Note: 33 Earnings Per Equity Share	Rs. in	Lacs
Particulars	Year ended 31st March, 2021	Year ended 31st March, 2020
Nominal value of equity share more attributable to equity shareholders. (A)	1038'60 30	30 316.77
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B)  Basic earnings per equity ahore (A/®)  Dilutive effect on profit (C)  Front atmostable to equity shoreholders for computing (D)=(A)+(C)  Dilutive effect on weighted exerage number of equity shares outstanding during the year (C)  Weighted average number of riguity shares for computing Online EFS	5156800 19.38 1038.86	3756305 17.49 936.77
(F)=(5)=(E) Diluted cornings per equity share (O/F)	\$3\$6800 19.38	5356800 17.49





#### MOHINDRA FASTENERS LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

#### Note: 34 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for):

(0. The Company received Show Cause Notice (SCN) dated 03rd June, 2016 from the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, for the violation of Sections 211(3A) and 211(3(C) with regard to Accounting Standards 1,2,9,12,18 & 26 and Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956. The company filed detailed replies to the SCN vide dated 20th June, 2016 and also filed the compounding applications under section 621A of the companies Act, 1956 vide dated 26th July, 2016 and further correspondences made in 16th November, 2016. The adjudication thereof is pending from Honorable ROC and hence the possible consequences arising out of the same on the company are not presently ascertainable.

#### Note: 35 Related party disclosure as per Ind AS 24

- a) Parties where control exists: NIL
- b) Other parties with whom the company has entered into transactions during the year:-
- List of Key Management Personnel

Mr. Deepak Arneia Managing Director & CEO Mr. Ravinder Mohan Juneja Managing Director Mr. Gagandeep Singh Narang Non Executive director

Mr. Vinod Kumar Non Executive director & Independent Director Mr. Ved Prakash Chaudhary Non Executive director & Independent Director Mrs. Shamoli Thakur Non Executive director & Independent Director Mr. Sunil Mishra

Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Nidhi Pathak Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

## Close Family Members of Key Management Personnel who are under the Employment of the Company:

Mr. Dheeraj Juneja Son of Mr. Ravinder Mohan Juneja Mr. Sudhir Arneia

Brother of Mr. Deepak Ameja

### Details of Related Party Transactions during the year ended 31st March, 2021:

(Amount in Lacs)

Key Management Personnel &/ Close	Total
family member of KMP	(Amount in Rs.)
162.45	162.45
(152.25)	(152.25)
*93.14	*93.14
(50.81)	(50.81)
	family member of KMP 162.45 (152.25)





Sining Fees	1.20 (0.80)	1.20 (0.80)
Balance Outstanding as at the end	f the year:	
Remuneration Payable	14.36 (12.88)	14.36 (12.88)

Note:- The Figures shown above in ( ) are belongs to previous Year

## Disclosure in respect of Related Party Transactions during the year:

(Amount in Lars)

		(Amou	int in Locs)
Particulars	Relationship	2020-21	2019-20
a) Remuneration:			
Short Term Employee Benefits:-			
1 Deepak Arneja	Key Management Personnel	43.68	37.64
2.Ravinder Mohan Juneja	Key Management Personnel	40.18	35.96
3.Sudhir Ameja	Close Family Member of Key Management Personnel	23.59	22.24
4.Dheeraj Juneja	Close Family Member of Key Management Personnel	22.93	23.63
5. Sunil Mishra	Chief Financial Officer	24.54	25.25
6. Nidhi Pathak	Company Secretary	7.53	7,53
b) Sitting Fees:			
L Gagandeep Singh Narang	Key Management Personnel	0.30	0.10
2. Vinod Kumar	Key Management Personnel	0,40	0.30
3. Ved Prakash Chaudhary	Key Management Personnel	0.40	0.30
4. Shamoli Thakur	Key Management Personnel	010	0.10
		1	

e) Dividend Paid:			
1. Deepsk Arneja	Key Management Personnel	31.40	17.43
2. Ravinder Mohan Juneja	Key Management Personnel	27.79	15.16
3. Gagandeep Singh Narang	Key Management Personnel	03.59	1,96
4. Vinod Kumar	Key Management Personnel	0.11	0.06
5. Smil Mishra	Key Management Personnel	0.03	0.02
6. Dheeraj Juneja	Close Family Member of Key Management Personnel	8,64	4.71
7. Sudhir Arneja	Close Family Member of Key Management Personnel	21.58	11.77

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:

#### Note: 36 Disclosure in respect of Derivative Instruments:-

(Amount in Lacs)

- No Derivates Instruments (Forward Exchange Contract) outstanding as at 31st March, 2021.
- Foreign currency exposures that are not hedged by derivative instruments as at 31° March, 2021;

Particulars	EURO	USD	GBP
Import Trade Payables	0,10	2.27	0.00
	(0.00)	(0.00)	(0.00)
Export Trade Receivables	11.85	5,39	0.50
	(5.23)	(1.70)	(1.12)
Working Capital Loan	9,55	2.33	0.87
(PCFC) (Including Interest)	(7.90)	(3.40)	(0.98)

Note: 37 Value of imported and indigenous Raw Material. Store and Spare parts and packing material consumed and percentage of each to the total consumption as Certified by the management:-



4

Director's remuneration for the year 2020-2021 is as per limits prescribed under Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

<sup>-</sup> All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of the business and on arm's length basis.

<sup>-\*</sup>This amount of dividend is the sum of final dividend related to FY 2019-20 & paid during the FY 2020-21 and an interim dividend related to FY 2020-21 & paid during the FY 2020-21.

(Amount in Lacs)

Item		2020-2	1		21	019-20
Raw Impo- Indig		Value 104.36 3643.72	% nge 2.78 97.22		<u>Value</u> 198.36 3484.98	% age 5.39 94.61
		3748.08	100.00		3683.34	100.00
Store	s, Spare parts	and Packing Mate	rial			
Impo Indig	rted enous	72.87 1257.94	05,52 94.48	8	107.18 1184.10	08.30 91.70
		1330.82	100.00		1291.28	100.00
Note: 38	C.LF. V	alue of Imports			(	Amount in Lacs)
				2020-2	ŧ	2019-20
	-Plant & M -Raw Mate -Consumab -Pucking M -Tool & Di	rial des, Stores & Spare laterial	s	149.39 31.57 19.70 23.02		24.61 163.51 14.16 32.10 41.84
Note: 39	Expend	liture in Foreign C	arrency			(Amount in Lacs)
				2020-21		2019-20
	-Travelling F - Business Pr - Bank Charg - Interest on - Commissio	omotion & Advertis tes PCFC	sement	3,88 20,70 49,92		14.74 0.70 4.99 28.54 36.94
Note: 40	Earning is	ı Foreign Currency	,			(Amount in Lacs)
				2020-21	1	2019-20
	Exports at	FOB Value		7290.07	7	6403.46

#### Note: 41 Leases (Operating Lease)

The Company has taken one of its factory premises on lease at Rohtak. The Lease Agreement is valid till 31st December, 2022. The Company has adopted Ind AS\_L16 on "Leases" with effect from April 1, 2019 using modified retrospective approach along with a transition option to recognise Right of use (ROU) asset at an amount equal to





the lease liability. Accordingly, there is no impact of Ind AS 116 adoption to the retained earnings as at April 1, 2019 or the results reported for the year ended March 31, 2019. On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed from lease rent in previous periods to depreciation cost for the right-of-ase asset, and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability.

The details of the right-of-use asset, Lease Liability and Depreciation on right-of-use-asset & Interest on Lease Liabilities are as follows:

(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars	Addition for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Right- of- use asset and Lease Liabilities) (refer Note 5(b) and Note 15 and Note 19)	Depreciation on right-of-use asset during the year 2020-21 (Refer Note 5 (b))	Interest on Lease Liabilities shown as Finance cost during year ended March 31, 2021 (refer Note 28)	Lease Rent shown as other expenses during year ended March 31, 2021
Land & Building	46.63	13.15	3.99	17.14

#### Note: 42 Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
a) Gross amount required to be spent     (i.e. 2% of average net profit u/s 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 of last three preceding years)	22.13	19,35
b) Amount spent on:		
i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset	00	00
ii) On purpose other than i) above		
animal welfare and birds welfare	22.13	19.50

## Note: 43 Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments and respective financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities are, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables and financial guarantee contracts. The main purpose of the financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations.

The Company's principal financial assets include short terms arrangements, trade and other receivables, cash and short-term bank deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The business activities of the Company expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely market risks (that is, foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The financial risk management for the Company is driven by the Company's senior management subject to necessary supervision. The Company's risk management strategies focus on the unpredictability of the financial environment and seek to mitigate its potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company.

The Company's all operating divisions identify the risks as perceived by them and take immediate steps to minimize the impact and at the same time submit a report to the next higher level of reporting.





The Senior Management reviews each of these risks, which are summarised below.

#### a) Market risk

The Company is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specifically to currency risk, interest rate risk, credit, liquidity and certain other price risks, which result from both its operating and investing activities.

#### b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms or obligations. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted. The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

The Company enters into long term contracts with its regular customers thereby eliminating uncertainties also mitigates the risk exposure on high risk customers and avoids any such contracts with them. Further, one of the customers' of the Company forms more than 10% of the Company's total revenues as the Company makes a continuous effort in expanding its customer base. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and reviewed by the senior management periodically. At 31st March, 2021, the top 10 customers accounted for approximately 61% of all the receivables outstanding. At 31st March, the Company has certain trade receivables that have not been settled by the contractual due date but are not considered to be impaired. The amounts at 31st March analyzed by the length of time post due, are:

(Amount in Lacs)

	As at 31st March, 2021	As at 31st March, 2020
More than 180 days	121.72	48.96
Not More than 180 days	2252.49	1334.26
Total (Refer Note, 6(b) & 10)	2374.21	1383.22

#### c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future each flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's short term debt obligations with floating interest rates as the company has zero long term debt obligations.

#### d) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Company's borrowings in foreign currency. (Refer Note No. 36 to Ind AS Financial Statement).

No Forward contracts were entered into by the company either during the year or previous years since the company has very minimum exposure to foreign currency risk.

#### e) Equity price risk

The Company's investments are in listed equity securities. Equity risk is the risk involved in the changing prices of stock investments in the share market. All the investments in the equity portfolio are reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors.

At the reporting date, the exposure to listed equity securities at fair value was Rs. 9.24 Lacs (Rs. 5.12 Lacs as at 31st March, 2020).

f) Financial instruments and cash deposits

4

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the Company's policy, Investments of surplus funds are made by way of fixed deposits with scheduled banks within the limits assigned by the Senior Management.

#### g) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. Accordingly, as a prudent liquidity risk management measure, the Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system.

The company does not have any long term debt outstanding as on 31.03.2021. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its short term debt and concluded it to be low. The Board of Directors periodically reviews the Company's business requirements vis-a-vis the source of funding.

The table below summaries the maturity analysis of the Company's Trade Payable, Lease Liabilities on account of transition to Ind AS 116 and financial liabilities except short term borrowing repayable on demand:

(Amount in Lacs) Year ended 31st March, 2021 Less than one year More than one year Interest-bearing borrowing except short term Nil Nil borrowings Other financial liabilities 24.77 Nil Lease Liabilities 13.15 11.73 Trade Payables 1950.56 0.71

(Amount in Lucs) Year ended 31st March, 2020 Less than One year More than one year Interest-bearing borrowing except short term Nil Nil borrowings Other financial liabilities 14.96 NII Lease Liabilities 11,41 24.89 Trade Payables 1723.45 9.92

#### h) Other risk - Impact of COVID-19

Due to outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) which had been declared as a pandemic by the World Health Organisation and subsequent lock down ordered by the Central and State Governments(s) in India, the manufacturing activities of the Company remained suspended from March 23, 2020 onwards. The Company in compliance with the necessary instructions guidelines, resumed its manufacturing operations from April 27, 2020 in a phased manner, while ensuring health and safety of all the stakeholders.

This situation resulted in temporary disturbance in the economic activities through interruption in manufacturing process, disruption in supply chain, etc. for the Company during the year ended 31" March, 2021. This lockdown has impacted the sales performance of the Company during the first quarter of this year and also resulted in the financial burden for the Company as implementation of Company's green field project (construction of new Plant) came to a halt, although there is

h

4

no impact seen on capital & financial resources of the company because the Company has no long term debt and the utilization of working capital is well within the bank limits. Despite all this situation, our Company has earned a higher net profit for the year ended March, 31, 2021 as compared to previous year ended March 31, 2020.

Further the recent second wave of COVID-19 has resulted in partial lockdown/restriction in various states. However, the Company is closely monitoring the impact of the aforementioned pandemic and believes that there were will not be any adverse impact on the long term operations and performance of the Company.

However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature, duration and the extent covering almost the whole world. Overall, the balance period of the financial year, of 2021-2022, is likely to be difficult but we do hope the business situation should normalize from the 3rd and 4th Quarter of this year.

As per our report of even date

For B.L. Khandelwal & Co.

Chartered Accountants FRN: 000998N

BAJRANG LAL

KHANDELWAL KHANDELW Date: 2021.06.26 16:42:45 +05'30' AL

CA B.L. Khandelwal

(Partner)

Membership No. F-12331

Deepak Armyja (Managing Director & CEO)

Ravinder Mohan Juneja (Managing Director) DIN:-00006112 DIN:- 00006496

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: New Delhi

Digitally signed by BAJRANG LAL

Date: 26/06/2021

Sunil Mishra (Chief Financial Officer)

Nidhi Pathak (Company Secretary)



### B.L. KHANDELWAL & CO. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

1 Doctor's Lane, Gole Market, New Delhi Ph: 2374-2151/4372

(M): 98103-54277

E-mail: <u>blkhandelwal@yahoo.com</u>

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of, MOHINDRA FASTENERS LIMITED

# Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of MOHINDRA FASTENERS LIMITED, ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements, give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the State of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2021, the Profit and total comprehensive income, Changes in Equity and its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

## Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with

the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

### Emphasis of Matter -Impact of Outbreak of Corona Virus (Covid-19)

We draw attention to Note 43(h) of the IND AS Financial statements, which explains the uncertainties and the management's assessment of the financial impact related to Covid-19 pandemic situation, for which a definitive assessment of the impact in subsequent period is highly dependent on future economic developments and circumstances as they evolve.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

## Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

## Revenue recognition See Note 23 to the financial statements:

#### S.NO. KEY AUDIT MATTERS AUDITOR'S RESPONSE 1. Revenue from sale of goods is Our audit procedures included: recognized when control of the assessed products being sold appropriateness of the revenue transferred to the customer recognition accounting policies, and when there are no longer including those relating any unfulfilled obligations. The rebates and discounts by performance obligations in the comparing with applicable contracts are fulfilled at the accounting standards. time of dispatch, delivery or formal customer tested the design, acceptance depending on implementation and operating customer terms effectiveness of management's general IT controls and key Revenue is measured at fair application controls over the value of the consideration Company's IT systems which received or receivable. after recognition, govern revenue deduction of trade anv including access controls. discounts, volume rebates and controls over program changes, any taxes or duties collected on between interfaces different behalf of the Government such systems and key manual as goods and services tax etc. internal controls over revenue Accumulated experience recognition to assess used to estimate the provision completeness of the revenue discounts and rebates. entries being recorded in the Revenue is only recognized to ledger general accounting the extent that it is highly system. probable a significant reversal will not occur. perform substantive testing by selecting samples of There is a risk of revenue being revenue transactions recorded fraud. overstated due to during the year by verifying the including through underlying documents, which manipulation of rebates and included goods; goods dispatch discounts. resulting from notes and shipping documents. pressure the management may feel to achieve performance We inspected, on a sample targets at the reporting period basis, key customer contracts

end.	to identify terms and conditions relating to goods acceptance and rebates and assessing the Company's revenue recognition policies with reference to the requirements of the applicable accounting standards.
	<ul> <li>We performed cut off testing for samples of revenue transactions recorded before and after the financial year end date by comparing with relevant underlying documentation, which included goods dispatch notes and shipping documents, to assess whether the revenue was recognized in the current period.</li> </ul>

Provision for taxation, litigation and other significant provisions See Note 12(b), 17, 21 and 22 to the financial Statements:

S.NO.	KEY AUDIT MATTERS	AUDITOR'S RESPONSE
2.	Accrual for tax and other contingencies requires the Management to make judgments and estimates in relation to the issues and exposures arising from a range of matters relating to direct tax, indirect tax, claims, general legal proceedings, environmental issues and other eventualities arising in the regular course of business.  The key judgment lies in the estimation of provisions where they may differ from the	We tested the effectiveness of controls around the recognition of provisions.      We used subject matter experts to assess the value of material provisions in light of the nature of the exposures, applicable regulations and related correspondence with the authorities.      We challenged the assumptions and critical judgments made by management which impacted.

future obligations. By nature, provision is difficult to estimate and includes many variables. Additionally, depending on timing, there is a risk that costs could be provided inappropriately that are not yet committed.

required, considering judgments previously made by the authorities in the relevant jurisdictions or any relevant opinions given by the Company's advisors and assessing whether there was an indication of management bias.

- We discussed the status in respect of significant provisions with the Company's internal tax and legal team.
- We performed retrospective review of management judgments relating to accounting estimate included in the financial statement of prior year and compared with the outcome.

## Assessment of contingent liabilities relating to litigations and claims See Note 34 to the financial statements:

S.NO.	KEY AUDIT MATTERS	AUDITOR'S RESPONSE
3.	The Company is periodically scrutiny the matters relating to direct tax and indirect tax further, potential exposures may also arise from general legal proceedings, environmental issues etc. in the normal course of business.  Assessment of contingent liabilities disclosure requires Management to make judgments and estimates in relation to the issues and exposures. Whether the liability is inherently	<ul> <li>Our audit procedures included:</li> <li>We tested the effectiveness of controls around the recording and re-assessment of contingent liabilities.</li> <li>We used our subject matter experts to assess the value of material contingent liabilities in light of the nature of exposures, applicable regulations and related correspondence with the authorities.</li> <li>We discussed the status and potential exposures in respect of significant litigation and claims</li> </ul>

uncertain, the amounts involved are potentially significant and the application of accounting standards to determine the amount, if any, to be provided as liability, is inherently subjective.

with the Company's internal legal team including their views on the likely outcome of each litigation and claim and the magnitude of potential exposure and sighted any relevant opinions given by the Company's advisors.

- We assessed the adequacy of disclosures made.
- We discussed the status in respect of significant provisions with the Company's internal tax and legal team.
- We performed retrospective review of management judgments relating to accounting estimate included in the financial statement of prior year and compared with the outcome.

## Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the information included in Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

## Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and Cash Flows of the Company in accordance accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

## Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

# As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matter communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore key audit matters. We describe these matters in out auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonable be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

## INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Contd.)

## Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

- AsrequiredbytheCompanies(Auditor'sReport)Order,2016("theOrder"),issuedbytheCentralGovernment of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure-"A", a statement on themattersspecifiedintheparagraphs3and4oftheOrder,totheextenta pplicable.
- 2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

- We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
- b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
- e. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
- d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
- e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
- With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure -\*B".
- g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirement of section 197(16) of the act, as amended; In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
  - In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.
- b. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations furnished to us:

- The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements-Refer note no.34 to the financial statements.
- ii. the Company has no long-term derivative contracts and there are no other long term contracts.
- iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For B.L. Khandelwal & Co. Chartered Accountants Regn. No. 000998N

Place: Delhi

Date: 26.06.2021

UDIN: 21012331AAAADJ9107

BAJRANG LAL Digitally signed by BAJRANG LAL HANDELWA KHANDELWAL Date: 2021.06.26 17:50:38 +05'30'

CA B.L. Khandelwal

(Partner) Membership No. F12331

# ANNEXURE-"A" TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF MOHINDRA FASTENERS LIMITED, DELHI FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Annexure "A" referred to in our report under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements Para 1" of even date on the accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2021

- (a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment
  - (b) Property, Plant & Equipment are physically verified by the management in accordance with a regular programme at reasonable intervals. In our opinion the interval is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
  - (c) Based on the audit procedure performed and according to the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.
- 2. The inventory (excluding stock lying with third parties and Goods in transit) has been physically verified, at reasonable intervals during the year by the management. In respect of inventories lying with third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies between the physical stocks and the books were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.
- 3. According to information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted any loan to a company, firm, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the order are not applicable to the company.
- 4 During the year, the company has not granted any loan nor provided any security. The Company has not made any investment during the year. Hence reporting on whether there is compliance with provisions of section 185 and 186 of the

Companies Act, 2013 on these aspects does not arise.

- 5. According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act,2013; any other relevant provisions of the Act and relevant rules framed there under.
- 6. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.
- 7. (a) According to the records provided to us, the Company was generally regular in depositing undisputed

statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Duty of Custom, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities.

- (b) According to the information and explanations furnished to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income Tax, Duty of Custom, Goods and Service Tax and Cess were in arrears, as at 31stMarch 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
- 8. Based on our verification and according to the information and explanations furnished by the management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to its banks. The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings from financial institutions or government. The Company has not issued debentures and hence question of reporting delay in repayment of dues does not arise.

- 9. Based on our verification and according to the information and explanations furnished by the management, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial/further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence reporting on utilization of such money does not arise. The Company has not availed term loan during the year. Accordingly, para 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.
- 10. Based on the audit procedures adopted and information and explanations furnished to us by the management, no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.
- In our opinion and according to the information and explanations furnished to us, managerial remuneration has been paid and provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.
- 12. The Company is not chit fund or nidhi/mutual benefit trust/society. Therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
- (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations furnished to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.
  - (b) The details of transactions during the year have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. Refer note no. 35 to the financial statements.
- 14. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations furnished to us, during the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures under section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, reporting under clause 3(xiv) shall not be applicable.

- 15. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations furnished to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Therefore, the provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.
- 16. The Company is not required to be register under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For B.L. Khandelwal & Co. Chartered Accountants Regn. No. 000998N

Place: Delhi

Date: 26.06.2021

UDIN: 21012331AAAADJ9107

BAJRANG LAL by BAJRANG LAL KHANDELWAL Date: 2021.06.26

17:51:03 +05'30'

CA B.L. Khandelwal

(Partner) Membership No. F12331 ANNEXURE-"B" TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTOTHEMEMBERSOFMOHINDRAFASTENERSLIMITED, DELHIF ORTHEYEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' Section of Our Report to the members of Mohindra Fasteners Limited of even date)

ReportontheInternalFinancialControlsunderClause(i)ofSubsection3ofSection143oftheCompanies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MOHINDRAFASTENERSLIMITED, DELHI("theCompany")asofMarch31,2021inconjunctionwithouraudito fthefinancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

### Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (hereinafter "ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, andthetimelypreparationofreliablefinancialinformation, asrequired un derthe Companies Act, 2013.

## Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing,

issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls, and both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

## Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that;

# ANNEXURE-"B" TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSTOTHEMEMBERSOFMOHINDRAFASTENERSLIMITED, DELHIF ORTHEYEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021 (Contd.)

- pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
- II. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and
- Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

## Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to over financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

## Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these

financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B.L. Khandelwal & Co.

Chartered Accountants Regn. No. 000998N

BAJRANG LAL BAJRANG LAL KHANDELWAL Date: 2021.06.26

Digitally signed by KHANDELWAL

17:51:23 +05'30'

Date: 26.06.2021

Place: Delhi

UDIN: 21012331AAAADJ9107

CA B.L. Khandelwal

(Partner) Membership No. F12331



## B. L. KHANDELWAL & CO. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

1, Doctor's Lane, Gole Market, New Delhi - 110001 Phones: Off.: 23742151, 23744372 Resi.: 27561073

E-mail: blkhandelwakayahoo.com

Independent Auditor's Review Report on the Unaudited Financial Results for the quarter & half year ended 30th September, 2021 of Mohindra Fasteners Limited Pursuant to the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

To
The Board of Directors
M/s Mohindra Fasteners Limited

- 1. We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unauditedfinancial results of Mohindra Fasteners Limited("the Company") for the quarter ended September 30, 2021 and year to date results for the period from April 01, 2021 to September 30, 2021(the "statement"), attached herewith being submitted by the company pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the "Listing Regulations")(as amended), including relevant circulars issued by the SEBI from time to time.
- 2. This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Company's management and approved by the Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard 34 "Interim Financial Reporting" ("Ind A3 34"), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. Ourresponsibility is to issue a report on the Statement based on our review.
- 3. We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagement (SRE) 2410, "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity" issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether this statement is free of



material misstatement. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and an analytical procedure applied to financial data and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

4. Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying statement of unaudited financial results, prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards i.e. Ind AS prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other recognised accounting practices and policies, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement.

For B. L. Khandelwal& Co. Chartered Accountants FRN: 000998N

Ashia Madi

CA Ashish Modi

Partner

M.No. F-501180

UDIN: 21501180AAAACH7977

Place:-New Delhi Date:-13.11.2021



## MOHINDRA FASTENERS LIMITED

Regd. Office: 304, Gupta Arcade, Inder Enclave, Delhi-Rohtak Rusd, Delhi-110087

CIN: L74899DL1995PLC064215, Tel. No.: +91-11-46200400, Fax No.: 011-46200444 Website: www.mobindra.asia, E-mail: espidhipathak@mobindra.asia

(Rs. In Lakhy)

Sr. Na.	PARTICULARS	Quarter ended			Half Year ended		Year ended
		30-09-2021	30-06-2021	39-09-2020	30-09-2028	30-09-2020	31-03-2021 Audited
		Unandited	Unaudited	Unaudited	Unaudited	Unaudited	
1	Revenue						
	Revenue from Operations	3310.03	2383.96	2655.77	5693 99	4286.91	10601.63
	Other Income	87,37	40.40	40.23	127.77	104.37	236 91
	Total Income	3397.40	2424.36	2696.00	\$821.76	4391.28	10838.54
31	Expenses						
	a. Cost of materials consumed	1062,12	1046.01	778.39	2108 13	1294.51	3748.06
	b. Purchase of stock-in-trade	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
	c. Changes in inventories of finished goods,						
	work-in-progress and stock-in-trade	58.81	(178.61)	282 31	(119.80)	343.60	203.43
	d. Employee benefits expense	592 69	547.78	443.72	1140,47	783.90	1961.57
	e. Finance costs	15.97	24.08	19.03	40.05	35.87	64.37
	f. Depreciation and amortisation expense	69.90	74.23	\$0.17	14413	158.11	319.28
	g. Other expenses	1142.51	717.76	769.21	- 1860.27	1225.62	3161.28
	Total Espensos	1941.00	2231.25	2373.33	5193.25	3841,81	9458.01
tII	Profit / (Luss) from operations before Exceptional items and tax (I-II)	455.40	193.11	322.67	648.53	549,47	1380.53
IV	Exceptional items	0.00	0.00	0,00	0.00	0.00	0.00
V	Profit / (Loss) after exceptional items and before Tex (Iff+fV)	455,40	193.11	322.67	648.51	549.47	1380.53
VI	Tax expense:						The second second
	(a) Current Tax	120.41	35.94	69,32	176.35	125.45	372.43
	(b) Deferred Tax	-5.49	-9.33	-21.50	-14.82	-32.55	-35.9€
VII	Profit / (Loss) for the period (V-VI) from continuing operations	340.49	146.50	. 274.85	496.98	456.57	. 1038.06
VIII	Profit /(Lass) from discontinued operations	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.50	0.00	0.00
IX	Tax expenses of discontinued operations	0.00	, 0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
x	Net Profit / (Loss) from discontinued operations after tax (VIII-IX)	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
XI	Profit / (Lost) for the pried (VII+X)	340.48	146.58	274,85	486.98	456.57	1038.06
XII	Other Comprehenisve Income(OCI)						
	A. Items that will not be reclassified to the statement of Profit or Loss (i) Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans	(5.54)	(534)	(12.38)	(11.08)	(24.77)	(22.15)
	(ii) Income tax effect on above	1.40	1.39	331	2.79	6.23	5.57
	(iii) Fair value gains/(losses) on Equity Instruments	0.94	108 0.88	0.34	1.82	2.53	4.12

	(iv) Income tax effect on above	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
7	B(i) Items that will be classified to the statement of Profit or Loss	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
	(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to the statement of Profit or Lose	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
XIII	Tutal Other Comprehensive Income for the period (XI+XII)	337.28	143.23	265,92	480.51	440.56	1025.60
XIV	Paid-up equity share capital. (Face Value of Rs. 19/- each fully paid up)	535.68	535.68	535.6B	535.68	535.68	535.68
XV	Earning per share(EPS)* (before & after extraordinary items)	100					
	(a) Basic(in Rs.) (for continuing operations)	6.36	2,73	5.13	9.09	8.52	19.38
	(b) Diluted(in Rs.) (for continuing operations)	6.36	2.73	5.13	9.09	8.52	19.38
	See accompanying note to the financial results					Year The	
	*EPS not annualised except for the year ended 31st March, 2021						

## Notes:-

- 1. The above unaudited financial results of the Company for the quarter & six months ended 30th September, 2021 have been reviewed and recomended by the Audit Committee and thereafter approved by the Board of Directors at their respective meetings held on November 13, 2021. The statutory auditors of the Company have expressed an unmodified review on these results.
- The statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
  readwith relevent rules thereunder and in compliance with the presentation & disclosure requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015(
  as amended).
- 3. The disclosures under Ind AS 108 segment reporting are not required to be made, the Company is operating only in one business segment viz manufacturing of fasteners.
- 4. The Company continues to closely monitor the impact of COVID-19 pandemic and believes that there are, currently, no material impact on its operations and financial performance owing to the aforementioned pandemic.
- 5. The above financial results of the company are available on the Company's website at www.mohindra.asia and also on the website of the stock exchange at www.msei.in.
- 6. Figures for the previous period have been re-classified/re-grouped, wherever necessary, to confirm with the current period classification.

PLACE: New Delhi

DATE: - 13.11.2021

For & on behalf of the board

Sunit Mishra (Chief Financial Officer) Deepak Arneja (Managing Director & CEO)

DIN: 00006112

## ACCOUNTING RATIOS AND CAPITALISATION STATEMENT

## ACCOUNTING RATIOS

The following table presents certain accounting and other ratios derived from our Audited Financial Statements included in "Financial Statements"

Particulars	Year ended March 31, 2021	Year ended March 31, 2020
Earnings Per Share (EPS) (Basic and Diluted) (₹)	19.38	17.49
Return on Net Worth (excluding revaluation reserve) (in %)	15.68	15.90
Net Asset Value per share (₹)	123.60	109.96
EBITDA (₹ in Lakhs)	1764.18	1618.70
EBITDA (%)	16.64	15.95

## These ratios have been computed as under:

- **1. Earnings Per Share (RS)**: Net Profit after tax for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders divided by weighted average no of equity shares outstanding during the period.
- **2. Return on Net Worth (%)**: Net Profit after tax for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders divided by Net Worth at the end of the period multiplied by 100.
- **3.** Net Asset Value Per Share (RS): Net Assets as at the year ended/ period end divided by total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the period.
- **4. EBITDA** (in lakhs): Profit before tax plus finance costs plus depreciation and amortization expenses less interest income.
- **5. EBITDA** (%): [EBITDA/ (Revenue-Interest Income)] \* 100

## CAPITALIZATION STATEMENT

The following tables present the capitalization statement as per the Financial Information as March 31, 2021 and as adjusted for the Issue of our Company:

Amount (₹ in lakhs)

Particulars	Pre-Issue as at March 31, 2021	As Adjusted Post Issue*
Total Borrowings:		
Current Borrowings (A)	1510.57	3,610.57
Non-Current borrowings (including current maturities) (B)	0.00	0.00
Total Borrowings $(C) = (A) + (B)$	1510.57	3,610.57
Total Equity:		
Share Capital (D)	535.68	589.25
Reserve & Surplus (E)	6085.50	6514.04
Total Equity $(F) = (D) + (E)$	6621.18	7103.29
Ratio: Non-current Borrowings (including current maturity/ Total Equity $(G) = (C) / (F)$	0.23	0.51

## STOCK MARKET DATA FOR EQUITY SHARES OF OUR COMPANY

Our Company's Equity Shares are listed on the MSEI Limited.

For the purpose of this section:

- 1) Year is a calendar year;
- 2) Average price is the average of the daily closing prices of the Equity Shares for the year, or the month, as the case may be;
- 3) High price is the maximum of the daily high prices and low price is the minimum of the daily low prices of the Equity Shares, for the year, or the month, as the case may be; and
- 4) In case of two days with the same high/low/closing price, the date with higher volume has been considered.

# **Stock Market Data of the Equity Shares**

As mentioned under the Annual Report of our Company for Financial Year 2019-20, it is important to mentioned here that since the shares of the Company were not traded on MSEI during the Financial Year 2019-20, Market price of the MSEI is not available.

The Issue Price of Rs.90/- (including premium of Rs.80/-) has been decided by the Board in consultation with the Lead Manager.

## SECTION VI – LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

#### OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, DEFAULTS AND MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS

There are no outstanding litigations involving our Company and our Subsidiaries including, suits, criminal or civil proceedings and taxation related proceedings that would have a material adverse effect on our operations, financial position or future revenues. In this regard, please note the following:

- (i) In determining whether any outstanding litigation against our Company, other than litigation involving issues of moral turpitude, criminal liability, material violations of statutory regulations or proceedings relating to economic offences against our Company, would have a material adverse effect on our operations or financial position or impact our future revenues, we have considered all pending litigations involving our Company, other than criminal proceedings, statutory or regulatory actions, as 'material' and
- (ii) our Company is not involved in any litigation involving issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability, material violations of statutory regulations or proceedings relating to economic offences, which are currently pending.

Our Company, from time to time, has been and continues to be involved in legal proceedings, arising in the ordinary course of its business. These legal proceedings are in the nature of civil as well as tax proceedings and we believe that the number of proceedings in which it is involved is not unusual for companies of its size doing business in India.

It is clarified that for the purposes of the above, pre-litigation notices (other than those issued by statutory or regulatory authorities) received by our Company shall, unless otherwise decided by the Board, not be considered as litigation until such time that our Company is impleaded as a defendant in litigation proceedings before any judicial forum.

## 1. DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO WILFUL DEFAULTERS

Neither our Company or the Promoters and nor our Directors are or have been classified as a wilful defaulter by a bank or financial institution or a consortium thereof in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by RBI.

## 2. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

We confirm that other than the disclosures made in the financial statements as appearing in this Letter of Offer, there are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company.

#### 3. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS SINCE THE DATE OF THE LAST AUDITED ACCOUNTS

Since the date of the latest audited balance sheet i.e. March 31, 2021, our Company incorporated a Joint Venture Company by the name of "KK MOHINDRA FASTENINGS PRIVATE LIMITED ("JOINT VENTURE")" with the Registrar of Companies NCT of Delhi & Haryana at New Delhi. This change may materially and adversely affect or are likely to affect our operations, performance, prospects or profitability, or the value of our assets or our ability to pay material liabilities.

#### GOVERNMENT AND OTHER APPROVALS

Our Company has obtained necessary comments, licenses, permissions and approvals from governmental and regulatory authorities that are material for carrying on our present business activities. Some of the approvals and license that our Company requires for our business operations may expire in the ordinary course of business, and our Company will apply for their renewal from time to time.

There are no material pending regulatory and government approvals and no pending renewals of license or approvals in relation to the activities undertaken by our Company, or in relation to the Issue.

# APPROVALS FROM GOVERNMENT / REGULATORY AUTHORITY IN RELATION TO OUR BUSINESS:

Material approvals for which applications have been made by our Company but are currently pending grant: NIL

Material approvals which have expired and for which renewal applications have been made by our Company: NIL

Material approvals which have expired and for which renewal applications are yet to be made by our Company: NIL

Material approvals for which no application has been made by our Company: NIL

#### OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

#### Authority for the Issue

Our Board has pursuant to a resolution passed in its meeting held on February 10, 2021 authorized this Issue.

Our Company has applied for 'in-principle' approvals from the MSE for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be allotted in the Issue pursuant to their letters dated 22/10/2021

Our Board in their meeting held on Wednesday, February 10, 2021 have determined the Issue Price Rs. 90/- (including a premium of Rs. 80/-) per Rights Equity Share and the Rights Entitlement as 01(One) Rights Equity Share(s) for every 10 (Ten) Equity Share(s) held on the Record Date. The Issue Price has been arrived at in consultation with the Lead Manager to the Issue.

## Prohibition by SEBI or RBI or other governmental authorities

Our Company, the Promoters, the members of the Promoter Group and the Directors of our Company have not been prohibited or debarred from accessing or operating in the capital markets, or restrained from buying, selling or dealing in securities under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental authority.

The companies with which our Promoters, our Directors or the persons in control of our Company are or were associated as promoter, directors or persons in control have not been debarred from accessing the capital market under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental authority.

None of the Directors of our Company are associated with the securities market in any manner.

We confirm that none of our Promoters or Directors is a fugitive economic offender.

# Eligibility for the Issue

Our Company is eligible to make this Rights Issue in terms of Chapter III of SEBI ICDR Regulations. Our Company is in compliance with the provisions specified in Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as explained below:

- 1. Our Company has been filing periodic reports, statements and information with the MSEI in compliance with the SEBI Listing Regulations and listing agreements (to the extent applicable) for the last three years immediately preceding the date of filing of this Letter of Offer with SEBI;
- 2. The reports, statements and information referred to in paragraph (a) above are available on the website of MSEI with nationwide trading terminals or on a common e-filing platform specified by SEBI
- **3.** Our Company has investor grievance-handling mechanism which includes meeting of the Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committee at frequent intervals, appropriate delegation of power by the Board as regards share transfer and clearly laid down systems and procedures for timely and satisfactory redressal of investor grievances.

As our Company satisfies the conditions specified in Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of SEBI ICDR Regulations, disclosures in this Letter of Offer have been made in terms of Clause (5) of Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

# Compliance with Regulation 62(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Our Company is in compliance with the conditions specified in Regulation 62(1), to the extent applicable. Further, in relation to compliance with Regulation 62(1)(a) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company has made applications for "in-principle" approval for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to MSEI. We have received such approvals from the MSEI vide their letters dated 22/10/2021. We will apply to the MSEI for final approval for the listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares. Our Company has chosen MSEI Ltd as the Designated Stock Exchange for the Issue.

#### DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI

AS REQUIRED, A COPY OF THE LETTER OF OFFER HAS BEEN SUBMITTED TO SEBI. IT IS TO BE DISTINCTLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THE LETTER OF OFFER TO SEBI SHOULD NOT, IN ANY WAY BE DEEMED OR CONSTRUED THAT THE SAME HAS BEEN CLEARED OR APPROVED BY SEBI. SEBI DOES NOT TAKE ANY RESPONSIBILITY EITHER FOR THE FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS OF ANY SCHEME OR THE PROJECT FOR WHICH THE ISSUE IS PROPOSED TO BE MADE, OR FOR THE CORRECTNESS OF THE STATEMENTS MADE OR OPINIONS EXPRESSED IN THE LETTER OF OFFER. THE LEAD MANAGER, INTELLICITY CAPITAL ADVISERS PRIVATE LIMITED, HAS CERTIFIED THAT THE DISCLOSURES MADE IN THIS LETTER OF OFFER ARE GENERALLY ADEQUATE AND ARE IN CONFORMITY WITH SEBI (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2018 IN FORCE FOR THE TIME BEING. THIS REQUIREMENT IS TO FACILITATE INVESTORS TO TAKE AN INFORMED DECISION FOR MAKING INVESTMENT IN THE PROPOSED ISSUE.

IT SHOULD ALSO BE CLEARLY UNDERSTOOD THAT WHILE THE ISSUER IS PRIMARILY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CORRECTNESS, ADEQUACY AND DISCLOSURE OF ALL RELEVANT INFORMATION IN THIS LETTER OF OFFER, THE LEAD MANAGER IS EXPECTED TO EXERCISE DUE DILIGENCE TO ENSURE THAT THE ISSUER DISCHARGES ITS RESPONSIBILITY ADEQUATELY IN THIS BEHALF AND TOWARDS THIS PURPOSE LEAD MANAGER, INTELLICITY CAPITAL ADVISERS PRIVATE LIMITED, HAS FURNISHED TO SEBI, A DUE DILIGENCE CERTIFICATE DATED OCTOBER 23, 2021, WHICH READS AS FOLLOWS:

- 1. WE HAVE EXAMINED VARIOUS DOCUMENTS INCLUDING THOSE RELATING TO LITIGATION LIKE COMMERCIAL DISPUTES, PATENT DISPUTES, DISPUTES WITH COLLABORATORS, ETC. AND OTHER MATERIAL IN CONNECTION WITH THE FINALISATION OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER PERTAINING TO THE ISSUE;
- 2. ON THE BASIS OF SUCH EXAMINATION AND THE DISCUSSIONS WITH THE COMPANY, ITS DIRECTORS AND OTHER OFFICERS, OTHER AGENCIES, AND INDEPENDENT VERIFICATION OF THE STATEMENTS CONCERNING THE OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE, PRICE JUSTIFICATION AND THE CONTENTS OF THE DOCUMENTS AND OTHER PAPERS FURNISHED BY THE COMPANY, WE CONFIRM THAT:
  - a) THIS LETTER OF OFFER FILED WITH SEBI IS IN CONFORMITY WITH THE DOCUMENTS, MATERIALS AND PAPERS RELEVANT TO THE ISSUE:
  - b) ALL THE MATERIAL LEGAL REQUIREMENTS RELATING TO THE ISSUE AS ALSO THE REGULATIONS, GUIDELINES, INSTRUCTIONS, ETC. FRAMED/ISSUED BY SEBI, THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT AND ANY OTHER COMPETENT AUTHORITY IN THIS BEHALF HAVE BEEN DULY COMPLIED WITH; AND
  - c) THE MATERIAL DISCLOSURES MADE IN THE LETTER OF OFFER ARE TRUE, FAIR AND ADEQUATE TO ENABLE THE INVESTORS TO MAKE A WELLINFORMED DECISION AS TO THE INVESTMENT IN THE PROPOSED ISSUE AND SUCH DISCLOSURES ARE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, TO THE EXTENT APPLICABLE, SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2018 AND OTHER APPLICABLE LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.
- 3. WE CONFIRM THAT BESIDES OURSELVES, ALL THE INTERMEDIARIES NAMED IN THIS LETTER OF OFFER ARE REGISTERED WITH SEBI AND THAT TILL DATE SUCH REGISTRATION IS VALID.
- 4. WE HAVE SATISFIED OURSELVES ABOUT THE CAPABILITY OF THE UNDERWRITERS TO FULFIL THEIR UNDERWRITING COMMITMENTS NOT APPLICABLE.
- 5. WE CERTIFY THAT WRITTEN CONSENT FROM PROMOTERS HAS BEEN OBTAINED FOR INCLUSION OF THEIR SPECIFIED SECURITIES AS PART OF PROMOTERS' CONTRIBUTION SUBJECT TO LOCK-IN AND THE SPECIFIED SECURITIES PROPOSED TO FORM PART OF PROMOTERS' CONTRIBUTION SUBJECT TO LOCK-IN SHALL NOT BE DISPOSED / SOLD / TRANSFERRED BY THE PROMOTERS DURING THE PERIOD STARTING FROM THE DATE OF FILING THE LETTER OF OFFER WITH THE SEBI TILL THE DATE OF COMMENCEMENT OF LOCK-IN PERIOD AS STATED IN THE LETTER OF OFFER NOT APPLICABLE.
- 6. WE CERTIFY THAT REGULATION 15 OF THE SEBI (ICDR) REGULATIONS, WHICH RELATES TO SPECIFIED SECURITIES INELIGIBLE FOR COMPUTATION OF PROMOTERS CONTRIBUTION, HAS BEEN DULY COMPLIED WITH AND APPROPRIATE DISCLOSURES AS TO COMPLIANCE WITH THE SAID REGULATION

- 7. WE UNDERTAKE THAT SUB-REGULATION (3) OF REGULATION 14 AND CLAUSE (C) AND (D) OF SUB-REGULATION (9) OF REGULATION 25 OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS 2018 SHALL BE COMPLIED WITH. WE CONFIRM THAT ARRANGEMENTS HAVE BEEN MADE TO ENSURE THAT PROMOTERS' CONTRIBUTION SHALL BE RECEIVED AT LEAST ONE DAY BEFORE THE OPENING OF THE ISSUE. WE UNDERTAKE THAT AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE TO THIS EFFECT SHALL BE DULY SUBMITTED TO SEBI. WE FURTHER CONFIRM THAT ARRANGEMENTS HAVE BEEN MADE TO ENSURE THAT PROMOTERS' CONTRIBUTION SHALL BE KEPT IN AN ESCROW ACCOUNT WITH A SCHEDULED COMMERCIAL BANK AND SHALL BE RELEASED TO THE COMPANY ALONG WITH THE PROCEEDS OF THE PUBLIC ISSUE NOT APPLICABLE.
- 8. WE CONFIRM THAT NECESSARY ARRANGEMENTS HAVE BEEN MADE TO ENSURE THAT THE MONEYS RECEIVED PURSUANT TO THE ISSUE ARE CREDITED/TRANSFERED IN A SEPARATE BANK ACCOUNT AS PER THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 40(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND THAT SUCH MONEYS SHALL BE RELEASED BY THE SAID BANK ONLY AFTER PERMISSION IS OBTAINED FROM ALL THE STOCK EXCHANGES MENTIONED IN THE LETTER OF OFFER. WE FURTHER CONFIRM THAT THE AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO BETWEEN THE BANKERS TO THE ISSUE AND THE ISSUER SPECIFICALLY CONTAINS THIS CONDITION. NOT APPLICABLE. THIS BEING A RIGHTS ISSUE, SECTION 40(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IS NOT APPLICABLE. FURTHER, TRANSFER OF MONIES RECEIVED PURSUANT TO THE ISSUE SHALL BE RELEASED TO THE COMPANY AFTER FINALISATION OF THE BASIS OF ALLOTMENT IN COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATION 90 OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2018, AS AMENDED.
- 9. WE CERTIFY THAT THE EXISTING BUSINESS AS WELL AS ANY NEW BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY FOR WHICH THE FUNDS ARE BEING RAISED FALL WITHIN THE "MAIN OBJECTS" IN THE OBJECT CLAUSE OF THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OR OTHER CHARTER OF THE COMPANY AND THAT THE ACTIVITIES WHICH HAVE BEEN CARRIED IN LAST 10 YEARS ARE VALID IN TERMS OF THE OBJECT CLAUSE OF ITS MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION. COMPLIED TO THE EXTENT APPLICABLE
- 10. WE CERTIFY THAT THE FOLLOWING DISCLOSURES HAVE BEEN MADE IN THE LETTER OF OFFER:
  - a) AN UNDERTAKING FROM THE COMPANY THAT AT ANY GIVEN TIME, THERE SHALL BE ONLY ONE DENOMINATION FOR THE EQUITY SHARES OF THE COMPANY. AS ON THE DATE OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER, OUR COMPANY HAS NOT ISSUED ANY SR EQUITY SHARES AND THERE ARE NO OUTSTANDING SR EQUITY SHARES; AND
  - b) AN UNDERTAKING FROM THE COMPANY THAT IT SHALL COMPLY WITH SUCH DISCLOSURE AND ACCOUNTING NORMS SPECIFIED BY SEBI FROM TIME TO TIME.
- 11. WE UNDERTAKE TO COMPLY WITH THE REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO ADVERTISEMENT IN TERMS OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2018, AS AMENDED WHILE MAKING THE ISSUE COMPLIED WITH.
- 12. WE CONFIRM THAT THE ISSUER IS ELIGIBLE TO LIST ON THE INNOVATORS GROWTH PLATFORM IN TERMS OF THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER X OF SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS), REGULATIONS 2018 NOT APPLICABLE.
- 13. WE ENCLOSE A NOTE EXPLAINING HOW THE PROCESS OF DUE DILIGENCE HAS BEEN EXERCISED BY US IN VIEW OF THE NATURE OF CURRENT BUSINESS BACKGROUND OR THE ISSUER, SITUATION AT WHICH THE PROPOSED BUSINESS STANDS, THE RISK FACTORS, PROMOTERS EXPERIENCE, ETC.- COMPLIED WITH
- 14. WE ENCLOSE A CHECKLIST CONFIRMING REGULATION-WISE COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2018, AS AMENDED, CONTAINING DETAILS SUCH AS THE REGULATION NUMBER, ITS TEXT, THE STATUS OF COMPLIANCE, PAGE NUMBER OF THE LETTER OF OFFER WHERE THE REGULATION HAS BEEN COMPLIED WITH AND OUR COMMENTS, IF ANY. COMPLIED WITH

THE FILING OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER DOES NOT, HOWEVER, ABSOLVE OUR COMPANY FROM ANY LIABILITIES UNDER SECTION 34 OR SECTION 38 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 OR FROM THE

REQUIREMENT OF OBTAINING SUCH STATUTORY OR OTHER CLEARANCE AS MAY BE REQUIRED FOR THE PURPOSE OF THE PROPOSED ISSUE. SEBI FURTHER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO TAKE UP, AT ANY POINT OF TIME, WITH THE LEAD MANAGER ANY IRREGULARITIES OR LAPSES IN THIS LETTER OF OFFER.

#### **Caution**

# Disclaimer Statement from our Company and the Lead Manager:

We and the Lead Manager accept no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in this Letter of Offer or in any advertisement or other material issued by us or by any other persons at our instance and anyone placing reliance on any other source of information would be doing so at her/his own risk.

We and the Lead Manager shall make all information available to the Equity Shareholders and no selective or additional information would be available for a section of the Equity Shareholders in any manner whatsoever including at presentations, in research or sales reports etc. after filing of this Letter of Offer with SEBI.

No dealer, salesperson or other person is authorized to give any information or to represent anything not contained in the Letter of Offer. You must not rely on any unauthorized information or representations.

The Letter of Offer is rights to purchase the Equity Shares offered hereby, but only under circumstances and in jurisdictions where it is lawful to do so. The information contained in the Letter of Offer is current only as of its date.

Investors who invest in the Issue will be deemed to have represented to us and Lead Manager and their respective directors, officers, agents, affiliates and representatives that they are eligible under all applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals to acquire Equity Shares, and are relying on independent advice/evaluation as to their ability and quantum of investment in the Issue.

## Disclaimer with respect to jurisdiction

This Letter of Offer has been prepared under the provisions of Indian laws and the applicable rules and regulations thereunder. Any disputes arising out of this Issue will be subject to the jurisdiction of the appropriate court(s) in Delhi, only.

## **Designated Stock Exchange**

The Designated Stock Exchange for the purposes of this Issue will be MSEI Limited.

#### Disclaimer clause of MSEI

As required, a copy of this Letter of Offer has been submitted to MSEI. The Disclaimer Clause as intimated by MSEI to us, post scrutiny of this Letter of Offer, shall be included in the Letter of Offer prior to filing with the Stock Exchanges.

# **Filing**

The Letter of Offer has been filed with the

SEBI Northern Regional Office (NRO) Address: NBCC Complex, Office Tower-1, 8th Floor, Plate B, East Kidwai Nagar, New Delhi - 110023

Tel. Board: +91-011-69012998 E-mail: sebinro@sebi.gov.in

#### **Selling Restrictions**

Each person who exercises Rights Entitlement and subscribes for Rights Equity Shares or excess Rights Equity Shares, or who purchases Rights Entitlement or Rights Equity Shares shall do so in accordance with the restrictions set out below.

The distribution of this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and CAFs and the issue of Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India is restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and CAFs may come are required to inform themselves about and observe such restrictions. Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company and will dispatch the Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer and CAF only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company. No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction, or the possession, circulation, or distribution of this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and CAFs or any other material relating to our Company, the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in any jurisdiction, where action would be required for that purpose, except that this Letter of Offer has been filed with SEBI for observations.

Accordingly, none of this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and CAFs or any offering materials or advertisements in connection with the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement may be distributed or published in any jurisdiction outside India and the Rights Equity Shares and Rights Entitlement may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and CAFs will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer.

The Letter of Offer and its accompanying documents will be supplied to you solely for your information and may not be reproduced, redistributed or passed on, directly or indirectly, to any other person or published, in whole or in part, for any purpose.

If the Letter of Offer is received by any person in any jurisdiction where to do so would or might contravene local securities laws or regulation, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlement referred to in the Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to consult their legal counsel prior to applying for the Rights Entitlement and the Rights Equity Shares or accepting any provisional allotment of Equity Shares, or making any offer, sale, resale, pledge or other transfer of the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement.

Neither the delivery of the Letter of Offer nor any sale hereunder, shall under any circumstances create any implication that there has been no change in our Company's affairs from the date hereof or the date of such information or that the information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to this date or the date of such information.

## **Estimated Issue Related Expenses**

The Issue related expenses consist of fees payable to the Lead Manager, processing fee to the SCSBs, Registrars to the Issue, printing and stationery expenses, advertising expenses and all other incidental and miscellaneous expenses for listing the Rights Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. Our Company will need approximately Rs. 20/- lakhs towards these expenses, a break-up of the same is as follows:

(in lakhs)

	Estimated Expenses	_	As a % of Issue size
Fees payable to the intermediaries (including Lead Manager fees, registrar fees and expense s)	6.5	32.50	1.35

Activity	Estimated	% of Total	As a % of Issue
	expense	expenses	size
Advertising, Printing, stationery and distribution expenses	3.5	17.50	0.73
Statutory and other Miscellaneous expenses	10.00	50	2.07
Total	20.00	100	4.15

# **Investor Grievances and Redressal System**

Our Company has adequate arrangements for the redressal of investor complaints in compliance with the corporate governance requirements under the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Our Company has a Stakeholders' Relationship Committee which currently comprises of Mr. Vinod Kumar (Chairman), Mr. Deepak Arneja (Member) and Mr. Ravinder Mohan Juneja (Member). The broad terms of reference include redressal of investors' complaints pertaining to share / debenture transfers, non-receipt of annual reports, interest / dividend payments, issue of duplicate certificates etc. Our Company has been registered with the SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) as required by the SEBI Circular no. CIR/ OIAE/ 2/ 2011 dated June 3, 2011. Investor grievances are tracked online by our Company.

# Status of outstanding investor complaints in relation to our Company

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, there were no outstanding investor complaints in relation to our Company.

#### **Investor Grievances arising out of the Issue**

Our Company's investor grievances arising out of the Issue will be handled by Skyline Financial Services Private Limited, the Registrar to the Issue. The Registrar will have a separate team of personnel handling only post- Issue correspondence. The agreement between our Company and the Registrar provides for retention of records with the Registrar for a period of at least three years from the last date of dispatch of Allotment Advice/ demat credit/ refund order to enable the Registrar to redress grievances of Investors.

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or our Company Secretary for any pre-Issue or post-Issue related matters. All grievances relating to the ASBA process or the optional mechanism R-WAP process may be addressed to the Registrar, with a copy to the SCSBs (in case of ASBA process), giving full details such as name, address of the Applicant, contact number(s), e mail address of the sole/ first holder, folio number or demat account number, number of Rights Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked (in case of ASBA process) or amount debited (in case of the R-WAP process), ASBA Account number and the Designated Branch of the SCSBs where the Application Form or the plain paper application, as the case may be, was submitted by the Investors along with a photocopy of the acknowledgement slip (in case of ASBA process) and copy of the e-acknowledgement (in case of the R-WAP process). For details on the ASBA process and R-WAP, see "Terms of the Issue" beginning at page number 120 of this Letter of Offer.

The investor complaints received by our Company are generally disposed of within 30 days from the date of receipt of the complaint. Investors may contact our Compliance Officer or the Registrar in case of any pre-Issue/post-Issue related problems such as non-receipt of Allotment advice/demat credit/refund orders etc. The contact details of the Compliance Officer and Registrar to the Issue are as follows:

## Registrar to the Issue



## Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.

D-153/A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area Phase-I, New Delhi- 110020

Phone No- 011- 40450193-97 Email: admin@skylinerta.com Contact Person: Ms. Rati Gupta SEBI Registration No.: INR000003241

## **Compliance Officer**

## Ms. Nidhi Pathak

Company Secretary 304, Gupta Arcade, Inder Enclave, Rohtak Road, New Delhi – 110087, INDIA

Ph.: +91 11 46200400 Direct: +91 11 46200406 Fax: +91 11 46200444

Email: csnidhipathak@mohindra.asia

# SECTION VII – ISSUE INFORMATION TERMS OF THE ISSUE

This Section applies to all Investors. ASBA Investors should note that the ASBA process involves procedures that may be different from that applicable to other Investors and should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications, in the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter, before submitting an Application Form. Our Company and the Lead Manager are not liable for any amendments, modifications or changes in applicable law which may occur after the date of the Letter of Offer. Investors who are eligible to apply under the ASBA process or, R-WAP, as the case may be, are advised to make their independent investigations and to ensure that the Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter is correctly filled up.

Please note that in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020 ("SEBI – Rights Issue Circular"), all investors (including Renouncee) shall make an application for a rights issue only through ASBA facility. However, in view of the COVID-19 pandemic and the lockdown measures undertaken by Central and State Governments, relaxation from the strict enforcement of the SEBI – Rights Issue Circular has been provided by SEBI, vide its Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/78 dated May 06, 2020, Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136 dated July 24, 2020, Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/13 dated January 19, 2021 and Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/552 dated April 22, 2021. As per the said circulars, all eligible shareholders shall be able to apply to this Issue through an optional mechanism (non- cash mode only), in this case being R-WAP in addition to the ASBA facility.

The Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued in the Issue, are subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Common Application Form ("CAF"), the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of our Company, the provisions of the Companies Act, FEMA, SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI Listing Regulations, any other regulations, guidelines, notifications and regulations for issue of capital and for listing of securities issued by SEBI, the RBI, the Government of India and/or other statutory and regulatory authorities and bodies from time to time, and the terms and conditions as stipulated in the Allotment advice or letters of Allotment or demat credit of securities and rules as may be applicable and introduced from time to time.

Please note that in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020 ("SEBI – Rights Issue Circular"), all investors (including Renouncee) shall make an application for a rights issue only through ASBA facility.

Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012 dated September 25, 2012 within the periods stipulated therein, ASBA Applications may be submitted at all branches of the SCSBs.

Further, in terms of SEBI circular no. CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2013 dated January 2, 2013, it is clarified that for making applications by banks on own account using ASBA facility, SCSBs should have a separate account in their own name with any other SEBI registered SCSB(s). Such account shall be used solely for the purpose of making application in public issues/ rights issues and clear demarcated funds should be available in such account for ASBA applications. SCSBs applying in the Issue by using the ASBA facility shall be responsible for ensuring that they have a separate account in their own name with any other SCSB having clear demarcated funds for applying in the Issue and that such separate account shall be used as the ASBA Account for the application, for ensuring compliance with the applicable regulations.

All rights and obligations of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in relation to Applications pertaining to the Issue shall apply to Renouncee(s) as well.

Allotment of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to this Rights Issue shall be only in dematerialized form. Hence, the physical shareholders shall be required to provide their demat account details to the Company / Registrar to the Issue for credit of their Rights Entitlements not later than two working days prior to the issue closing date.

## **Important:**

Facilities for Application in this Issue:

Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI circular, bearing reference In accordance with SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/CIR/CFD/DIL/67/2020 dated April 21, 2020, SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/78 dated May 6, 2020, SEBI circular bearing reference SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136 July 24, dated 2020, **SEBI** circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/13 dated January 19, 2021 and **SEBI** circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/552 dated April 22, 2021 (Collectively hereafter referred to as "SEBI Rights Issue Circulars") and SEBI circular SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated December 30, 2009, SEBI circular CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April 29, 2011, the SEBI circular, bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020 (Collectively hereafter referred to as "ASBA Circulars"), all Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily required to use either the ASBA process or the optional mechanism instituted only for resident Investors in this Issue, i.e., R-WAP. Kindly note that Non-Resident Investors cannot apply in this Issue using the R-WAP facility, however such Investors can apply through R-WAP, if they have provided an Indian address to our Company or to the Registrar or they are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions. Investors should note that the ASBA process involves procedures that are different from the procedure under the R-WAP process. Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications before making their Application through ASBA or using the R-WAP. For details, see "Procedure for Application through the ASBA Process" and "Procedure for Application through R-WAP" on page numbers 127 and 141 respectively.

For guidance on the Application process through R-WAP and resolution of difficulties faced by the Investors, the Investors are advised to carefully read the frequently asked questions(FAQs) which are available on the website of the Registrar <a href="https://www.skylinerta.com/display\_ipo\_rightissue\_allotment.php">https://www.skylinerta.com/display\_ipo\_rightissue\_allotment.php</a> and visit online/ electronic dedicated investor helpdesk for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Investors: <a href="https://www.skylinerta.com/rightissues/">https://www.skylinerta.com/rightissues/</a> or call helpline number (+11 40450193-97). For details, see "Procedure for Application through R-WAP" on page number 141 of this Letter of Offer.

Registrar's Web-based Application Platform (R-WAP): In accordance with SEBI circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/78 dated May 6, 2020, SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136 dated July 24, 2020, SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/13 dated January 19, 2021, SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/552 dated April 2021 and **SEBI** circular bering reference number 22, SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/633 dated October 01, 2021 a separate web based application platform, i.e., the R-WAP facility (accessible at https://www.skylinerta.com/rightissues/), has been instituted for making an Application in this Issue by resident Investors. Further, R-WAP is only an additional option and not a replacement of the ASBA process. At the R-WAP, resident Investors can access and submit the online Application Form in electronic mode using the R-WAP and make online payment using their internet banking or UPI facility from their own bank account thereat. Prior to making an Application, such Investors should enable the internet banking or UPI facility of their respective bank accounts and such Investors should ensure that the respective bank accounts have sufficient funds.

PLEASE NOTE THAT ONLY RESIDENT INVESTORS CAN SUBMIT AN APPLICATION USING THE R-WAP FACILITY WILL BE OPERATIONAL FROM THE ISSUE OPENING DATE. FOR RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE R-WAP PROCESS, SEE "ISSUE RELATED RISK FACTOR NUMBER 07 (SEVEN) THE R-WAP PAYMENT MECHANISM FACILITY PROPOSED TO BE USED FOR THIS ISSUE EXPOSED TO RISKS, INCLUDING RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH PAYMENT GATEWAYS" ON PAGE NUMBER 25 OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER.

In accordance with SEBI circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/78 dated May 6, 2020, SEBI circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136 dated July 24, 2020, SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/13 dated January 19, 2021 and SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/552 dated April 22, 2021. our Company will make use of advertisements in television channels, radio, internet etc., including in the form of crawlers/ tickers, to disseminate information relating to the Application process in India.

## **Basis for the Issue:**

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered for subscription for cash to those existing Eligible Equity Shareholders ("Investors") of our Company whose names appear, (i) as beneficial owners as per the list to be furnished by the Depositories in respect of the Equity Shares held in the electronic form, and (ii) on the register of members of our Company in respect of Equity Shares held in the physical form at the close of business hours on the Record Date, i.e. Thursday, January 06, 2022 fixed in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, but excludes persons not eligible under applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

## PRINCIPAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE EQUITY SHARES ISSUED UNDER THE ISSUE

## Face Value

Each Equity Share shall have the face value of Rs. 10/-.

#### **Issue Price**

Each Equity Share is being offered at a price of Rs.90/- (including a premium of Rs.80/- per Rights Equity Share). The Issue Price has been arrived at, by us in consultation with the Lead Manager.

**Terms of payment -** Payable on application.

## **Ranking of Equity Shares**

The Rights Equity Shares being issued shall be subject to the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association. The Rights Equity Shares shall rank *pari passu*, in all respects including dividend, with our existing Equity Shares.

The voting rights in a poll, whether present in person or by representative or by proxy shall be in proportion to the paid-up value of the Shares held, and no voting rights shall be exercisable in respect of moneys paid in advance, if any.

# Mode of Payment of Dividend

In the event of declaration of dividend, our Company shall pay dividend to the shareholders of our Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act and the provisions of the Articles of Association.

# Rights Entitlement ("REs") (Rights Equity Shares)

As your name appears as a beneficial owner in respect of the Equity Shares held in the electronic form or appears in the register of members as an Eligible Equity Shareholder of our Company in respect of the Equity Shares held in physical form as on the Record Date, i.e. Thursday, January 06, 2022, you are entitled to the number of Rights Equity Shares in the ratio of 01 (One) Rights Equity Shares for every 10 (Ten) Equity Shares held on the Record Date. Details of your rights entitlement will be sent to you separately along with the CAF.

Details of respective Eligible Equity Shareholder's entitlement would also be available on the website of the Registrar to the Issue (<a href="https://www.skylinerta.com/display">https://www.skylinerta.com/display</a> entitlement.php) and on the website of our Company at (<a href="https://www.mohindra.asia">https://www.mohindra.asia</a>) which can be checked by keying the requisite details therein.

Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company and will dispatch the Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer and CAF only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have a registered address in India. The distribution of the Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer and the issue of securities on a rights basis to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India is restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares will be deemed to have declared, warranted and agreed, by accepting the delivery of the Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer/CAF that such person is not and that at the time of subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, will not be, in any restricted jurisdiction.

Eligible Equity Shareholders can also download the CAF from the website of the Registrar to the Issue being (https://www.skylinerta.com/display ipo rightissue.php)

#### **Rights Entitlement Ratio**

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders in the ratio of 01 (One) Rights Equity Shares for every 10 (Ten) Equity Shares held on the Record Date.

## **Fractional Entitlements**

As per the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, in case of fractional entitlements of RE's to be credited before issue opening date, the fractional part shall be ignored by rounding down the entitlement.

#### **Process of credit of Rights Entitlements**

As per the SEBI – Rights Issue Circular issued in order to streamline the process of the rights issue, SEBI has introduced dematerialized Rights Entitlements and the process with respect to the credit of rights entitlements and renunciation thereof is as set out below:

- (1) A separate temporary ISIN No. INE705H20011 has been obtained by our Company for credit of REs in demat account of the Eligible Equity Shareholders.
- (2) Based on the rights entitlement ratio, RE's will be credited to the demat account of eligible equity shareholders in dematerialized form before the opening of the issue.
- (3) The physical shareholders are required to provide their demat account details to the Company / Registrar to the Issue for credit of their RE's not later than two working days prior to the issue closing date being Friday, February 11, 2022, such that the credit of the RE's in their demat account takes place at least one date prior to the issue closing date.
- (4) The REs will be credited in the demat account of the Eligible equity shareholder on or before Monday, January 10, 2022 through a corporate action by our company and the separate ISIN–INE705H20011 so obtained for the REs will be kept frozen (for debit) in the depository system till the date of opening of the issue i.e. Monday, January 24, 2022.
- (5) If the demat account of the eligible equity shareholder is frozen or demat account details are not available, including shares held in unclaimed suspense account or in the account of Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority, then REs of such eligible equity shareholders will be credited in a suspense escrow demat account of our Company and an intimation will be sent to such eligible equity shareholder by the Registrar to the Issue.
- (6) Eligible Equity Shareholders can either apply or renounce full or part of their REs. Eligible Equity Shareholders shall apply for the REs through ASBA facility only. For details, see "Terms of the Issue- procedure for application" on page number 120 of this Letter of Offer.
- (7) No withdrawal of application will be permitted by any Eligible Equity Shareholders after the issue closing date.
- (8) REs credited to demat account can be renounced either by sale of REs using stock exchange platform or off-market transfer.
- (9) In case the shareholders wish to renounce their REs by sale of REs through stock exchange, the eligible shareholder can place order only to the extent of REs available in their demat account. Trading in REs in such case shall be closed on Monday, February 07, 2022 being at least four days prior to the closure of rights issue.
- (10) In case the shareholders wish to renounce his REs by the way of off-market transfer, the eligible shareholder can do so only to the extent of REs available in his demat account. The ISIN INE705H20011 so obtained shall be suspended for such Offmarket transfers of the RE's from the issue closing date.
- (11) REs which are neither renounced nor subscribed by the shareholders, will lapse after the closure of Rights Issue.
- (12) Details of respective Eligible Equity Shareholder's entitlement would also be available on the website of the Registrar to the Issue (<a href="https://www.skylinerta.com/display\_entitlement.php">https://www.skylinerta.com/display\_entitlement.php</a>) and on the website of our Company at (<a href="https://mohindra.asia/mfl/issues\_of\_rights\_shares.html">https://mohindra.asia/mfl/issues\_of\_rights\_shares.html</a>) which can be checked by keying the requisite details therein.

# Trading of the Rights Entitlements ("REs") on the Stock Exchange Platform

Pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI – Rights Issue Circular, the Rights Entitlements credited in demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be admitted for trading on the Stock Exchanges under ISIN – INE705H01011 subject to necessary approvals.

The ISIN of REs shall be kept frozen (for debit) in the depository system till the date of the opening of the issue.

The company would submit details of total REs credited to the Stock Exchange and shall obtain requisite trading approval of such RE's from the stock exchange.

The Eligible equity shareholders can place order for sale only to the extent of REs available in the demat account of the eligible equity shareholders. RE's credited to the demat account of the respective eligible equity shareholders duly renounced by them by the way of

sale through stock exchange platform, would be settled by transferring the dematerialized RE's through depository system in the same manner as done for all the other types of securities.

Trading in REs shall commence on the date of opening of the issue.

Trading in the REs on the secondary market platform of the stock exchange will happen electronically on T+2 rolling settlement basis. The transactions will be settled on trade-for-trade basis.

Thus, trading in REs in such case shall be closed on Monday, February 07, 2022 being at least four days prior to the closure of rights issue.

#### Listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued under the Issue

As per the SEBI – Rights Issue Circular, the Rights Entitlements with a separate ISIN would be credited to the demat account of the respective Eligible Equity Shareholders before the issue opening date. On the Issue Closing date the depositories will suspend the ISIN of REs for transfer and once the allotment is done post the basis of allotment approved by the designated stock exchange, the separate ISIN no. INE705H20011 for REs so obtained will be permanently deactivated from the depository system.

Our Company's existing Equity Shares are listed and traded on MSE (Scrip code: MFL), under the ISIN: INE705H01011 Industry: INDUSTRIAL METAL AND MINING

Post the closure of the issue and approval of the basis of allotment from the designated stock exchange, the Rights Equity Shares to be allotted pursuant to the Issue shall, in terms of the circular (no. CIR/MRD/DP/21/2012) by SEBI dated August 2, 2012, be Allotted under a temporary ISIN which shall be kept blocked till the receipt of final listing and trading approval from the Stock Exchanges. Upon receipt of such listing and trading approval, the Rights Equity Shares shall be debited from such temporary ISIN and credited in the existing ISIN of our Company and be available for trading.

The listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares shall be based on the current regulatory framework applicable thereto. Accordingly, any change in the regulatory regime would affect the schedule. Upon Allotment, the Rights Equity Shares shall be traded on Stock Exchanges in the demat segment only.

Our Company has made applications to the Stock Exchanges seeking 'in-principle' approval for the listing of the Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue in accordance of SEBI Listing Regulations and has received such approval from MSEI pursuant to their letter no. MSE/LIST/2021/1197 dated Friday, October 22, 2021. All steps for completion of necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading in the Equity Shares will be taken within seven working days from finalization of the basis of allotment. All steps for the completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading of the Rights Equity Shares to be allotted pursuant to the Issue shall be taken in accordance with law. The Equity Shares proposed to be issued on a rights basis shall be listed and admitted for trading on MSEI under the existing ISIN for Equity Shares.

# **Rights of the Equity Shareholders**

Subject to applicable laws, Equity Shareholders shall have the following rights:

- Right to receive dividend, if declared;
- Right to attend general meetings and exercise voting powers, unless prohibited by law;
- Right to vote either in person or by proxy;
- Right to receive offers for equity shares and be allotted bonus shares, if announced;
- Right to receive surplus on liquidation;
- Right of free transferability of shares; and
- Such other rights, as may be available to a shareholder of a listed public company under the Companies Act and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of our Company.

#### Intention and extent of participation by our Promoters and Promoter Group in the Issue

Our Promoter(s) and entities forming part of our Promoter Group have, *vide* their letters dated 18/08/2021 (the "**Subscription Letters**") undertaken to: (a) subscribe, jointly and/ or severally to the full extent of their Rights Entitlement and subscribe to the full extent of any Rights Entitlement that may be renounced in their favour by any other Promoter or member(s) of the Promoter Group of our Company; and (b) subscribe to, either individually or jointly and/ or severally with any other Promoter or member of the Promoter Group, for additional Rights Equity Shares, including subscribing to unsubscribed portion (if any) in the Issue.

Such subscription for Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlement, if allotted, may result in an increase in their percentage shareholding. Any such acquisition of additional Rights Equity Shares (including any unsubscribed portion of the Issue) is exempt in terms of Regulation 10(4)(b) of the Takeover Regulations as conditions mentioned therein have been fulfilled and shall not result in a change of control of the management of our Company in accordance with provisions of the Takeover Regulations. The additional subscription by the promoters shall be made subject to such additional subscription not resulting in the minimum public shareholding of the issuer falling below the level prescribed in LODR/ SCRR.

#### GENERAL TERMS OF THE ISSUE

#### **Market Lot**

The Rights Equity Shares of our Company are tradable only in dematerialized form. The market lot for the Rights Equity Shares in dematerialized mode is one Equity Share.

# **Minimum Subscription**

If our Company does not receive the minimum subscription of 90 % of the Issue (i.e. Net Issue), our Company shall refund the entire subscription amount, not later than fifteen working days from the closure of the Issue. In the event there is a delay in unblocking of ASBA beyond such period as prescribed by applicable laws, our Company shall pay interest for the delayed period at rates prescribed under applicable laws.

#### Joint-Holders

Where two or more persons are registered as the holders of any Equity Shares, they shall be deemed to hold the same as joint holders with the benefit of survivorship subject to the provisions contained in the Articles of Association of our Company. In case of joint holders, the CAF would be required to be signed by all the joint holders to be considered valid

#### **Nomination**

Since the allotment of Rights Equity Shares will be made only in dematerialized form, there is no need to make a separate nomination for the Rights Equity Shares to be allotted in this Issue. Nominations registered with respective Depositary Participant ("DP") of the investor would prevail. Any investor desirous of changing the existing nomination is requested to inform their respective DP.

# Arrangements for Disposal of Odd Lots

Our Rights Equity Shares are traded in dematerialized form only and therefore the marketable lot is one Equity Share and hence no arrangements for disposal of odd lots are required.

#### **Notices**

All notices to the Eligible Equity Shareholders required to be given by our Company shall be published in one (1) English national daily newspaper with wide circulation, one (1) Hindi National daily newspaper with wide circulation, also the vernacular language of the region where the Registered Office is situated and/ or will be sent by ordinary post or registered post or speed post to the registered address of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in India as updated with the Depositories/ registered with the Registrar and Transfer Agent from time to time or the Indian address provided by the Eligible Equity Shareholders from time to time.

# Offer to Non-Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders/Investors

As per Regulation 6 of Notification No. FEMA 20(R)/2017- RB dated November 07, 2017, the RBI has given general permission to Indian companies to issue equity shares to non-resident shareholders including additional securities. Applications received from NRIs and non-residents for allotment of the Rights Equity Shares shall be *inter alia*, subject to the conditions imposed from time to time by the RBI under the FEMA in the matter of refund of Application Money, allotment of Rights Equity Shares and issue of letter of allotment. The Abridged Letter of Offer and CAF shall be dispatched to non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders at their Indian address only. If an NR or NRI Investors has specific approval from RBI, in connection with his shareholding, he should enclose a copy of such approval with the Application Form. The Board may at its absolute discretion, agree to such terms and conditions as may be stipulated by RBI while approving the allotment of Rights Equity Shares. The Rights Equity Shares purchased by non-residents shall be subject to the same conditions including restrictions in regard to the repatriation as are applicable to the original shares against which Rights Equity Shares are issued.

CAFs will be made available for eligible NRIs at our Registered Office and with the Registrar to the Issue and would also be available on the website of the Registrar to the Issue.

In case of change of status of holders, that is, from Resident to Non-Resident, a new demat account must be opened.

By virtue of circular no.14, dated September 16, 2003, issued by the RBI, Overseas Corporate Bodies ("OCBs") have been

derecognized as an eligible class of investors and the RBI has subsequently issued the Foreign Exchange Management (Withdrawal of General Permission to Overseas Corporate Bodies (OCBs)) Regulations, 2003. Accordingly, OCBs shall not be eligible to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares. The RBI has however clarified in its circular, A.P. (DIR Series) Circular No. 44, dated December 8, 2003 that OCBs which are incorporated and are not under the adverse notice of the RBI are permitted to undertake fresh investments as incorporated Non-Resident entities.

## PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION

## How to Apply

The Application Form will be printed in black ink for all Eligible Equity Shareholders. The Application Form along with the Abridged Letter of Offer will be dispatched through registered post or speed post at least three days before the Issue Opening Date. In case the Application Form are not received by the Investor or is misplaced by the Investor, they can download the same from the website of the Registrar to the issue at <a href="https://www.skylinerta.com/display ipo rightissue.php">https://www.skylinerta.com/display ipo rightissue.php</a> or can obtain printed Application Form from our Company, the Lead Manager or the Registrar.

The Application Form can be used both by the Shareholder or Renouncee.

Please note that in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI – Rights Issue Circular, all Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) (including renouncee) shall make an application for a rights issue only through ASBA facility.

Please also note that by virtue of circular no. 14, dated September 16, 2003, issued by the RBI, Overseas Corporate Bodies ("OCBs") have been de-recognised as an eligible class of investors and the RBI has subsequently issued the Foreign Exchange Management (Withdrawal of General Permission to Overseas Corporate Bodies) Regulations, 2003. Any Equity Shareholders being an OCB is required to obtain prior approval from RBI for applying in this Issue.

# **Application Form ("CAF")**

The Registrar will dispatch the CAF along with the Abridged Letter of Offer to all Eligible Equity Shareholders as per their Rights Entitlement on the Record Date.

Applicants may choose to accept the offer to participate in the Issue by making plain paper Applications. For more information, see "Terms of the Issue - Application on Plain Paper" on page number 131 of this Letter of Offer.

Application in electronic mode will only be available with such SCSBs who provide such facility. The Eligible Equity shareholders shall submit the CAF to the Designated Branch of the SCSB for authorizing such SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the amount payable on the application in the said ASBA Account.

Investors are also advised to ensure that the Application Form is correctly filled up, stating therein the bank account number maintained with the SCSB in which an amount equivalent to the amount payable on Application as stated in the Application Form will be blocked by the SCSB.

#### **Mode of Payment**

The Eligible Equity Shareholders applying under the ASBA Process agrees to block the entire amount payable on application with the submission of the Application Form, by authorizing the SCSB to block an amount, equivalent to the amount payable on application, in an ASBA Account.

After verifying that sufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account details of which are provided in the Application Form, the SCSB shall block an amount equivalent to the amount payable on application mentioned in the Application Form until it receives instructions from the Registrar to the Issue. Upon receipt of intimation from the Registrar to the Issue, the SCSBs shall transfer such amount as per the Registrar to the Issue's instruction from the ASBA Account. This amount will be transferred in terms of SEBI ICDR Regulations, into the separate bank account maintained by our Company for the purpose of the Issue. The balance amount remaining after the finalization of the Basis of Allotment shall be unblocked by the SCSBs on the basis of the instructions issued in this regard by the Registrar to the Issue to the respective SCSB.

The Eligible Equity Shareholder would be required to give instructions to the respective SCSBs to block the entire amount payable on their application at the time of the submission of the Application Form.

The SCSB may reject the application at the time of acceptance of Application Form if the ASBA Account, details of which have been

provided by the Investor in the Application Form does not have sufficient funds equivalent to the amount payable on application mentioned in the Application Form. Subsequent to the acceptance of the application by the SCSB, our Company would have a right to reject the application only on technical grounds.

The list of banks which have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA Process is provided at <a href="http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes.">http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes.</a> For details on Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the Application Form, please refer the above mentioned link.

#### Options available to the Eligible Equity Shareholders

Details of each Eligible Equity Shareholders RE will be sent to the Eligible Equity shareholder separately along with the Application and would also be available the website of the Registrar Issue Form on to the (https://www.skylinerta.com/display\_entitlement.php) and on the website of our Company at (https://mohindra.asia/mfl/issues of rights shares.html). Respective Eligible Equity Shareholder can check their entitlement by keying their requisite details therein.

The Eligible Equity Shareholders will have the option to

- Apply for his Rights Entitlement in full;
- Apply for his Rights Entitlement in part (without renouncing the other part);
- Apply for his Rights Entitlement in full and apply for additional Rights Equity Shares;
- Apply for his Rights Entitlement in part and renounce the other part of the Rights Equity Shares; and
- Renounce his Rights Entitlement in full.

# 1. Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders

Resident Eligible Equity shareholders can apply through ASBA application by electronic mode or shall submit the CAF to the Designated Branch of the SCSB for authorizing such SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the amount payable on the application in the said ASBA Account.

In case the CAF is not received by the Eligible Equity shareholder or is misplaced by the him, then the Eligible Equity shareholder may request the printed forms of same from the Company, Registrar to the Issue or the Merchant Banker to the Issue.

Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) can also download the application form which will be available on the website of the Registrar to the issue at <a href="https://www.skylinerta.com/display">https://www.skylinerta.com/display</a> ipo rightissue.php.

# 2. Non-Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders

The CAF to the Eligible Equity shareholder(s) being a Non-Resident Indian shall be sent at their Indian address only as per the Company/DP records. Such shareholders can apply through ASBA (facility provided for NRE/NRO accounts) application by electronic mode or shall submit the CAF to the Designated Branch of the SCSB for authorizing such SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the amount payable on the application in the said ASBA Account.

In case the CAF is not received or is misplaced, then the Non-Resident Eligible Equity shareholder may request the printed forms of same from the Company, Registrar to the Issue or the Lead Manager to the Issue.

Non- Resident Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) can also download the application form which will be available on the website of the Registrar to the issue at <a href="https://www.skylinerta.com/display\_ipo\_rightissue.php">https://www.skylinerta.com/display\_ipo\_rightissue.php</a>.

Eligible Non-Resident Equity Shareholders applying on a repatriation basis by using the Non-Resident Forms should authorize their SCSB to block their Non-Resident External ("NRE") accounts, or Foreign Currency Non-Resident ("FCNR") Accounts, and Eligible Non-Resident Equity Shareholders applying on a non-repatriation basis by using Resident Forms should authorize their SCSB to block their Non- Resident Ordinary ("NRO") accounts for the full amount payable, at the time of the submission of the CAF to the SCSB. Eligible Non-Resident Equity Shareholders applying on non-repatriation basis are advised to use the CAF for residents (white in colour). Eligible Non-Resident Equity Shareholders applying on a repatriation basis are advised to use the CAF meant for Non-Residents (blue in colour).

Applications received from NRIs and non-residents for allotment of the Rights Equity Shares shall be *inter alia*, subject to the conditions imposed from time to time by the RBI under the FEMA in the matter of refund of Application Money, allotment of Rights

Equity Shares and issue of letter of allotment. If an NR or NRI Investors has specific approval from RBI, in connection with his shareholding, he should enclose a copy of such approval with the Application Form.

## **Additional Rights Equity Shares**

You are eligible to apply for additional Rights Equity Shares over and above your Rights Entitlement, provided that you are eligible to apply under applicable law and have applied for all the Rights Entitlement offered without renouncing them in whole or in part in favour of any other person(s). Renouncee(s), applying for all Rights Equity Shares renounced in their favour, can also apply for additional Rights Equity Shares in the Issue. Applications for additional Rights Equity Shares shall be considered and allotment shall be made at the sole discretion of the Board, subject to applicable sectoral caps, and in consultation if necessary with the Designated Stock Exchange and in the manner prescribed under the section titled "Terms of the Issue" on page number 120 of this Letter of Offer If you desire to apply for additional Rights Equity Shares, please indicate your requirement in the place provided for additional Rights Equity Shares in the CAF. Those applying through the electronic mode are required to punch in their requirement for additional Rights Equity Shares.

Where the number of additional Rights Equity Shares applied for exceeds the number available for Allotment, the Allotment would be made on a fair and equitable basis in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange.

## **Applications by Overseas Corporate Bodies**

By virtue of the Circular No. 14 dated September 16, 2003, issued by the RBI, Overseas Corporate Bodies ("OCBs"), have been derecognized as an eligible class of investors and the RBI has subsequently issued the Foreign Exchange Management (Withdrawal of General Permission to OCBs) Regulations, 2003. Accordingly, the existing Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company who do not wish to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares being offered but wish to renounce the same in favour of Renouncee shall not be able to renounce the same (whether for consideration or otherwise), in favour of OCB(s).

The RBI has however clarified in its circular, A.P. (DIR Series) Circular No. 44, dated December 8, 2003, that OCBs which are incorporated and are not and were not at any time subject to any adverse notice from the RBI, are permitted to undertake fresh investments as incorporated non-resident entities in terms of Regulation 5(1) of RBI Notification No.20/2000-RB dated May 3, 2000, under the foreign direct investment scheme with the prior approval of Government of India if the investment is through the government approval route and with the prior approval of RBI if the investment is through automatic route on case by case basis. Eligible Equity Shareholders renouncing their rights in favour of such OCBs may do so provided such Renouncee obtains a prior approval from the RBI. On submission of such RBI approval to our Company at our Registered Office, the OCB shall receive the Abridged Letter of Offer and the CAF.

#### Renunciation

The Issue includes a right exercisable by you to renounce the Rights Entitlement offered to you either in full or in part in favour of any other person or persons. Your attention is drawn to the fact that our Company shall not allot the Rights Equity Shares in favour of the following Renouncees: (i) more than three persons (including joint holders); (ii) partnership firm(s) or their nominee(s); (iii) minors (except applications by minors having valid demat accounts as per the demographic details provided by the Depositors); (iv) HUF (however, you may renounce your Rights Entitlements to the Karta of an HUF acting in his capacity of Karta); or (v) any trust or society (unless the same is registered under the Societies Registration Act, 1860, as amended or the Indian Trust Act, 1882, as amended or any other applicable law relating to societies or trusts and is authorised under its constitution or bye-laws to hold equity shares, as the case may be). Additionally, the Eligible Equity Shareholders may not renounce in favour of "U.S. Persons" (as defined in Regulation S) or persons or entities which would otherwise be prohibited from being offered or subscribing for Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement under applicable securities laws.

The CAF can be used by both the Eligible Equity Shareholder and the Renouncee. The renouncee can make the application in electronic mode only if such facility is available with such SCSBs. In case where the application through electronic mode is not available with the SCSB, the renouncee shall submit the CAF to the Designated Branch of the SCSB for authorizing such SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the amount payable on the application in the said ASBA Account.

Renouncee(s), applying for all Rights Equity Shares renounced in their favour, can also apply for additional Rights Equity Shares in the Issue.

Renouncee(s) are also advised to ensure that the CAF is correctly filled up, stating therein the bank account number maintained with the SCSB in which an amount equivalent to the amount payable on Application as stated in the CAF will be blocked by the SCSB. The list of SCSBs would be available on the reverse of the CAF.

This right of renunciation is subject to the express condition that our Board of Directors shall be entitled in its absolute discretion to

reject the request for Allotment from the Renouncee(s) without assigning any reason thereof

#### **Procedure for renunciation**

The Investors holding Rights Entitlements in dematerialized form in their demat account can renounce the same either in full or in part in favour of any other person or persons in India only either a) by using the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges ("On Market Renunciation") or b) through off market transfer ("Off Market Renunciation") during the Renunciation Period.

#### a) On Market Renunciation

The Investors holding Rights Entitlements in dematerialized form in their demat account can renounce the same by trading them over the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges through a registered stock broker in the same manner as the existing Equity Shares of our Company are being traded.

In this connection, in terms of provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI – Rights Issue Circular, the Rights Entitlements credited in demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be admitted for trading on the Stock Exchanges under ISIN - INE705H20011. The details for trading in Rights Entitlements will be as specified by MSEI from time to time.

The Rights Entitlements are tradable in dematerialized form only. The market lot for trading of Rights Entitlements is 1 (one) Rights Entitlement. The trading in Rights Entitlements on the Stock Exchange shall commence from the Issue Opening Date and shall close on Monday February 07, 2022 (both days inclusive) or such other extended date as may be determined by our Board from time to time.

The Investors holding the Rights Entitlements in their demat account who desire to sell their Rights Entitlements will have to do so through their registered stock brokers by quoting the ISIN - INE705H20011and indicating the details of the Rights Entitlements they intend to sell. The Investors can place order for sale of Rights Entitlements only to the extent of Rights Entitlements available in their demat account.

Upon execution of the order, the stock broker will issue a contract note in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange and the SEBI.

The Investors who intend to trade in the Rights Entitlements should consult their respective stock brokers for payment to them of any cost, applicable taxes, charges and expense s (including brokerage) that may be levied by the stock brokers for trading in Rights Entitlements.

The Lead Manager and our Company accept no responsibility to bear or pay any cost, applicable taxes, charges and expense (including brokerage) levied by the stock brokers, and such costs will be incurred solely by the Investors.

# b) Off Market Renunciation

The Investors holding Rights Entitlements in dematerialized form in their demat account can renounce the same through off market transfer through a depository participant in the same manner as the existing Equity Shares of our Company can be transferred.

The Rights Entitlements can be transferred in dematerialized form only. The Rights Entitlements can be renounced through off market transfer from the Issue Opening Date i.e. Monday, January 24, 2022 or such other extended date as may be determined by our Board from time to time.

The Investors holding the Rights Entitlements in their demat account who desire to transfer their Rights Entitlements will have to do so through their depository participant by issuing a delivery instruction slip quoting the ISIN - INE705H20011, the details of the buyer and the details of the Rights Entitlements they intend to transfer.

The buyer of the Rights Entitlements (unless he has already given a standing receipt instruction) must issue a receipt instruction slip to his depository participant. The Investors can transfer Rights Entitlements only to the extent of Rights Entitlements available in their demat account.

The instructions for transfer of Rights Entitlements can be issued during the working hours of the depository participants and only during the Renunciation Period. The transfer shall take on the execution date mentioned in the instruction slip and the settlement shall be carried out through depository transfer mechanism in the same manner as done for all other type of securities.

The detailed rules for transfer of Rights Entitlements through off market transfer shall be as specified by the NSDL and CDSL from

time to time

REs which are neither renounced nor subscribed by the shareholders, will lapse after the closure of Rights Issue.

# **Availability of Application Form**

The CAF along with the Abridged Letter of Offer shall be dispatched through registered post or speed post at least three days before the Issue Opening Date. The Abridged Letter of Offer and CAF shall be dispatched to non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders at their Indian address only.

In case the CAFs are not received by the Investor or is misplaced by the Investor, the Investor may request the printed forms of same from the Company, Registrar to the Issue or the Merchant Banker to the Issue.

Eligible Shareholders can also download the application form which will be available on the website of the Registrar to the issue at <a href="https://www.skylinerta.com/display\_ipo\_rightissue.php">https://www.skylinerta.com/display\_ipo\_rightissue.php</a>.

## **Rights Equity Shares in Dematerialized Form**

ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS MAY PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES CAN BE ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IN WHICH THE EOUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH APPLICANT ON THE RECORD DATE.

Is the demat account of a shareholder is frozen or demat account details are not available, including shares held in the unclaimed suspense account or in the account of IEPF Authority, the Rights Entitlement shall be credited in the escrow demat account of the Company and an intimation would be sent to such a shareholder by the Company and / or the Registrar to the Issue.

## Last date of Application

The last date for submission of the duly filled in the Application Form is Friday, February 11, 2022. Our Board or any Committee thereof(if any) will have the right to extend the said date for such period as it may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 (thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date and no withdrawal of Application shall be permitted after the issue closing.

# Acceptance of the Issue

You may accept the Issue and apply for the Rights Equity Shares either in full or in part, through ASBA application by electronic mode or shall submit the CAF to the Designated Branch of the SCSB for authorizing such SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the amount payable on the application in the said ASBA Account. The submission of CAF to Designated Branch of the SCSB for ASBA application should be done before the close of the banking hours on or before the Issue Closing Date or such extended time as may be specified by the Board of Directors of our Company in this regard

## **Application on Plain Paper**

An Eligible Equity Shareholder who has neither received the CAF nor is in a position to obtain the CAF either from our Company, Registrar to the Issue, Manager to the Issue or from the website of the Registrar, can make an Application to subscribe to the Issue on plain paper through ASBA process. Eligible Equity Shareholders shall submit the plain paper application to the Designated Branch of the SCSB for authorizing such SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the amount payable on the application in the said bank account maintained with the same SCSB. Applications on plain paper will not be accepted from any address outside India.

The envelope should be super scribed "Mohindra Fasteners Limited- Rights Issue" and should be postmarked in India. The application on plain paper, duly signed by the Eligible Equity Shareholders including joint holders, in the same order and as per the specimen recorded with our Company/Depositories, must reach the office of the Registrar to the Issue before the Issue Closing Date and should contain the following particulars:

- Name of our Company, being Mohindra Fasteners Limited;
- Name and address of the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders;
- Registered Folio Number/ DP and Client ID No.;
- Number of Equity Shares held as on Record Date;
- Number of Rights Equity Shares entitled to;

- Number of Rights Equity Shares applied for;
- Number of additional Rights Equity Shares applied for, if any;
- Total number of Rights Equity Shares applied for;
- Total amount paid at the rate of Rs.90/- per Rights Equity Share;
- Details of ASBA Account such as the account number, name, address and branch of the relevant Banker to the Issue;
- In case of non-resident investors, details of the NRE/FCNR/NRO Account such as the account number, name, address and branch of the Banker to the Issue with which the account is maintained;
- Except for applications on behalf of the Central or State Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts, PAN of the Eligible Equity Shareholder and for each Eligible Equity Shareholder in case of joint names, irrespective of the total value of the Rights Equity Shares applied for pursuant to the Issue;
- Signature of the Applicant (in case of joint holders, to appear in the same sequence and order as they appear in the records of our Company/Depositories); and
- Additionally, all such Applicants shall include the following:

"I/We understand that neither the Rights Entitlement nor the Rights Equity Shares have been, and will be, registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "US Securities Act") or any United States state securities laws, and may not be offered, sold, resold or otherwise transferred within the United States or to the territories or possessions thereof (the "United States") or to or for the account or benefit of a "U.S. Person" as defined in Regulation S under the US Securities Act ("Regulation S"). I/we understand the Rights Equity Shares referred to in this application are being offered in India but not in the United States. I/we understand the offering to which this application relates is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an offering of any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement for sale in the United States, or as a solicitation therein of an offer to buy any of the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in the United States. I/we understand that none of the Company, the Registrar, the Lead Manager or any other person acting on behalf of the Company will accept subscriptions from any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who the Company, the Registrar, the Lead Manager or any other person acting on behalf of the Company has reason to believe is, a resident of the United States or a "U.S. Person" (as defined in Regulation S,) or is ineligible to participate in the Issue under the securities laws of their jurisdiction.

I/We will not offer, sell or otherwise transfer any of the Rights Equity Shares which may be acquired by us in any jurisdiction or under any circumstances in which such offer or sale is not authorised or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer, sale or invitation except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws or regulations. We satisfy, and each account for which we are acting satisfies, all suitability standards for investors in investments of the type subscribed for herein imposed by the jurisdiction of our residence.

I/We understand and agree that the Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares may not be reoffered, resold, pledged or otherwise transferred except in an offshore transaction in compliance with Regulation S, or otherwise pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the US Securities Act.

I/We (i) am/are, and the person, if any, for whose account I/we am/are acquiring such Rights Entitlement and/or the Rights Equity Shares is/are, outside the United States, (ii) am/are not a "U.S. Person" as defined in Regulation S, and (iii) is/are acquiring the Rights Entitlement and/or the Equity Shares in an offshore transaction meeting the requirements of Regulation S.

I/We acknowledge that the Company, the Lead Manager, their affiliates and others will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the foregoing representations and agreements."

Investors are requested to note that CAF or plain paper application with only foreign addresses is liable to be rejected on technical grounds. The CAF or plain paper application should contain the Indian address also if foreign address is mentioned.

# General instructions for Eligible Equity Shareholders / Renouncees:

- 1. Please read the instructions printed on the CAF carefully.
- 2. As per the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, application for a rights issue shall be made only through ASBA facility.
- 3. Application should be made on the printed CAF only and should be completed in all respects. The CAF found incomplete with regard to any of the particulars required to be given therein, and/or which are not completed in conformity with the terms of the Letter of Offer are liable to be rejected. The CAF / plain paper application must be filled in English.
- 4. The CAF / plain paper application in the ASBA Process should be handed over only at a Designated Branch of the SCSB and whose bank account details are provided in the CAF and not to our Company or Registrar or Manager to the Issue. The onus of due completion and submission of such ASBA applications shall solely be that of the Investor.

- 5. Application in electronic mode will only be available with such SCSBs who provide such facility.
- 6. All Investors, and in the case of application in joint names, each of the joint Investors, should mention his/her PAN allotted under the Income-Tax Act, 1961, irrespective of the amount of the application. Except for applications on behalf of the Central or State Government, residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts, CAFs / plain paper applications without PAN will be considered incomplete and are liable to be rejected. With effect from August 16, 2010, the demat accounts for Investors for which PAN details have not been verified shall be "suspended for credit" and no allotment and credit of Rights Equity Shares shall be made into the accounts of such Investors.
- 7. All payments will be made by blocking the amount in the bank account maintained with the SCSB.
- 8. Signatures should be either in English or Hindi or in any other language specified in the Eighth Schedule to the Constitution of India. Signatures other than in English or Hindi and thumb impression must be attested by a Notary Public or a Special Executive Magistrate under his/her official seal. The Eligible Equity Shareholders must sign the CAF / plain paper application as per the specimen signature recorded with our Company /or Depositories.
- 9. In case of joint holders, all joint holders must sign the CAF / plain paper application in the same order and as per the specimen signature(s) recorded with our Company. In case of joint Investors, reference, if any, will be made in the first Investor's name and all communication will be addressed to the first Investor.
- 10. All communication in connection with application for the Rights Equity Shares, including any change in address of the Eligible Equity Shareholders should be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue.
- 11. Only persons outside restricted jurisdictions and who are eligible to subscribe for Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares under applicable securities laws are eligible to participate.
- 12. In case of non receipt of CAF, application can be made on plain paper mentioning all necessary details as mentioned under the section titled "Terms of the Issue Application on Plain Paper under the ASBA process".
- 13. Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012 dated September 25, 2012 within the periods stipulated therein, ASBA Applications may be submitted at all branches of the SCSBs.

## Do's:

- (a) Ensure that the details about your Depository Participant and beneficiary account are correct and the beneficiary account is activated as Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares will be allotted in the dematerialized form only.
- (b) Ensure that the CAFs are submitted with the Designated Branch of the SCSBs and details of the correct bank account have been provided in the CAF.
- (c) Ensure that there are sufficient funds (equal to {number of Rights Equity Shares as the case may be applied for} X {Issue Price of Rights Equity Shares}) available in the ASBA Account mentioned in the CAF before submitting the CAF to the respective Designated Branch of the SCSB.
- (d) Ensure that you have authorized the SCSB for blocking funds equivalent to the total amount payable on application mentioned in the CAF, in the ASBA Account, of which details are provided in the CAF and have signed the same.
- (e) Ensure that you receive an acknowledgement from the Designated Branch of the SCSB for your submission of the CAF in physical form.
- (f) Except for CAFs submitted on behalf of the Central or State Government, residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts, each Applicant should mention their PAN allotted under the IT Act.
- (g) Ensure that the name(s) given in the CAF is exactly the same as the name(s) in which the beneficiary account is held with the Depository Participant. In case the CAF is submitted in joint names, ensure that the beneficiary account is also held in same joint names and such names are in the same sequence in which they appear in the CAF.
- (h) Ensure that the Demographic Details are updated, true and correct, in all respects.

(i) Ensure that the account holder in whose bank account the funds are to be blocked has signed authorizing such funds to be blocked.

## Don'ts:

- (a) Do not apply if you are not eligible to participate in the Issue under the securities laws applicable to your jurisdiction.
- (b) Do not apply on through multiple CAF after you have submitted a CAF to a Designated Branch of the SCSB.
- (c) Do not pay the amount payable on application in cash, by money order, pay order, postal order, cheque or demand drafts.
- (d) Do not send your physical CAFs to the Lead Manager to Issue / Registrar / to a branch of the SCSB which is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB / Bank; instead submit the same to a Designated Branch of the SCSB only.
- (e) Do not submit the GIR number instead of the PAN as the application is liable to be rejected on this ground.
- (f) Do not apply if the ASBA account has been used for five Applicants.
- (g) Do not instruct the SCSBs to release the funds blocked under the ASBA Process.
- (h) Do not submit more than one application form for the Rights Entitlement available in the particular demat account.

#### **Grounds for Technical Rejection**

Applications are liable to be rejected on the following grounds:

- (a) DP ID and Client ID mentioned in CAF not matching with the DP ID and Client ID records available with the Registrar.
- (b) Sending CAF to a Lead Manager / the Registrar to the Issue/ the Registrar and Transfer Agent/ to a branch of a SCSB which is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB/Bank.
- (c) Insufficient funds are available with the SCSB for blocking the amount.
- (d) Funds in the bank account with the SCSB whose details are mentioned in the CAF having been frozen pursuant to regulatory orders.
- (e) Submission of more than one application form for the Rights Entitlement available in the particular demat account.
- (f) ASBA Account holder not signing the CAF or declaration mentioned therein.
- (g) Multiple CAFs, including cases where an Eligible Equity Shareholder submits CAFs along with a plain paper application.
- (h) CAFs that do not include the certification set out in the CAF to the effect that the subscriber does not have a registered address (and is not otherwise located) in restricted jurisdictions and is authorized to acquire the rights and the securities in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.
- (i) Applications by persons not competent to contract under the Indian Contract Act, 1872, as amended, except applications by minors having valid demat accounts as per the Demographic Details provided by the Depositories.
- (j) Submitting the GIR number instead of the PAN.
- (k) ASBA Bids by SCSBs applying through the ASBA process on own account, other than through an ASBA Account in its own name with any other SCSB.
- (1) Failure to mention an Indian address in the Application. Application with foreign address shall be liable to be rejected.
- (m) If an Investor is (a) debarred by SEBI and/or (b) if SEBI has revoked the order or has provided any interim relief then failure to attach a copy of such SEBI order allowing the Investor to subscribe to their Rights Entitlement.
- (n) Failure to provide a copy of the requisite RBI approval in relation to renunciation by non-resident ASBA Applicants.

By signing the CAFs, the Investors applying would be deemed to have authorized the Depositories to provide, upon request, to the Registrar to the Issue, the required Demographic Details as available on its records.

Letters intimating Allotment and unblocking would be mailed at the address of the Investor as per the Demographic Details received from the Depositories. The Registrar to the Issue will give instructions to the SCSBs for unblocking funds in the ASBA Account to the extent Rights Equity Shares are not allotted to such Investor. Investors may note that delivery of letters intimating unblocking of the funds may get delayed if the same once sent to the address obtained from the Depositories are returned undelivered. In such an event, the address and other details given by the Investor in the CAF would be used only to ensure dispatch of letters intimating unblocking of the ASBA Accounts.

Note that any such delay shall be at the sole risk of the Investors and none of our Company, the SCSBs, the Registrar to the Issue or the Lead Manager shall be liable to compensate the Investor for any losses caused due to any such delay or liable to pay any interest for such delay.

In case no corresponding record is available with the Depositories that matches three parameters, (a) names of the Eligible Equity Shareholders (including the order of names of joint holders), (b) the DP ID and (c) the beneficiary account number, then such Applications are liable to be rejected.

# Prohibition on payment of incentives

Any person connected with the issue, shall not offer any incentive, whether direct or indirect, in any manner, whether in cash or kind or services or otherwise to any person for making an application in the rights issue, except for fees or commission for services rendered in relation to the issue.

#### **Transfer of Funds**

The Registrar to the Issue shall instruct the relevant SCSB to unblock the funds in the relevant ASBA bank accounts for (i) transfer of requisite funds to the separate bank account maintained by our Company as per the provisions of **Section 40 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013** (ii) rejected / unsuccessful ASBAs.

In case of failure or withdrawal of the Issue, on receipt of appropriate instructions from the Lead Manager through the Registrar to the Issue, the SCSBs shall unblock the bank accounts latest by the next day of receipt of such information.

## Underwriting

The Issue is not underwritten.

#### **Issue Schedule**

The subscription will open upon the commencement of the banking hours and will close upon the close of banking hours on the dates mentioned below:

Issue Opening Date:	Monday, January 24, 2022		
Last date for On Market Renunciation of Rights Entitlement	Monday, February 07, 2022		
Issue Closing Date:	Friday, February 11, 2022		

The Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof (if any) will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may determine from time to time, provided that the Issue will not be kept open in excess of 30 (thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date and no withdrawal application by eligible equity shareholders will be allowed after issue closing date, in accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations.

## **Basis of Allotment**

For Eligible Equity Shareholders

Subject to the provisions contained in this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the CAF, the Articles of Association and the approval of the Designated Stock Exchange, our Board will proceed to allot the Rights Equity Shares in the following order of priority:

(a) Full Allotment to those Eligible Equity Shareholders who have applied for their Rights Entitlement either in full or in part and also to the Renouncee(s), who has/ have applied for the Rights Equity Shares renounced in their favour, in full or in part.

Allotment to Non-Resident Renouncees shall be subject to the permissible foreign investment limits applicable to our Company under FEMA.

- (b) For Rights Equity Shares being offered under this Issue, if the shareholding of any of the Eligible Equity Shareholders is less than 10 Rights Equity Shares or not in multiples of 10 as on Record Date, the fractional entitlement of such Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be ignored. Eligible Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are being ignored would be considered for Allotment of one additional Rights Equity Share each if they apply for additional Rights Equity Shares(s). Allotment under this head shall be considered if there are any un-subscribed Equity Shares after Allotment under (a) above. If the number of Rights Equity Shares required for Allotment under this head is more than number of Rights Equity Shares available after Allotment under (a) above, the Allotment would be made on a fair and equitable basis in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange.
- (c) Allotment to Eligible Equity Shareholders who having applied for the Rights Equity Shares in full and have also applied for additional Rights Equity Shares. The Allotment of such additional Rights Equity Shares will be made as far as possible on an equitable basis having due regard to the number of Equity Shares held by them on the Record Date, provided there is an undersubscribed portion after making Allotment in (a) and (b) above. The Allotment of such Rights Equity Shares will be at the sole discretion of the Board/Committee of Directors of our Company in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of the Issue and not as a preferential Allotment.
- (d) Allotment to the Renouncees, who having applied for the Rights Equity Shares renounced in their favour have also applied for additional Rights Equity Shares, provided there is an under-subscribed portion after making full Allotment in (a), (b) and (c) above. The Allotment of such additional Rights Equity Shares will be made on a proportionate basis at the sole discretion of our Board or any committee of our Board but in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of the Issue and not as a preferential allotment.
- (e) Allotment to any other person as our Board may in its absolute discretion deem fit provided there is surplus available after making Allotment under (a), (b), (c), and (d) above, and if there is any unsubscribed portion, the same shall be deemed to be 'unsubscribed'

Upon approval of the Basis of Allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange, the Registrar to the Issue shall send to the Controlling Branches, a list of the ASBA Investors who have been allocated Rights Equity Shares in the Issue, along with:

- The amount to be transferred from the ASBA Account to the separate bank account opened by our Company for the Issue, for each successful ASBA;
- The date by which the funds referred to above, shall be transferred to the aforesaid bank account; and
- The details of rejected ASBA applications, if any, to enable the SCSBs to unblock the respective ASBA Accounts.

# Our Company shall retain no oversubscription.

## **Allotment Advices**

Our Company will issue and dispatch Allotment advice/demat credit and the company would credit the allotted Rights Equity Shares to the respective beneficiary accounts, within a period of 15 (fifteen) working days from the Issue Closing Date. In case of failure to do so, our Company shall pay interest at such rate and within such time as specified under applicable law.

Advice regarding credit of the Rights Equity Shares shall be given separately to the Investors. Investors will be sent a letter through ordinary post intimating them about the unblocking of ASBA within 15 (fifteen) working days of the Issue Closing Date.

The letter of allotment would be sent by registered post/ speed post to the sole/ first Investor's registered address in India or the Indian address provided by the Eligible Equity Shareholders from time to time.

In the case of Non-resident Shareholders or Investors who remit their Application Money from funds held in NRE/FCNR Accounts, refunds and/or payment of interest or dividend and other disbursements, if any, shall be credited to such accounts, the details of which should be furnished in the CAF.

Upon approval of the Basis of Allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange, the Registrar to the Issue shall send to the Controlling Branches, a list of the ASBA Investors who have been allocated Rights Equity Shares in the Issue, along with:

- The amount to be transferred from the ASBA Account to the separate bank account opened by our Company for the Issue, for each successful ASBA;
- The date by which the funds referred to above, shall be transferred to the aforesaid bank account; and

• The details of rejected ASBA applications, if any, to enable the SCSBs to unblock the respective ASBA Accounts.

This, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer and the CAF shall be dispatched to only such Non-resident Shareholders who have a registered address in India or have provided an Indian address.

# INVESTORS MAY PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OF OUR COMPANY CAN BE TRADED ON THE STOCK EXCHANGES ONLY IN DEMATERIALISED FORM.

The procedure for availing the facility for Allotment of Rights Equity Shares in the electronic form is as under:

- 1. Open a beneficiary account with any DP (care should be taken that the beneficiary account should carry the name of the holder in the same manner as is registered in the records of our Company. In the case of joint holding, the beneficiary account should be opened carrying the names of the holders in the same order as is registered in the records of our Company). In case of investors having various folios in our Company with different joint holders, the investors will have to open separate accounts for such holdings. Those Eligible Equity Shareholders who have already opened such beneficiary account(s) need not adhere to this step.
- 2. For Eligible Equity Shareholders already holding Equity Shares in dematerialized form as on the Record Date, there Rights Entitlement would be credited to the Demat account of the respective Eligible Equity Shareholder. For those who open accounts later or those who change their accounts and wish to receive their Rights Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue by way of credit to such account, the necessary details of their beneficiary account should be filled in the space provided in the CAF and shall be informed at least one day prior to the closure of the issue. It may be noted that the Allotment of Rights Equity Shares arising out of this Issue would be made in dematerialised form even if the original Equity Shares are not dematerialised. Nonetheless, it should be ensured that the depository account is in the name(s) of the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the names are in the same order as in the records of our Company.
- **3.** Responsibility for correctness of information (including applicant's age and other details) filled in the CAF vis-à-vis such information with the applicant's DP, would rest with the Applicant. Applicants should ensure that the names of the applicants and the order in which they appear in CAF should be the same as registered with the applicant's DP.
- **4.** If incomplete/ incorrect details are given under the heading 'Request for Shares in Electronic Form' in the CAF, if incomplete/ incorrect beneficiary account details are given in the CAF, then such shares will be credited to a demat suspense a/c which shall be opened by our Company as specified in SEBI circular no. SEBI/CFD/DIL/LA/1/2009/24/04 dated April 24, 2009.
- 5. Allotment advice or letters of Allotment would be sent directly to the applicant by the Registrar to the Issue but the applicant's DP will provide to him the confirmation of the credit of such Rights Equity Shares to the applicant's depository account.
- **6.** Renouncees will also have to provide the necessary details about their beneficiary account for Allotment of the Rights Equity Shares in this Issue. In case these details are incomplete or incorrect, such applications by Renouncees are liable to be rejected.
- 7. Non-transferable allotment advice will be directly sent to the Investors by the Registrar.
- **8.** Dividend or other benefits with respect to the Rights Equity Shares held in dematerialized form would be paid to those Equity Shareholders whose names appear in the list of beneficial owners given by the Depository Participant to our Company as on the date of the book closure.

## **Procedure for Application by Mutual Funds**

In case of a Mutual Fund, a separate application can be made in respect of each scheme of the Mutual Fund registered with SEBI and such Applications in respect of more than one scheme of the Mutual Fund will not be treated as multiple applications provided that the application clearly indicates the scheme concerned for which the application has been made. Applications made by asset management companies or custodians of a Mutual Fund shall clearly indicate the name of the concerned scheme for which application is being made.

Procedure for Application by Systematically Important Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs)

In case of application made by Systemically Important NBFCs registered with the RBI, (i) the certificate of registration issued by the RBI under Section 45–IA of the RBI Act, 1934 and (ii) networth certificate from its statutory auditors or any independent chartered accountant based on the last audited financial statements is required to be attached to the application.

#### **Procedure for Application by FPIs**

In terms of the SEBI FPI Regulations, investment in the Equity Shares by a single FPI or an investor group (which means multiple entities registered as foreign portfolio investors and directly and indirectly having common ownership of more than 50% of common control) shall be below 10% of our post-Issue Equity Share capital. Further, in terms of the FEMA Non-Debt Rules the total holding by each FPI or an investor group, cannot exceed 10% of the total paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company on a fully diluted basis and the aggregate holdings of all the FPIs, including any other direct and indirect foreign investments in our Company, shall not exceed 24 % of the total paid-up Equity Share capital on a fully diluted basis.

In terms of applicable FEMA Rules and the SEBI FPI Regulations, investments by FPIs in the capital of an Indian company is subject to certain limits, i.e. the individual holding of an FPI (including its investor group) is restricted to below 10% of the capital of the company. In case the total holding of an FPI or investor group increases beyond 10% of the total paid-up equity capital of our Company, on a fully diluted basis or 10% or more of the paid-up value of any series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants that may be issued by our Company, the total investment made by the FPI or investor group will be re-classified as FDI subject to the conditions as specified by SEBI and the RBI in this regard and our Company and the investor will be required to comply with applicable reporting requirements. Further, the total holdings of all FPIs put together, with effect from April 1, 2020, can be up to the sectoral cap applicable to the sector in which our Company operates (i.e. 100%). The aggregate limit may be decreased below the sectoral cap to a threshold limit of 24% or 49% or 74% as deemed fit by way of a resolution passed by our Board followed by a special resolution passed by the Shareholders of our Company. In terms of the FEMA Non- Debt Rules, for calculating the aggregate holding of FPIs in a company, holding of all registered FPIs shall be included.

FPIs are permitted to participate in the Issue subject to compliance with conditions and restrictions which may be specified by the Government from time to time.

# Procedure for Applications by AIFs, FVCIs and VCFs

The VCF Regulations and the FVCI Regulations prescribe, amongst other things, the investment restrictions on VCFs and FVCIs registered with SEBI. Further, the AIF Regulations prescribe, amongst other things, the investment restrictions on AIFs.

As per the VCF Regulations and FVCI Regulations, VCFs and FVCIs are not permitted to invest in listed companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by VCFs or FVCIs will not be accepted in this Issue. Venture capital funds registered as category I AIFs, as defined in the AIF Regulations, are not permitted to invest in listed companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by venture capital funds registered as category I AIFs, as defined in the AIF Regulations, will not be accepted in this Issue. Other categories of AIFs are permitted to apply in this Issue subject to compliance with the AIF Regulations. Such AIFs having bank accounts with SCSBs that are providing ASBA in cities / centres where such AIFs are located are mandatorily required to make use of the ASBA facility. Otherwise, applications of such AIFs are liable for rejection.

## **Investment by NRIs**

Investments by NRIs are governed by FEMA Non-Debt Rules. Applications will not be accepted from NRIs in restricted jurisdictions.

NRIs may please note that only such Applications as are accompanied by payment in free foreign exchange shall be considered for Allotment under the reserved category. The NRIs who intend to make payment through NRO accounts shall use the Application Form meant for resident Indians and shall not use the Application Forms meant for reserved category.

## **Impersonation**

As a matter of abundant caution, attention of the investors is specifically drawn to the provisions of sub-section 38 of the Companies Act, 2013 which is reproduced below:

"Any person who -

- (a) makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a company for acquiring, or subscribing for, its securities, or
- **(b)** makes or abets making of multiple applications to a company in different names or in different combinations of his name or surname for acquiring or subscribing for its securities; or
- (c) otherwise induces directly or indirectly a Bank to allot, or register any transfer of, securities to him, or to any other person in a fictitious name,

#### (d) shall be liable for action under section 447."

The liability prescribed under Section 447 of the Companies Act, 2013 for fraud involving an amount of at least Rs. 10 Lakhs or 1.00% of the turnover of the Company, whichever is lower, includes imprisonment for a term which shall not be less than six months extending up to 10 years (provided that where the fraud involves public interest, such term shall not be less than three years) and fine of an amount not less than the amount involved in the fraud, extending up to three times of such amount. In case the fraud involves

- (i) an amount which is less than Rs. 10 Lakhs or 1.00% of the turnover of the Company, whichever is lower; and
- (ii) does not involve public interest, then such fraud is punishable with an imprisonment for a term extending up to five years or a fine of an amount extending up to ₹ 20 Lakhs or with both.

# Payment by Stock invest

In terms of RBI Circular DBOD No. FSC BC 42/24.47.00/2003-04 dated November 5, 2003, the stock invest scheme has been withdrawn with immediate effect. Hence, payment through stock invest would not be accepted in this Issue.

#### **Utilization of Issue Proceeds**

Our Board of Directors declares that:

- (a) All monies received out of the Issue shall be transferred to a separate bank account;
- (b) Details of all monies utilized out of the Issue shall be disclosed, and continue to be disclosed till the time any part of the Issue Proceeds remains unutilized, under an appropriate separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the purpose for which such monies have been utilized;
- (c) Details of all unutilized monies out of the Issue, if any, shall be disclosed under an appropriate separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the form in which such unutilized monies have been invested; and
- (d) Our Company may utilize the funds collected in the Issue only after the Basis of Allotment is finalised.

#### Undertakings by our Company

Our Company undertakes as follows:

- (a) The complaints received in respect of this Issue shall be attended to by our Company expeditiously and satisfactorily.
- (b) All steps for completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading at the Stock Exchanges where the Rights Equity Shares are proposed to be listed will be taken within 7 (seven) Working Days of finalization of Basis of Allotment.
- (c) Details with respect to unblocking of ASBA shall be dispatched to the applicants within 15 (fifteen) days of the Issue Closing Date
- (d) The letters of Allotment/ Allotment advice to the NRs shall be dispatched within the specified time.
- (e) No further issue of securities affecting equity capital of our Company shall be made till the securities issued/ offered through this Letter of Offer are listed.
- (f) At any given time, there shall be only one denomination of Equity Shares of our Company. As on the date of this letter of offer, our company has not issued any SR equity shares and there are no outstanding SR equity shares.
- (g) Our Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms specified by SEBI from time to time.

#### **Important**

• Please read this Letter of Offer carefully before taking any action. The instructions contained in the accompanying CAF is an integral part of the conditions and must be carefully followed; otherwise the Application is liable to be rejected.

- It is to be specifically noted that this Issue of Rights Equity Shares is subject to the risk factors mentioned in the section titled "Risk Factors".
- All enquiries in connection with this Letter of Offer, or accompanying CAF must be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue at the following address:

#### Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.

D-153/A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area

Phase-I, New Delhi- 110020 Phone No- 011- 40450193-97 Email: admin@skylinerta.com Contact Person: Ms. Rati Gupta SEBI Registration No.: INR000003241

• This Issue will be kept open for a minimum period of 19 (nineteen) days. However, the Board will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 (thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Closing Date).

## Restrictions on Foreign Ownership of Indian Securities

Foreign investment in Indian securities is regulated through the Consolidated FDI Policy and FEMA. The government bodies responsible for granting foreign investment approvals are the concerned ministries / departments of the Government of India and the RBI. The Union Cabinet has recently approved phasing out the FIPB, as provided in the press release dated May 24, 2017. Accordingly, pursuant to the office memorandum dated June 5, 2017, issued by the Department of Economic Affairs, Ministry of Finance, approval of foreign investment under the FDI policy has been entrusted to concerned ministries/departments.

Subsequently, the DIPP issued the Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) for Processing FDI Proposals on June 29, 2017 (the "SOP"). The SOP provides a list of the competent authorities for granting approval for foreign investment for sectors/activities requiring Government approval. For sectors or activities that are currently under automatic route but which required Government approval earlier as per the extant policy during the relevant period, the concerned administrative ministry/department shall act as the competent authority (the "Competent Authority") for the grant of post facto approval of foreign investment. In circumstances where there is a doubt as to which department shall act as the Competent Authority, the DIPP shall identify the Competent Authority.

The GoI has from time to time made policy pronouncements on FDI through press notes and press releases which are notified by RBI as amendments to FEMA. In case of any conflict between FEMA and such policy pronouncements, FEMA prevails. The Consolidated FDI Policy, issued by the DIPP, consolidates the policy framework in place as on August 27, 2017, and supersedes all previous press notes, press releases and clarifications on FDI issued by the DIPP that were in force and effect as on August 27, 2017. The Government proposes to update the consolidated circular on FDI Policy once every year and therefore the Consolidated FDI Policy will be valid until the DIPP issues an updated circular.

The transfer of shares between an Indian resident and a non-resident does not require the prior approval of the RBI, provided that (i) the activities of the investee company falls under the automatic route as provided in the FDI Policy and FEMA and transfer does not attract the provisions of the Takeover Regulations; (ii) the non-resident shareholding is within the sectoral limits under the FDI Policy; and (iii) the pricing is in accordance with the guidelines prescribed by SEBI and RBI. As per the existing policy of the Government of India, erstwhile OCBs cannot participate in this Issue.

## PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION THROUGH R-WAP:

In accordance with the SEBI Circulars, a separate web-based application platform, i.e., the R-WAP facility (accessible at <a href="https://www.skylinerta.com/rightissues/">https://www.skylinerta.com/rightissues/</a>), has been instituted for making an Application in this Issue by resident Investors. Further, R-WAP is only an additional option and not a replacement of the ASBA process and R-WAP facility should be utilized only in the event that Investors are not able to utilize the ASBA facility for making an Application despite their best efforts.

At the R-WAP, resident Investors can access and submit the online Application Form in electronic mode using the R-WAP. Resident Investors, making an Application through R-WAP, shall make online payment and observe the following:

1. Prior to making an application using the R-WAP facility, the Investors should enable the internet banking or UPI facility of their respective bank accounts and the Investors should ensure that the respective bank accounts have sufficient funds. If the funds available in the relevant bank account is less than the total amount payable on submission of online Application Form, such

Application shall be rejected. Please note that R-WAP is a non-cash payment mechanism in accordance with the SEBI Circulars.

- 2. Resident Investors should visit R-WAP (accessible at <a href="https://www.skylinerta.com/rightissues/">https://www.skylinerta.com/rightissues/</a>) and fill the online Application Form available on R-WAP in electronic mode. Please ensure that you provide correct DP ID, Client ID, PAN and Folio number (for resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date) along with all other details sought for while submitting the online Application Form.
- 3. Non-resident Investors are not eligible to apply in this Issue through R-WAP.
- 4. Investors should ensure that Application process is verified through the e-mail / phone / mobile number or other means as applicable. Post due verification, Investors can obtain details of their respective Rights Entitlements and apply in this Issue by filling-up the online Application Form which, among others, will require details of total number of Equity Shares to be applied for in the Issue. Please note that the Application Money will be determined based on number of Equity Shares applied for.
- 5. Investors who are Renouncees should select the category of 'Renouncee' at the application page of R-WAP and provide DP ID, Client ID, PAN and other required demographic details for validation. The Renouncees shall also be required to provide the required Application details, such as total number of Equity Shares applied for in the Issue.
- 6. The Investors shall make online payment using internet banking or UPI facility from their own bank account only. Such Application Money will be adjusted for either Allotment or refund. Applications made using payment from third party bank accounts will be rejected.
- 7. Verification, if any, in respect of Application through Investors' own bank account, shall be done through the latest beneficial position data of our Company containing Investor's bank account details, beneficiary account details provided to the depository, penny drop, cancelled cheque for joint holder verification and such other industry accepted and tested methods for online payment.
- 8. The Application Money collected through Applications made on the R-WAP will be credited to the Escrow Account "MOHINDRA FASTENERS LIMITED-RIGHTS ISSUE-R- COLLECTION ACCOUNT" opened by our Company with the Escrow Collection Bank(s), internet banking or UPI facility. Prior to making an Application, such Investors should enable the internet banking or UPI facility of their respective bank accounts and such Investors should ensure that the respective bank accounts have sufficient funds.

Set out below is the procedure followed using the R-WAP:

For guidance on the Application process through R-WAP and resolution of difficulties faced by the Investors, the Investors are advised to carefully read the frequently asked questions(FAQs) which are available on the website of the Registrar <a href="https://www.skylinerta.com/display">https://www.skylinerta.com/display</a> ipo rightissue allotment.php and visit online/ electronic dedicated investor helpdesk for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Investors: <a href="https://www.skylinerta.com/rightissues/">https://www.skylinerta.com/rightissues/</a> or call helpline number (+11 40450193-97).

PLEASE NOTE THAT ONLY RESIDENT INVESTORS CAN SUBMIT AN APPLICATION USING THE R-WAP. R-WAP FACILITY WILL BE OPERATIONAL FROM THE ISSUE OPENING DATE. OUR COMPANY, THE REGISTRAR AND THE LEAD MANAGER SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE IF THE APPLICATION IS NOT SUCCESSFULLY SUBMITTED OR REJECTED DURING THE BASIS OF ALLOTMENT ON ACCOUNT OF FAILURE TO BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SAME. FOR RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE R-WAP PROCESS, SEE "RISK FACTOR NUMBER 7 THE R-WAP PAYMENT MECHANISM FACILITY PROPOSED TO BE USED FOR THIS ISSUE MAY BE EXPOSED TO RISKS, INCLUDING RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH PAYMENT GATEWAYS" ON PAGE NUMBER 25 OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER.

# Acceptance of this Issue

Investors may accept this Issue and apply for the Rights Equity Shares (i) submitting the Application Form to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts, or (ii) filling the online Application Form available on R-WAP, the optional mechanism devised by the Registrar and make online payment using their internet banking or UPI facility from their own bank account thereat. Further, in case of Net Banking, there is no restriction on amount on R-WAP. However, maximum amount will be as per the limit set by applicant's respective bank. In case of UPI, the payment can be made only up to Rs. 2 lakhs. Please note that on the Issue Closing Date, (i) Applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchange, and (ii) the R-WAP facility, will be available until 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as

permitted by the Stock Exchange.

Applications submitted to anyone other than the Designated Branches of the SCSB are liable to be rejected.

Investors can also make Application on plain paper under ASBA process mentioning all necessary details as mentioned under the section "Application on Plain Paper under ASBA process" on page number 131 of this Letter of Offer.

#### SECTION VIII – STATUTORY OTHER INFORMATION

# MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

The copies of the following contracts which have been entered or are to be entered into by our Company (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business carried on by our Company or contracts entered into more than two years before the date of this Letter of Offer) which are or may be deemed material have been entered or are to be entered into by our Company. Copies of the abovementioned contracts and also the documents for inspection referred to hereunder, may be inspected at the Registered Office between 10 a.m. and 5 p.m. on all working days from the date of this Letter of Offer until the Issue Closing Date.

# (A) Material Contracts

- 1. Appointment Agreement dated 16<sup>th</sup> March, 2021 between our Company and the Lead Manager to the Issue.
- 2. Registrar Agreement dated 06<sup>th</sup> August, 2021 between our Company and the Registrar to the Issue.
- **3.** Escrow Agreement dated 06<sup>th</sup> August, 2021 amongst our Company, the Lead Manager, Registrar to the Issue and the Banker(s) to the Issue.

## (B) Material Documents

- 1. Certified copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of our Company.
- 2. Certificate of incorporation and fresh certificate of incorporation pursuant to change of name of our Company.
- **3.** Resolution of our Board of the Directors dated 10<sup>th</sup> February, 2021 pursuant to section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 authorizing the Issue.
- **4.** Prospectus dated 12<sup>th</sup> April, 1996 in respect of the initial public offering of Equity Shares by our Company.
- **5.** Consents of the Directors, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Lead Manager, to the Issue, Registrar to the Issue and Bankers to our Company, to include their names in this Letter of Offer to act in their respective capacities.
- **6.** Annual Report of our Company for the last five financial years ended March 31, 2021, 2020, 2019, 2018 & 2017, limited review report for six (6) months period ended September 30, 2021.
- **7.** Statement of Tax Benefits certificate dated 18<sup>th</sup> August, 2021 from M/s B. L. Khandelwal & Co (Practicing Chartered Accountant) New Delhi, the Statutory Auditors of our Company.
- **8.** Tripartite Agreement dated 21<sup>st</sup> July, 2006 between our Company, National Securities Depository Limited and the Registrar to the Issue.
- 9. Tripartite Agreement dated 16<sup>th</sup> August, 2006 between our Company, Central Depository Services (India) Limited and the Registrar to the Issue.
- 10. Due Diligence Certificate October 23, 2021 addressed to SEBI from the Lead Manager.
- 11. In-principle approval dated October 22, 2021 from MSEI, respectively.

Any of the contracts or documents mentioned in this Letter of Offer may be amended or modified at any time, if so required, in our interest or if required by the other parties, without reference to the Eligible Equity Shareholders, subject to compliance with applicable law.

## DECLARATION

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the guidelines/regulations issued by the Government of India or the guidelines/regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, established under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be, have been complied with and no statement made in this Letter of Offer is contrary to the provisions of the Companies Act, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or the rules made or guidelines or regulations issued thereunder, as the case may be. We further certify that all statements in this Letter of Offer are true and correct.

# SIGNED BY ALL THE DIRECTORS OF OUR COMPANY

Mr. Deepak Arneja

Chairman Cum Managing Director & CEO

Mr. Ravinder Mohan June]a Managing Director

Mr. Gagandeep Singh Narang

Non - Executive Director

Mr. Vinod Kumar

Non - Executive & Independent Director

Mr. Ved Prakash Chaudhary

Non - Executive & Independent Director

Mrs. Shamoli Thakur

Non - Executive & Independent Director

SIGNED BY THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF OUR COMPANY

Mr. Sunil Mishra

Chief Financial Officer

Date: 31/12/2021 Place: New Delhi